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f, the undersigned,

— —— SHAUN KEVIN ABRAHAMS

do hereby make oath and state as follows:

1

INTRODUCTION

| am the National Director of Public Prosecutions of the Republic of South
Africa (the “NDPP”). | was appointed by the First Respondent (the
*President") on 18 June 2015, i.n' terms of section 179 (1) of the
Constitution of the Republic of South Africa (“the Constitution"), read
with sections 10 and. 12 of the National Prosecuting Authority Act, 32 of

1998 ("NPA Act").

Save where otherwise stated, or the context indicates otherwise, the
contenté of this affidavit are within my personal knowledge and belief and

are both i[rue and correct.

This application concerns prosecutions instituted against the Minister of
Finance (‘the Minister/Gordhan”), Mr. fvan Pillay (“Pillay”) and Mr.
Oupa Magashula (“Magashula”). For convenience, and to the extent

that the context requires, | refer to these individuals together as “GP&M.”

The applicants contend that prosecutions ought not to have been brought
in the first instance. In support of this contention, they make

unsubstantiated allegations against me and the other Respondents. On




the basis thereof they contend that | and the other Respondents are not
fit to remain in office, and that we should be suspended pending an

enquiry. We dispute this.

For the convenience of the Court, | have quoted extensively from the
documents upon which 1 rely in this answering affidavit, in particular, the

documents which justified the decision to bring charges against GP&M.

The second to fifth Respondents oppose this application. | also depose
to this answering affidavit on behalf of the fifth respondent. The .third_
respondent files a supporting and confirmatory affidavit attached hereto
marked Annexure “SA1" The fourth respondent is filing a separate
aﬁidavit. | understand that the first respondent also opposes this

application.

A word about the third Respondent, Dr Pretorius (‘Pretorius”), who
made the decision to prosecute, in consultation with Mzinyathi, the
Fourth Respondent. Pretorius, having received his LLB in 1981 from the
University of Pretoria, obtained a Masters of Law af the University of
London and an LLD at the Univérsity of Pretoria. He joined the
Department of Justice in 1976, and has been employed in prosecution
since then. He was an evidence leader at the Goldstone Commission.
He was a member of the Scorpions and a former member of the Priority
Crimes Litigation Unit.  Since October 2015 he has been Special

Director at the PCLU, in an acting capacity.

/
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| observe that the Applicants make reference to “charges” having been
laid against GP&P. That is not accurate. In fact, a summons was issued
for them to appear in Court. A charge would be formally laid only in
Court. Nonetheless, to minimize confusion, | have in this affidavit

followed Applicants’ usage of the term in its loose sense.

THE APPLICATION IS NOT URGENT

The applicant offers no more than broad-brush generalised reasons why
this matter should be heard as a matter of uréency. The applicant's per
se based upon the fact that the second, third and fourth Respondents
occupy senior positidns inrén 'import_ant organ of state falls short. One
findg no claim that for them to remain in pléce until such time as the
application is heard in the ordinary course would hinder, scupper or

prejudice any particular ongaing or pending prosecution.

It helps not for the applicant to anticipate "potential" harm. The burden is
upon the applicant to set out particular facts that establish an actﬁal or
well-grounded apprehension of irreparable loss if no relief is granted. It is
trite that the degree of abridgment of times and deviation from Rule 6 of
the Uniform Rules should be no greater than the necessary exigency of
the case. One must carefully analyse the facts of each case to
determine the degree of urgency for purposes of setting down the

application for hearing.
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The aforementioned principles were articulated in the well-known and

often quoted decision in Luna Meubel Vervaardigers (Edms) Bpk v Makin

& another (t/a Makin's Furniture Manufacturers) -1977 (4) SA 135 (W)

“Practitioners should carefully analyse the facts of each case to
determine, for the purposes of setting the case down for hearing,
whether a greater or lesser degree of relaxation of the Rules and
of the ordinary practice of the Court is required. The degree of
relaxation should not be greater than the exigency of the case
demands. It must be commensurate therewith. Mere lip service to
the requirements of Rule 6(12)(b) will not do and an applicant
must make out a case in the founding affidavit to justify the
particular extent of the departure from the norm, which is involved
in the time and day for which the matter be set down.”

Applicants have fallen short. They allege that they are “a proven severe
threat to the economy”, and that I'may “repeat my misconduct by bringing
further ill-conceived charges in the near future.” That is patently

inadequate.

Sirﬁilar language and unconvincing allegations were made in the
application brought' by the first applicant against Ms Jiba. Having made
these allegations, the first applicant's urgent application was struck from
the roll for want of urgency. Ms Jiba remained in office as-the Deputy
National Director of Public Prosecutions. The sky did not fall. In fact the
first applicant, dragged its heels, notwithstanding their forebodings as to
what was likely to happen if Jiba remained in office while the President

was considering whether to suspend her.

Here, the applicants railroaded the matter into court, gave the President

six days to suspend the Respondents and hold an enquiry, without the
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Respondents having a reasonable opportunity to respond to the
al.!egations, after having sent to the President the entire application in the
earlier application brought to have the charges set aside as irrational
(under Case No. 83058/16) in this Qourt. The affidavits in that matter,

with Annexures, ran to some‘198 pages.
It has been held that:

“Practitioners would be well advised to be more realistic and to
afford State departments a more reasonable time in which to
file affidavits.” In Re Several Matters on the Urgent Role 2013
(1) SA 549 (GSJ), para 17

Wepener J held that Applicants who abuse the court process should be

penalised, their applications struck off the roll, with costs.

It is our respectful submission that the same result should follow here.
For it was unreasonable in the extreme to expect the President to deal
with this matter within a period of six days, including weekends, and at a
time when it was reported in the media that he travelled outside the
country. And when he did not comply, the applicants immediately, the
next day — no doubt having prepared this applicatiqn in anticipation of the

President not complying within such a short period. — launched it and

claimed urgency.

Jeopardising “dozens of critical prosecutions”

The applicants say that our remaining in office would jeopardise “dozens

of critical prosecutions and investigations daily.” But applicants have not
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identified the prosecutions and investigations upon which they rely — nor
have they suggested the basis on which they say we would jeopardise
those. They effectively urge the Court to assume that, by virtue of
Respondents being prosecutors, prosecutions and investigations will ipso

facto be jeopardised.

The applicants are simply unhappy with the fact that a decision was
made to prosecute the Minister. Assuming incorrectly that the decision to
prosecufe was unsustainable, they infer that, were thé Respondents 1o
remain at their posts, they would prejudice future prosecutions and
investigations. This non sequitur cannot warrant the hearing of this

application on an urgent basis.

“Rogué” Unit investigation

The applicants say that they fear that the Minister and others may be
charged in respect of the rogue spy unit investigation. What is surprising
is that they do not say why they should not be charged if there is a case
against them to answer. It is implicit in paragraph 155 of the founding
affidavit that the applicants are suggesting that any charges arising from
the SARS rogue unit investigations would be ill-conceived. The
investigation is not complete and no decis_ion has been made one way or
the other. However, it is patently clear that the real objective of the
applicants in this application is to ensure that no charges are preferred

against the Minister arising from the SARS rogue untt, irrespective of the

/

merits of any such charges.
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| emphasise that | have stated publicly that such investigation is still on-
going. It is only once the investigation has been completed that a
decision to prosecute or not to prosecute would be made. Until then, the
Court should not allow the applicants to justify the hearing of this

application on an urgent basis on speculation.

The fact that a decision to prosecute might be made does not justify the
hearing of the application on an urgent basis. Furthermore, this does not

justify the suspension of the prosecutors.

Destruction of Economy

The suggestion thét R 50 billion was wiped out of the stock exchange or |

that it is going to be wiped out again if the Minister is charged in relation
to tﬁe rogue spy unit investigati'on is based on speculation. There is no
merit on this. | do not understand the markets to operate on the basis
that a Minister should not be charged with an offence if there is evidence
of wrongdoing on his part. One can only speculate as to how the
markets are going to react when the circumstances which led to the
charges being laid are now made public when this answering affidavit'is
filed in. Court. The markets clearly pénno’( condone the burdening of the
taxpayer with the penalty which Pillay ought to have paid himself by way
of: reducing his pension benefits — instead this penalty was paid on his
behalf by SARS because the Minister said so, and not because it is

lawful.

Allegation that President’s “failure” to act warrants urgency
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There is no merit in the ground that the President's failure to suspend

and institute an enquiry must be addressed without delay.

The applicants’ contention in this regard ignores the fact that the
President has not failed to decide. The President has not refused to
decide, nor has he refused to institute an enquiry. The President has

simply asked for more time to consider the matter.

Thé President's request for more time to deal with the matter is not
unreasonable. It is the applicants who were unreasonable by giving the
President three working days to arrive at a decision favourable to them in
circumstances where the President remains obliged to give us an
opportunity to make representations as to why we should not be

suspended.

Insofar as the application and the grounds of urgency are based on the
fact that the President has not yet favourably answered the applicants’
request, then the urgency was self-created once again to create negative
atmosphere against the government and its institutions. The Court
should not create a precedent by allowing this type of conduct to serve

as a basis for hearing applications on an urgent basis.

Redress at hearing in due course

| deny that the applicants are not going to obtain substantial redress at a

hearing in due course.

/-
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Applicants baldly state the conclusion that “substantial redress cannot be
obtained in due course” and that this “conclusion is forﬁfiéd by the fact
that the issues raised in this matter strike at the heah‘ of our constitutional
democracy ..." In addition, the applicants say that the reputation of the
NPA would suffer irreparable harm if the matter is not heard on an urgent

basis.

The allegations that the reputation of the NPA would suffer prejudice are
unfounded. At the heart of the complaint against the b'ringing of charges
against GP&M is the allegation that the charges were politically
motivated or-that they have been brought in order to pursue a political
agenda. | am not a politician. The pther Respondehts herein are also
not politicians. We have nothing againsf_the Minister. We have no
interest as to where the Minister is 'deployed or is not deployed. The

prosecutors were not influenced by any politician to bring the charges.

The Minister is a politician. He is in the best position to tell the Court if
there is anyone in politics who is pq!itically against him and who would
have influenced the bringing of éharges against him. He has not
mentioned any names nor has he himself stated under oath that the
prosecutors were influenced by this. The applicants who purport to
speak for the Minister must in their replying affidavit bring the evidence of

political interference or withdraw the allegations.

In the 25 October 2016 application in the Gauteng Division, Pretoria

(Case No. 83058/16), which is no longer being pursued following the
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withdrawal of the charges, in which the applicants sought an order that
the charges against GP&M be withdraWn, the applicants advanced
similar contentions of political interference - based also upon media

speculation.

Next move against the Minister

In paragraph 162 of their founding affidavit, the applicants say that | am
“already contemplating his next move against Min. Gordhan and, indeed,
the economy and the already-shattered reputation of the NPA.” There is
no merit in this reckless allegation. This is the type of unfounded
allegation which casts unnecessary doubt on the NPA. If the vaiue of the
Rand is affected by such speculations, then the applicants are

themselves guilty of the very conduct of which they accuse us.

| am not contemplating any move against the Minister. The decision
whether {he Minister should be prosecuted would be made once the
relevant investigation has been completed. The NPA is not going to be
held to a ransom by civic organisations such as the applicants in order to

prevent prosecution where there is a basis to prosecute.

If the investigation reveals that there is a basis to prosecute, | have no
doubt that the relevant prosecutors will take the appropriate decisions

and take public interest into account.

The Court should not be pressed into hearing this application on an
urgent basis, simply because there is a fear that the Minister is or is not

going to be charged. The Minister is not the only person in this country

//”
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who is the subject of an investigation. The fact that he is the Minister

does not justify the hearing of this application on an urgent basis.

In the premises, the application ought to be struck-off the roll with costs

including the costs consequent upon the employment of three counsel.

THE APPLICATION IS PREMATURE

| have made the point above that the application is premature and that
the.applicants must simply wait for the President to \fnake the decision
which they have requested him to make. It is only once the President
has refused to make the decision that the matter would then be ripe to be
brought to Court for adjudication. Until then, the matter is not ripe for

judicial review.

The President has not been given a reasonable opportunity to apply his
mind as to whether or not he should act in terms of :section 12(6) of the
NPA Act. The notice of motion, in paragraph 1 challenges the “the
failures, alternatively, refusal by the first respondent” to take steps under
section 12(6)(a) of the NPA Act. But the President has in no sense
refused to invoke his section 12(6) 'powers. Nor can ‘he properly be said
to have failed to have exercised those powers. Effectively, the applicants
are abusing the process by attempting to stampede the exercise of a
weighty discretion without affording either the opportunity for those
affected {o make representation, nor for the President properly to apply

his mind.

The applicants’ demand to the President came on 1 November, stating:
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“Please confirm, in writing, by no later than 16:00 Monday, 7
November 20186, that you will provisionally suspend Mr Abrahams, JP
E’retorius SC and S Mzinyathi from their office, pending enquiries into
their fitness fo hold office as contemplated in secfion 12(6)(a)", read
with, inter alia, section 14(3) of the Naticnal Prosecuting Authority Act,

1998, and that you will forthwith institute such enquiries.” (para 17)

The demand was acknowledged by way of a letter in which the
Presidency stated that the demand required a proper investigation, that

would take until 21 November.

A letter from the applicants, (a copy whereof is attached to the founding
affidavit as Annexure FA13), rejected the extension request. This
application was lodged on 9 November, setting the matter down to be

heard on 22 November.

On 14 November, the President addressed Iettefs (attached hereto
together as Annexuré SA2), to the Second, Third and Fourth
Respondents, requesting that we make representations as to why we
should not be suspended, by 28 November. We are in the couré.e of

preparing same.

It would be inconsistent with our rights to be subjected to suspension and
enquiry without the opportunity properly to state our case. The
consequences of suspension are not trivial. As has been recognized by

the courts, detrimental reputational consequences will almost invariably
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follow a suspension, more so when unfounded serious allegations are

made such as in this case.

Moreover, the suspensions may persist for a long duration, especially if

- the outcome of the investigation is subject to judicial review and

potentially subsequent appeals. Reference will be made at the hearing
of this matier to a case that remains pending in the Pretoria High Court,
in which FUL challenged the decision of the President not to suspend Ms
Jiba as Deputy National Director of Public Prosecutions. Pending final
relief, FUL sought to have her suspended and further prevented from
discharging her functions as a member of the National Prosecuting
Authority. Dismissing the application for interim relief, Prinsloo noted t_hat
it was not possible to anticipate when the main application would be
finally determined, and that it might result in an appeal process years into

the future:

“The impact of such relief, if it were to be granted, on the lives and
careers of [the individual Respondents], let alone the NPA, is

. obvious.” (Freedom Under Law v NDPP (Case No. 89849/15) (19

Nov 2015), para 26.}

The applicants appear unaware of the disruption in prosecutorial
functions that could result from the steps they are demandiné.
Significantly, they have accepted that we “occupy positions at the very
heart of the NPA’s ability to function effectively to fulfil its constitutional

mandate.” The applicants’ suggestion that there would be no harm if |

! 14
Vi
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were suspended because the previous NDPP, Mr Nxasana, has
indicated that he is willing to return as NDPP (para 120), is entirely
frivolous. it is frivolous because the second applicant, Freedom Under
Law, is also the second applicant in Case No. 62470/15 in this
Honourable Court. In that case they, together With Corruption Watch
NPC seek to review a settlement agreement pursuant to which Mr

Nxasana left office.

They have cited me as a respondent in that matter. | mention that | was

not involved at all in the termination of Mr Nxasana's appointment as

NDPP. However, what is pertinent here is that in the founding affidavit,
the second applicant makes reference to an enquiry which was instituted
by the President against'Mr Nxasana under section 12(6), élthough he
was.not suspended. When the enquiry commenced; it was immediately
terminated and the settlement agreement was entered into. However, in
the founding affidavit, Freedom Under Law makes reference to the
allegations against Mr Nxasana which prompted the section 12(6)
en‘quiry. They are aware of these allegations and yet now support his
reéppointment as NDPP, Irrespec;rive of the settlemént agreement, they
are invited to tell this Honourable Court whether they honestly support his
reappointment, taking into account the allegations against him of which

they are aware, notwithstanding the content of his settlement agreement.

/.

/
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SEPARATION OF POWERS

The relief which the applicants seek would violate the doctrine of
separation of powers which this Court has consistently protected.
Directing the President to suspend employees of a constitutional

institution would clearly violate the doctrine of separation of powers.

As | have stated above, the position would have been different if the
applicants were asking the Court to direct the President to consider the
matter within a reasonable time which time aillows the affected parties a

reasonable opportunity to be heard before the decision is taken.

The Constitutional Court has observed:

- “Although there are no bright lines that separate the roles of the
Legislature, the Executive and the Courts from one another, there are
certain matters that are pre-eminently within the domain of one or
other of the arms of government.and not the others. All arms of

government should be sensitive fo and respect this separation.”

This caution is pertinent in this instance because the section 12(6) power
is exclusively vested in the President, who necessarily exercises a wide

discretion, with an irreducible political component in this regard.

There is nowhere fo be found in the applicants’ papers an allegation that
the President's decision under section 12(8) of the NPA Act constitutes
administrative action. That is because it is clear that the power, being a

corollary of the power to appoint, is quintessentially executive action. As

y.

16




93

the Constitutional Court has held: *f would not be appropriate to
constrain executive power fo requirements of procedural fairness, which
is a cardinal feature in reviewing administrative action. These powers to
appoint and to dismiss are conferred specially upon the President for the

effective business of government.” (Masethla v President of Republic of

South Africa, 2008 (1) 566 (CC), para 77).

It was necessary for the President to apply his mind in similar fashion
when in late 2015, thé Democratic Alliance invoked section 12(6)(2), in
demanding that he takes steps against Advocate Jiba. Ultimately the
.Cape High Court dismissed their application. Dolamo J's words in his

judgment are apposite:

"Unwarranted suspension brought about by untested allegations may
disrupt the smooth running of the institution. While the President is
empowered by section 12(6)(a) to take swift action when necessary fo
allay concerns about the integrity of the NPA or when the conduct of
the DNDPP is called into question, he however, cannot do so without
' due consideration for all the relevant factors and circumstances. In
this respect, he would call for, be guided by and rely on people who
have intimate knowledge of the facts and their surroundi{?g
circumstances. He will be in a better position fo exercise his

discretionary powers on receipt of appropriate advice.” [Citation para

88]
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The judgment vindicates the President's decision in casu to await
representations from the Respondents before exercising his decision.

Dolamo J wrote that the President would also need to consider the other

side of the story:

"Relevant facfors which the President would consider would include

infer alia, Adv Jiba's response fo the criticism which had been levelled

against her." [Para 89]

EQUALITY BEFORE THE LAW

The applicants are not incorrect in their contention that this matter

implicates concerns of great political and legal import.

But the premise of applicants’ position is that the Minister and other high-
ranking officials who were the subject of the 11 October charges, must
enjoy special treatment by virtue of their high office. That is entirely
inconsistent with one of the most fundamental principles of the rule of
law, which must always be foremost in a prosecutor's mind: Equality
before the law. It is, of_ course, true that broader social and political
consequences must be taken into account by a prosecutor under the
heading of “public interest factors”. It would be outrageous to suggest,
however, that the latter confer a kind of impunity upon high public

officials.

The applicants submissions regarding the adverse economic impact of
the decision to charge the Minister is just another way of arguing that

those holding high government positions must be treated with kid gloves.

18
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The Respondents submit that a court should in any event give no weight
to speculation about the effect of the prosecutorial decisions upon the
aggregate capitalisation of the Johannesburg Stock Exchange (“JSE.")
Prices on that exchange are notoriously volatile, and responsive to any
number of social, economic, and political developments, both

domestically and internationally.

The applicants tell us that some R50 billion was wiped off the
Johannesburg Stock Exchange the day that the charges were
announced, 11 October 2016. Bui, like the applicants’ other apocalyptic
allegations, this should be seen in context. Consideration of the total
capitalisation of the JSE affords some context. | refer to a table
(attached hereto as Annexure SA3), reflecting that the total market
capitalisation of the JSE in 10 October was about R1 trillion. As
intimated by the applicants, thié fell to some R950 billion by close of
business the next day, 11 October. What the applicants elide is that by
the next week, the market had recovéred all of its losses, and was back
up at R1 trillion. But by 11 November, the market had dropped to R920

billion - significantly below where it s:tood prior to my announcement.

Against that backdrop, the suggestion that the institution of the charges
has had an enduring effect upon the‘South African economy is belied by
these short-term market movements — which saw the entire R50 billion
“loss” to be swiftly recouped, then lost again for entirely independent
reasons. The losses upon which the applicants place such store are

/-

notional, or “paper” losses.
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f return to the principle of equality before law. That principle is enshrined
in section 9(1) of the Constitution, whereunder all are equal before the
law and have the right to equal protection and benefit of the law. Section

32(1)(a) of the NPA Act provides:-

‘A member of the prosecuting authority shall serve impartially and
exercise, carry out or perform his or her powers, duties and functions
in good faith and without fear, favour or prejudice and subject only to

the Constitution and i‘he law.”

It is relevant in this regard that section 22(4)(f) of the NPA Act requires

the National Director to bring the United Nations Guidelines on the Role
of the Proéecutor to the attention of the Directors of F’ublic Prosecutions,
Special Directors and prosecutors and to promote theirlrespect for and
compliance with the principles contained therein, within the framework 6f

our own national legislation.

The principle that like cases must be treated alike implies that there must
be general rules that must be impartially applied, “that is fo say, that
prosectitions apply statutes without discrimination, dr fear or favour, to all

those whose cases fall within the scope of the rufes.”
Advocate Downer SC has written:

‘Rule of law proponents want decisions regarding prosecutions to be
as fair as possible. They want everyone who commits a crime fo be
prosecuted or not prosecuted equally, according to the same criteria.

This means that they do not want prosecutors to decide arbitrarily to
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prosecufe some people who commit crime, but not others who also
commit similar crimes. In particular, they do not want the politically or
socially powerful, those .WhO have connections to the right people or
groupings and those who are simply rich, to escape prosecution either
because of their status or because they have the means to influence

or control prosecutors.”

“Prosecuting the powerful for serious offences is almost without
exception the strongest prosecutorial imperative that trumps the other

considerations of public policy.”

ALLEGED ULTERIOR PURPOSE

For the reasons set out infra, based on the circumstances which led to
the- charges being brought, the decision to prosecute is eminently
justified when tested against the threshold of prospects of success. That
being so, all that remains is applicants’ aIIIegation that the prosecution
was. animated by improper purpose. By implication, it would appear that
the alleged purpose was fo serve the interests of the political function
within the ruling party who are aligjned against the M'inister, and wish to
see him removed from the Cabinet. That motivation |s alleged in obligue
and indeterminate Janguage by the applicants; it is respectfully submitted
that fhe court can attach no weight whatsoever thereto. | have dealt with

vague, open ended allegations of political interference elsewhere.

But there is a further point. Even if the prosecution was animated by an

improper purpose, that would not suffice to render the prosecution bad in




law. What is required, according to Harms DP is that the prosecution has

used its powers for ulterior purposes.

66  Harms DP wrote:

“A prosecution is not wrongful merely because it was brought for an
improper purpose. It will only be wrongful if, in addition, reasonable
and probable grounds for prosecutmg are absent, which, in any event,
can only be determined once criminal proceedmgs have been
concluded. The motive behind the prosecution is irrelevant because,
as Schreiner JA said in éonnection with arrests, the best motive does
not cure an otherwise illegal arrest and the worst motive does not
render. an otherwise Iegél arrest ilegal. The same applies (o

prosecutions.” [National Director of Public Prosecutions v Zuma 2009

(2) SA 277 (SCA), Para 37.]
67 Harms DP added:'

“This does not, however, mean that the prosecution may use its
powers for 'ulterior purposes’. To do so would breach the principle of

legality. The facts in High stead Enfertainment (Pty) Ltd t/a 'The Club'

v Minister of Law and Order_and_Others, iflustrate and explain the |

point. The police had confiscated machines belonging to Highstead
for the purpose of charging it with gambling offences. They were
intent on confiscating further machines. The object was not to use
them as exhibits - they had enough exhibits already - but to put

Highstead out of business. In other words, the confiscation had

/
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nothing to do with the infended prosecution and the power fo
confiscate was accordingly used for a purpose not authorised by the
statute. This is what 'ulterior purpose’ in this context means. That is
not the case before us. In the absence of evidence that the
prosecution of Mr Zuma was not intended fo obtain a conviction, the
reliance on this line of authority is misplaced as was the focus on

motive.”

Although the applicants herein have not expressly alleged bad faith they
suggest that there has been political interference in the decision making

process. We deny this. .

| take umbrage at the allegation that | was implacably committed .to
pu.rsuing the prosecution, and relented only in the face of external
pressure. In point of fact, as | told Parliament in my 4 NoVembér
briefing, at the time | considered considering whether or not to withdraw
the charges, | encountered resistance from Lisutenant-General Ntlemeza
(“Ntlemeza”), Head of the Directorate for Priorities Crimes Investigations
(“the Hawks") who:strongly contended that the charges should not héve

been withdrawn.

| wrote to Ntlemeza on 17 October 2016 (in a letter attached hereto'as
Annexure SA4), advising that Magashula and Pillay had made
representations in which they requested me to review the decision to

prosecute. | invifed Nilemeza to make fepresentation by no later than

/.

19 October 2016.
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In a letter of 18 October 2016 (attached hereto as Annexure SAS5),
Ntlemeza responded by saying that the DPCI would not be making any

representations, but would await my decision.

On 30 October, a letter attached as Annexure SA6 was hand-delivered to
me. (It will be noted that the signature line incorrectly reflects 31
October; the NPA date stamp was affixed only 31 October.) [ had hand-

delivered to me received a letter from Ntlemeza saying:

“It is our considered view that your decision is nbt made in good faith
on evidence that we have gathered as an investigative agency in this
matter. Rather it seems to us that you make this decision based on
the noise made by politicians, civil sociely lobby groups, and the

media sympathetic to the accused.

It is our considered view that we have a strong case against the
accused, despite all contrary views of the so-called opinion makers
-and legal experts in the media.: If the accused have any defences fo
.the charges or any issues with regard fo their prosecution the place to
‘ventifate that is an open court through a criminal trial and be cross

examined fo expose the truth.



We mention all these issues of which you are aware to highlight one
issue: that it would be improper for you as NDPP to stall or withdraw

the prosecution of the accused persons in this matter.”

73 On 31 October 2016 (in a letter attached hereto as Annexure SA7), |
informed Ntlemeza that | had reviewed the decisions to prosecute
Magashula, Pillay and the Minister, having concluded that it would be
difficult to prove intent beyond reas_onable doubt. | indicated further that |
would thereafter be responding more fully to him, as indeed | did on 8

November.

74  On 8 November 2016 (in a document attached hereto as Annexure

SA8), | wrote further:

“Your view adopfed in para 9 of your Iétter, dated 30 October 20186, is
rather regrettable in thét you alleged that my decision to withdraw the
bharges against Messrs Magashula, Pillay and Gordhan was ‘based
on the noise made by politicians, n‘ciw'l society lobby groups, and the
media sympathetic to the accused’. In this regard you are completely
incorrect and ill-informed. My'-’ decision was based purely on the
merits of the matter after having reviewed the matter and having
directed further investigations aioﬁg with the applicable legal

provisions.”

THE STRUCTURE OF NPA

75 An overview of the structure of the NPA is useful in understanding the

distinction between the power to institute a prosecution and the
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subsequent exercise of the power to review and set aside, which is

vested exclusively in the NDPP

Section 2 of the NPA Act provides for a sin'gfe prosecuting authority.
Section 3 reiterates that there is a single prosecuting authority consisting
of “the Office of the National Director and the offices of the prosecuting
authority at the High Courts, established by section 6(1)". Section 4
referred to above sets out the composition of the prosecuting authority.
Section 5 established the office of the National Director of Public
Prosecutions and places the National Director at its head. Section 6
established offices for the prosecutihg authority at the seat of each High

Court division.

‘The NDPP is appointed by the President and vested by section 179(2) of

the Constitution and Chapter 4 of the NPA Act with the powers, functions
and duties to in.stitute criminal proceedings on behalf of the State and to
carry out any necessary functions and duties incidental thereto. The
NPA has Deputy National Directors of Public Prosecutions ("DNDPP’s"),
several Directors of Public Prosecutions (‘DPPs") at the seat of each
Provincial Division of the High Court and Special Directors of Public

Prosecutions ("SDPPs") who are all accountable to the NDPP

A number of sections of the NPA Act deal with hierarchical appointments.
Section 16 provides for the appointment of prosecutors. Section 20(1)

states that the power to institute criminal proceedings contemplated in

26
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s 179(2) of the Constitution “vests in the prosecuting authority and shall,

for all purposes, be exercised on behalf of the Republic.”

~ Section 20 subsets (2)-(5) provide as follows:-

“(2} Any Deputy National Director shall exercise the powers referred to

in subsection (1) subject fo the contro! and directions of the National

Director.

(3) Subject to the provisions of the Constitution and this Act, any
Director shall, subject to the control and directions of the National
Director, exercise the powers referred to in subsection (1) in respect

of —

e

(a) the area of jurisdiction for which he or she has been appointed;

and

(b) any offences which have not been expfessly excluded from his or
her jurisdiction, either generally or in “a specific case, by the

National Director.

Subject to the provisions of this Act, any Deputy Director shall, subject
to the control and directions of the Director concerned, exercise the

powers referred to in subsection (1) in respect of. —

(a) the area of jurisdiction for which he or she has been appointed;

and

(b) such offences and in such courts, as he or she has been
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authorised in writing by the National Director or a person

designated by the National Director.

(5) Any proset:utor shall be competent fo exercise any of the powers
referred to in subsection (1) to the extent that he or she has been
authorised thereto in writing by the National Director, or by a person

designated by the National Director.’

Section 21, consistent with s 179(5) of the Constitution, provides for the
National Director, with the concurrence of the Minister and after
consultation with other Directors, to determine prosecution policy and
issue policy directives which must be observed in the prosecution

process. Section 22(1) of the NPA Act provides:-

“The National Director, as the head of the prosecuting authority, shail
.have authority over the exercising of all the powers, and the
performance of all the duties and functions conferred or imposed on or
assigned lo any member of fhe prosecuting authority by the

Constitution, this Act or any other law.”

As will be argued at the hearing, this broad empowerment does not
authorise or mandate the NDPP to continually insert himself into initial

determinations fo institute prosecutions.

THE NDPP’S POWERS OF REVIEW

Section 179(b)(d) of the Constitution, which empowers me as the

National Director, when requested, o review a decision to prosecute or
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not to prosecute. After consulting the relevant Director; and after taking
representations, within a period as specified by me, from the accused
persons, the complainant and any other persons or party whom |

consider relevant.

This is in line with the provisions of section 179(5)(d) of the Constitution,
read with section 22(2)(0) of the National Prosecuting Authority Act 32 of
1998 (the “NPA Act”), to review a decision to prosecute and to decide

whether to continue or discontinue a prosecution.

The NPA receives representations from accused persons and/for their
legal representatives in respect of matters in both the lower and High
Courts, which are submitted to the Control Prosecutors, Senior Public

Prosecutors, Chief Prosecutors, the DPP Offices and/or to Special DPPs.

Since my appointment in June 2015, | have reviewed numerous cases.
In giving effe_ct to my constitutionally entrenched review powers | have
overruled the origina] decisions of Directors of PleIic Prosecutions and/or
Special Directors to prosecute or to discontinue prosecutions in more
fhan 16 instances: | have also agreed with thé' original'decisions of

Directors of Public Prosecutions and/or Special Directors in 97 matters.

Whilst | have the power to institute a prosecution, | would only do so in
very rare instances. If | made a decision to prosecute, it would not be

competent for me to review my own decision in terms of the Constitution

or the NPA Act. (In National Director of Public Prosecutions v Zuma

2009 (2) SCA 277 (SCA) at 305, para 70, Harms DP said. "Sgction

i



179(5)(d) does not apply to reconsideration by the NDPP of his own
eatlier decision but is limited to a review of a decision made by the DPP

or some other prosecutor for whom a DPP is responsible.”)

87  Section 24 of the NPA Act sets out the powers, duties and functions of

Directors and Deputy Directors. Section 24(1) provides as follows:-

“Subject to the provisions of section 179 and any other relevant section of
the Constitution, this Act or any other law, a Director referred fo in section

13(1)(a) has, in respect of the area for which he or she has been appointed,

the power fo —

(a) institute and conduct criminal proceedings and to carry out functions,

incidental thereto as contemplated in section 20(3);

(b) supervise, direct and co-ordinate the work and activities of all Deputy

" Directors and prosecutors in the Office of which he or she is the head;
(¢) supervise, direct and co-ordinate specific investigations; and

| (d) carry out all duties and perform all functioné, and exercise all powers
conferred or imposed on or ‘assigned to him or her under any law which

js in accordance with the provisions of this Act”

THE RELIEF WHICH APPLICANTS SEEK IS NOT COMPETENT

88 In this application, the applicants seek, in the main, an order in terms of

which the alleged President's “failures, alternatively, refusal’ are

30
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reviewed and set aside. [f this relief is granted, then in that event, the

applicants seek certain mandatory relief against the President.

All of the relief which the applicants seek is not competent in law for the

following reasons:

No failure to decide, or refusal to decide

In a letter dated 1 November 2016, the applicants requested the
President to suspend me and to conduct an enquiry into my fithess to
remain in office. In this letter, the applicants gave the President until 7

November 2016 to “please confirm, in writing, by no later than 16.00

Monday, 7 November 2016, that you will provisionally suspend Mr.

Abrahams ..."

It therefore appears that what the applicants wa.nt from the President is a
decision to suspend me and the other Respondents and then conduct an
enquiry into our fitness to remain in gffice. It is this decision which they
say the President has failed to take or has refused to take. There is no
merit in the applicants’ suggestions in this regard. The suggestions are

factually incorrect,

In a letter dated 7 November 2016 attached to the applicants’ founding
papers as FA12, the President requeéted the applicants to grant him “an

extension until 21 November 2016" to respond to their letter.

The President further said that his extension would give him “a proper

opportunity fo address what no doubt is a serious matter with the affected
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parties in anticipation of any action he may contemplate, after having

considered such in its entirety.”

It is clear that the President has not failed to take a decision. Nor has he.
refused to take a decision. On the contrary, on the evidence attached to
the applicants’ own founding papers, the President has asked for more
time to consider the applicants’ request and to address the request,
which even on the applicants' version is a serious matter, "with the

affected parties in anticipation of any action he may contemplate ..."

In the light of the above, the President has not failed to take a decision
and has not refused to take a decision. The review relief is therefore,
premature. The applicants cannot in law seek to revi*za.wr a decision or a
failure to take a decision whilst the relevant procesées are still in
progress. The applicants must wait for the Pfesident o say: | refuse your
request or they must wait for a reasonable time to lapse before they
contend that there -has been a failure to take a decision (within a

reasonable time).

Léqalitv review is not competent

In their founding affidavit, the applicants seek to review the alleged failure
and refusal to take a decision on the ground that the alleged failure and

refusal “are irrational and unfawful.”

Insofar as the applicants rely on alleged irrationality, the relief which they

seek can only be granted under what is now referred to as legality

32



review, i.e. judicial review other than in terms of the Promotion of

Administrative Justice Act 3 of 2000 (“PAJA").

98  The decision which the applicants requested the President to take is a

decision which they say must be taken in terms of the provisions of the

NPA Act.

09  Insofar as the President is required to take a decision in terms of the
NPA Act, such a decision would, once taken, constitute administrative
action in terms of section 1 of PAJA. Similarly, the failure to take a
decision in terms of the NPA Act onId constitute an administrative
action in terms of section 1 of PAJA. This being the case, judicial review
of these administrative actions can only be conducted in terms of section

6 of PAJA and not under legality review.

100 In:view of the fact that the decision and the failure to take a decision in
issue would constitute an administrative action in terms of section 1 of
PAJA, it follows that PAJA applies and legality review is not available in

circumstances where PAJA applies.

101 The applicants cannot ignore PAJA and seek to rely on legality review
where PAJA applies. In the premises, the relief which the applicants
seek is not competent and the application ought to be dismissed with.

costs.

If relief is sought in terms of PAJA

/-
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Even if it may be assumed, in favour of the applicants, that the relief
which they seek is sought under PAJA, the relief is still not competent in

law for the reasons which | set out below.

102.1 Firstly, no administrative action has been taken. PAJA applies
only if an administrative action has been taken. In this case, no

administrative action has been taken.

102.2 The President has simply asked for more time to consider the
applicants’ request. This does not constitute an administrative
action as defined in section 1 of PAJA and it is not reviewable. If

- that constitutes an adminisfrative acﬁon, then in that event, that
is what the applicants should be seeking to review — as it
appears from their notice of motion, they do not seek to review

the President’s decision to request more time to deal with their

request.

102.3 Secondly, the President has not failed or refused to take a

decision for purposes of sections 1 and 6 of PAJA.

Section 6(2)(g) of PAJA of PAJA provides that a Court has the power to
judicially review an administrative action if the action concerned “consists

of a failure to take a decision.” This is. not what happened in this case.

Section 6(3) of PAJA provides that if a person relies on section 6(2)(g) as
a ground of review, such a person may, in respect of a failure to take é
decision, where there is a duty to take a decision but there is no time

prescribed for taking the decision (such as in this case), institute judicial

/
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review proceedings on the ground that there has been an unreasonable
delay in taking the decision. This is not what happened in this case.

There has not been an unreasonable delay on the part of the President.

The applicants’ request for the President to take a decision and respond
to them within a matter of three business days is not only unreasonable
but it is also irrational. The time frame prescribed by the applicants
suggests that the Presi_dent only has the applicants’ matters to deal with
and does not have other matters of the State to deai with. It also
suggests that | and the other Respondents do not have a right to make

representations to the President before the decision in issue is taken.

The applicants’ unreasonable time frame. prescribed .for the President to
take a decision to respond to them fails to take into account that | and the
other Respondents are entitled to make representations to the President
as to why we should not be suspended and why an enquiry into our
fitness should not be held. For this purpose, the President must give us
a reasonable time to make such representations. We would object to the
President giving me a mere two days to respond to such an important

matter.

The applicants c[éarly only have themselves to blame for not haQing
received a response from the President — they simply have not given hfm
time to consider their request and for him to give me and the other
Respondents a reasonable opportunity to make representations as to

why the President should not take the decisions they want the President
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to take. This process on its own may take its own time depending on the
issues which the President may want the other Respondents and me to

respond to.

The time for the President to make a decision or to refuse to make a
decision is still to come. It is premature to pre-empt the President's
decision in this regard because such a decision can only be taken after |
and the other Respondents have exercised out rights to make
representations and to show cause why we should not be suspended

and why the President should not agree to the applicants’ request.

In relation to the above, the applicants have attached to their request to
the President, founding papers in an application to which the other
Respondents and | héve not yét filed answering . papers. In such
founding papers, they make allegations of political interference, politicél
influence and the like. The allegations of “sinister ulterior pﬁrposes" and
‘political agenda of others” are repeated in the present application. We
are preparing a full response to the applicants requesf to the President to
invoke section 12(6) and this ‘will be submitted to the President..
However, the fact that the applicants have repeatedly raised the issue of
"QIterior purposes”’, “political agenda”, “political interference” and “political
inﬂuence”, means that it is important in the decision they want the
President to make. These are aséertions which.have been made purely
as conclusions but where there are no facts to support this. In order to

respond to these allegations, we would request the President to obtain

from the applicants the evidence upon which this is based, other than
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media hype. We must be placed in the position to meaningfully respond

thereto.

Suspension and enquiry relief

As far as this relief is concerned, the applicants seek an order in terms of
which the President is directed fo suspend me and the other

Respondents and then hold an enquiry into our fitness to hold office.

- This relief is not competent.

110.1  Firstly, this relief is not competent due to the fact that it depends
on the review relief referred to above and | have demonstrated

that the review relief is not competent for the reasons stated

above.
110.2 Secondly, this relief is not competent for the following reasons:

The relief would result in the Court ‘violating the doctrine of separation of
powers. The decision to suspend and to hold an enquiry is vested upon
the President. The Court has no power to interfere with the President’s
decision making 'proéess in that regard. At best for the applicanté, the
Court is competent to direct the President to consider whether or not to

suspend and then hold an enguiry. |

Section 12(6) upon which the applicants rely does not impose a
peremptory obligation upon the President to suspend and hold an

enquiry. The section says that the President “may provisionally suspend’
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which means that the President is entitled to consider whether on the

facts before him, a suspension should be ordered.

The President cannot be divested of that power and should be allowed a
reasonable opportunity to consider whether or not to suspend. The
judiciary cannot step into the President’s shoes and then decide for the

President that a suspension and an enquiry shouid be held.

Section 12(8) also says that the enquiry which the President may direct is
one which “the President deems fit’ and not one which “the Court deems
fit" The relief which the applicants seek, as presently formulated, does

not make any provision for the President to consider as to which type of

‘an enquiry “the President deems fif' and the Court is also not asked to

determine the type of an enquiry which “the Court deems fit'.

Section 12(6)(e) deals with the question whether we should be paid a
salary if we are suspended. The applicants are silent on this issue in the
relief which they seék. This makes it even mdre impossible for the Court
to grant the relief which the applicants seek because doing so would
divest the PreSideht of the power to determine if we should be paid o:r. not

and if we should not be paid why we should not be paid.

On a proper interpretation of section 12(6) of the NPA Act, it does not
prescribe the reasons for which the President may suspend. This being
the case, the Court cannot prescribe reasons for suspension in

circumstances where the Legislature left that issue to the President.

38
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The fact that charges were brought against the three individuals and
have been withdrawn does not mean that the prosecutors must be
suspended. Otherwise, that would, for example, result in prosecufors
being dismissed for not obtaining convictions on the argument that they
should not have initiated prosecutions. That would result in an absurd

situation.

In the premises, the application ought to be dismissed with costs
including the costs consequent upon the employment of three counsel

representing the second, third and fifth Respondents. .

[ now turn to deal with lack of urgency and then respond to the other
allegationé contained in the applicants’ founding papers to the extent that
it is still necessary to do so. Where necessary, | would expand on some
of the issues dealt with above insofar as it concerns the basis on which |

state that the relief which the applicants seek is not competent in law.

BACKDROP TO THE PROSECLLTIONS.

During September 2016, Sello Maema (“Maema”), a Deputy Director of
PUinc Prosecutions in the Nationél Prosecutions Aﬂlthority ("NPA"), who
is:responsible for providing guidance for the investigéﬁon of the so-called
Rogue Unit, briefed the NPA management on the alleged involvement of

the Minister in the unlawful authorisation of the following:

120.1 Firstly, the payment by the SARS of Pillay’s penalty to the
Government Employee's Pension Fund (“GEPF”), which arose

as a result of him taking early retirement. The penalty amount
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120.2

120.3

122.1

was in excess of R 1.2 million. There is no dispute that this
amount was paid by the SARS on behalf of Pillay in
circumstances where Pillay ought to have paid this amount
himself by way of reducing his pension benefits as provided for in

the Rules of the GEPF.

Secondly, the reappointment of Pillay to his very same position in
circumstances where Pillay himseif said he wanted to take ea.rly

retirement.

Thirdly, the approval of Pillay's early retirement in circumstances
where the intention behind such early retirement was to gain
access to pension benefits for purposes of providing educatibnal
funding for Pillay’s children and his reappointment at the same
time — once the basis for him accessing the pension benefits had

been created.

" If there ‘is nothing wrong with the 'above, there is no reason why the
govérnment does not allow all of its employees who are struggling ’;0 pay
university fees fér their children, to notionally take early retiremeﬁt and
then get reappointed at the same time so as to enable them to obtain
access to their pension benefits to fund the university education of their

children.

Maema'’s briefing revealed that:

There had been an initial retirement application interposed by

Pillay in 2008, which is referred to in the affidavit of Coetzeg.
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122.2 In 2009 after Gordhan had been appointed as the Minister of
Finance, Pillay submitted a memorandum dated 27 November
2009 to Magashula attached hereto as SA9, who was the

Commissioner for SARS at the time (“the first retirement

application’).

122.3 In this memorandum, Pillay motivated his first retirement

application as follows:
“PURPOSE

The purpose of this memorandum is to explain that | have decided fo
take early retirement as well as to request you to consider to recommend
for possible approval by the Minister certain related matters that will flow

from my decision {o take early retirement.
DISCUSSION

As you know, | have been working in the Public Sector for the past 15
years, 10 which have been spent at SARS. For the most part of this
period, especially my tenure with SARS, | was expected to perform at a
very high level accompanied by the accountabilities that go Withbthe
performance of such a high-level job. This exacted its toll from me iﬁ the
sense that my health condition is slowly deteriorating. Added to this, my
family responsibilities, for a long time, suffered on account of the
dedication required by my job. With the aforementioned in mind, although

stifl not easy, | have decided fo take early retirement.

4



However, | am still enthusiastic about SARS and the tremendous
contribution it makes towards the establishment of an even better South
Africa for all its citizens. With a view thereto, | am willing to serve in

SARS in a different capacity where the demands of such a job will

positively support the reasons why | am in the first instance taking early

retirement.

Should you favourably consider my proposal to serve SARS in a different

capacity, such service will have to be subject to that ! be appointed as a

contract employee. This will allow me more flexibility in terms of making a

decision to finally part ways With SARS, should | come to such a

decision. The second condition would be that my early retirement is
approved in terms of the provisions of section 1 6(6)(a} and (b) of the
Public Service Act, meaning that the Minister, in terms of the provisions
of the abovementioned section approve that the penalty imposed on my
pension benefits per Rule 14.3.3(b) of the GEPF Rules be paid by SARS
to the GEPF. The GEPF has indicated that the penélty amount on my
pension benefits that the employer has to pay on "my behalf is R1 292

732,68.
R.ECOMMENDA TION
My recommendations are that you please:
take note that | intend fo take early retirement
‘consider fo approve that | be appointed in a different capacity in

| A

SARS on a contract basis; and



consider to recommend to the Minister that he approves that the
penalty on my pension benefits be paid on my behalf to the GEPF

by the employer.” (own emphasis).

123  What is clear from the above quoted memorandum is the following:

124

125

123.1

123.2

123.3

Pillay's decision to take early retirement was for personal
reasons which had absolutely nothing to do with the business of

SARS at the time (and even thereafter);

Pillay asked to be appointed in a “different capacity’ where the
demands of such a job will positively support “the reasons why |

am in the first instance taking early retirement.”

Pillay was fully aware that the ordinary consequences of his

decision to take early retirement were, amongst others, that he

himself would have 1o pav= a penalty to the GEPF for his_early

retirement and it is for this reason that he then asked SARS “fo
pay on behalf’ of himself the amount of R1292 732,68 as
opposed to him paying the penalty himself from his own personal

funds by having his pension benefits reduced

Also, in 2009 Pillay wrote directly to the Minister where he made a

different request to approve his application for early retirement for

different reasons (“the second retirement application”).

In his undated memorandum attached hereto as SA10 motivating the first

retirement application, Pillay said the following to the Gordhan:
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- *Dear Pravin,
PURPOSE

The purpose of this memorandum is to explain the reason why | have
decided fo take early retirement as well as fo request you to consider to
approve/recommend cerfain related matters that will flow from my

decision fo take early relirement.
DISCUSSION

I have reached the stage in my life where it has become a reality that |
had to make some very irﬁpoﬂant decisions about the education of my
thldren. The decisions | have taken will require a considerable capital
investment, money that can be raised by means of a bank loan, but
which would be prohibitively expensive in view of the current financial
circumstances where very high rates of interest are the order of the day
and indications are that this situation will prevail for the foreseeaple

future,

fn view of this | have decided to inform you that | intend to retire in 2009
when | reach the arge of b6 years. As | have already reached the ear}iest
optional retirement age of 55 years in ferms of the SARS retirehvent
provisions, the retirement benefits will provide me with a lump sum
benefit (which will financially support the decision | have made in terms of
the education of my children) as well as a monthly pension. Whilst this

may not be ideal in terms of maximum benefits when finally retiring, | am

po.



of the opinion that this is the best option available to me as far as my

children’s education is concerned.

This brings me fo the second issue at stake, namely how | view my
retirement as rafsed above. Clearly | am doing this on account of a
matter that has nothing to do with my work at SARS. | still feel that | am
still cabable of doing my work, | still have the enthusiasm and will to do it
and [ am of the opinion that through my work, | can still contribute to the
establishment of an even better South Africa for all its citizens. Taking
this into account, 1 will appreciate it if you will consider to approve that
immediately after rhy early retirement, appoint me to my current position
bqt as a contract employee. No legal provision prevepts you from making

such an appointment.

The third matter is slightly more technical and complicated and it
concerns my early retirement benefits payable by the GEPF. Although
the Rules of the GEPF provides that a member of the GEPF can elect to
retire from the age of 55 years and onwards, there is a penalty payable in
terms of the benefits ... As | intend to take early fetirément at age 56
years ... my pension benefits will be reduced by 14.4%. It was realized
th_at the provisions of this particular GEPF Rq!e prevented many
employees from an early retirement and in many instances those were
employees Departments would have liked to take early retirement. In an
effort to address the situation, Section 16(6) of the Public Setvice Act ...

was amended to provide that where early retirement is applied for,
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Ministers can approve that employers (Departments/SARS) pay the

penalties imposed on early retirees in terms of the GEPF Rules.

In view of this it will be appreciated if you, when | take early retirement,

would recommend to the Minister that SARS pay to the GEPF my early

retirement GEPF penalties. It is estimated that the penalties will amount

fo R 1064 257.

In the above quoted memorandumf

126.1

126.2

126.3

126.4

Pillay states correctly that what “f am doing ... has nothing to do

with my work at SARS”,

Pillay appreciates that “there is a penalty payable in terms of the
benefits” for the early retirement which he has decided to take

and that “my pension benefits will be reduced by 14.4%";

Pillay is wrong in saying that section 16(6) of the Public Service
Act was amended to enable government employers to pay
penalties on behalf of their early retirees. The correct position is
that the penalty is imposed by the Rules of the GEPF and the
relevant Rule has never béen amended to do that which Pillay

asked the then Commissioner at the time, Gordhan, to do;

Pillay further says that whatever decision he has taken (to take
early retirement) is intended to provide him with funds for
purposes of paying for the education of his children which funds

“can be raised by means of a bank loan, but which would be
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prohibitively expensive in view of the current financial
circumstances where very high rates of interest are the order of
the day ...” It is therefore clear from this that Pillay simply wanted
the taxpayers to save him from the ordinary_ financial hardships

which he was facing and to which all taxpayers were exposed.

126.5 The first retirement application was not approved. It is not clear

why it was not approved.

The fact that Pillay was fully aware of the afofesaid financial implications
of his decision to take early retirement is also apparent from the contents
of the so-called Symington memorandum. In this memorandum, which is
dated 17 March 2009 (which is a date long before the date of Pillay’s
above guoted memorandum dated 27 November 2009} Symington said

the following:

“However, the financial soundness of his decision to apply for early

retirement is dependent on whether the Minister approves the SA‘RS

payment of the benefit penalty to the GEPF as well as whether SARS

contracts with him for a period of post-retiremerit employment. This is

so because of the relatively young age at which he will be retiring vis-

a-vis his projected life expectancy. If the Minister does not approve

his request or if SARS does not contract with him after his retirement,

the financial risk of his decision will increase substantially and my

advice then would be for him fo review his application for_early

retirement and to possibly Withdfaw it.
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... However, if the minister is unable to approve his request relating fo
the penalty or if SARS is not in a position to contract with him after

retirement, then his_decision to apply for early retirement should

probably all together be withdrawn.” (own emphasis).

128 The following is apparent from the SYmington memorandum:

128.1 It is dated 17 March 2009 and it is addressed to the

Commissioner for SARS.

128.2 Gordhan was the Commissioner for SARS until May 2009 and
the Symington memorandum must have been addressed to him.
There is hothing to suggest that Gordhan did not receive the

Symington memorandum.

128.3 What Symington is saying in his memorandum is simply that
Pillay’s decision to take early retirement is not financially sound

uniess:

128.3.1 the Minister of Finance (at the time Trevor Manuel}
} approved the payment by SARS of the benefit
penalty to the GEPF the payhent of which would

have been triggered by Pillay’s eérly retirement; and

128.3.2  the Minister of Finance also approved that SARS

should at the same time enter into a post-retirement

contract of employment with Pillay. ‘
/.



128.4 Symington did not say that it was lawful for the Minister and
Magashule to burden the taxpayer with Pillay’s penalty in excess
of R 1.2 million levied upon him as a resuit of his decision fo take
early retirement — which decision was clearly alruse to enable
him to access his pension benefits to fund the education of his
children. At the end, the SARS ended up financing a big portion
of Pillay’s chifdren’s education as stated in the affidavits to which

| refer below.

129 The effect of the above is simply that in order to ensure that Pillay's early
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retirement did not result in financial prejudice to him, SARS had to pay
the benefit penalty to the GEPF. It then entered into a post-retirement
employment contract with him, otherwise, according to Symington,
Pillay's decision to take early retirement would not have been financially

sound.

It is for this reason that Symington made it clear in his memorandum that
unless the Minister of Finance approved the whole package, i.e. early
retirement, payment of the benefit penalty by SARS on behalf of Pillay,
and post-retirement employment of Pillay by SARS (without advertising
the position), Pillay would have had to forget about taking early
retirement and would have had to raise finance for the education of his

children differently.

At the time when the prosecutors decided to charge GP&M they did not

have the Symington memorandum in their possession. The Symington
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memorandum was provided to me when the applicants wrote to me on

14 Qctober 2016 and attached it as an annexure,

132  The other document which the prosecutors had in their possession is a
letter dated 12 August 2010 from Magashula, (reflecting the third
application from Pillay), who at the time was the Commissioner for
SARS, addressed to Gordhan. In this Iettér, Magashula motivated the

early retirement of Pillay with full retirement benefits as follows:
“1.  PURPOSE

The purpose of this memorandum is to request approval from the
Minister for the early retirement of Deputy Commissioner Ivan
Piflay with full retirement benefits from the GEPF as
contemplated in Rule 14.3.3(b) of the Government Employees
Pension Law, 1996, read with section 19 of the SARS Act and

section 16(2A)(a) of the Public Service Act, 1994...

In addition, approvél is requested to retain Mr. Pillay as Deputy
Commissioner of SARS on 3 year coniract with effect from 1

September 2010.

2. BACKGROUND

lvan has always excefled at his job and made a significant

contribution towards the establishment of SARS as the highly

respected organisation it is today.



For personal reasons, he has requested fo take early retirement

with effect from 1 September 2010. He is currently 56 years old.

Given Ivan’s critical skills, experience and leadership, he has
agreed fo remain in the employ of SARS as Depuly
Commissioner after his retirement on a 3 year contract to assist

with the on-going leadership transition.
3. MOTIVATION FOR RETIREMENT WITH FULL BENEFITS

In .the light of lvan’s exemplary service and sacrifice in the service
of the people of South Africa, it is requested that he be granted
early retirement with full retirement benefits as provided for in
section 19 of the SARS Act, 1997, read with section 16(2A)(a) of

the Public Service Act, 1994,

Over'the past 5 years the GEPF has approved over 3 thousand
requests from various govemment departments for staff
members to retire before the age of 60 with full benefits. The
statistics are atfached to this memorandum.as received from the

GEPF (Appendix).

In addition, the former and current Minister of Finance have
approved at least five such requests over the past 2 years (see

Appendix B).

4. MOTIVATION FOR REAPPOINTMENT ON A 3 YEAR

y .

CONTRACT



lvan’s wealth of knowledge and experience within SARS and his
leadership position as Deputy Commissioner is an invaluable
assel to the organisation. This is particularly important given the
on-going leadership transition within the organisation folloWing
the departure of the Minister and the recent restructuring of the
top leadership of the organisation as part of the revised

Operating Model.

Ivan’s continued guidance, leadership knowledge over the next 3
years will provide critical continuity as well as playing an
important mentoring role in developing the next generation of

SARS leaders.

in addition, it should be noted that there is precedent for the
termination of employment and immediate rehiring of the same
person under different conditions of employment within the public

secfor,

in this (egard, advice Wés sought from the Acting Director-
General :of the Department of Public Setvice and Adminfs;ration
... regarding the proposed early retirement of Mr. Pillay and his
retention on a 3 year contract. He confirmed that there is no
restriction on the appointment fo the public service or fo the
same department of a person who has left on an Employee
Initiated Severance Package (EISP) and that he was aware of

previous such cases.

/.
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5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The financial implications of early retirement with downscaled
benefits for Ivan will be considerable as his lump sum benefit will
decrease by R243605 to R121443 and his monthly pension by

R47402 to R48563.

The financial implicatfons for SARS, should approval be granted
to allow Ivan to take early retirement with full retirement benefits,
will be an amount of R1 258 345.99 which SARS will be liable to
pay the GEPF in terms of the provisions of section 17(4) of the

GEPF Law, 1996.”

The above guoted memorandum concludes with a recommendation that

‘the Minister approves Pillay’s early retirement without downscaling his

retirement benefits and that the Minister also approves the reappointment
of Pillay as Deputy Commissioner of SARS on a 3 year contract with
effect from 1 August 2010 with the same remuneration that he was

earning prior to the so-called early retirement.

The recommendations were approved by the Mihister on 13 October
2010. It is worth noting that the then Deputy Minister of Finance, Mr.
Dhladhia Nene, did not approve the recommendation despite the fact that
the memorandum hade provision for his approval to be obtained. |
understand that it is also part of internal requirements in government that
a Minister approve a recommendation only after the Deputy Minister has

I
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applied his mind to it. This did not happen in this case.
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The prosecutors also had in their possession the following documents
which they considered when they made the decision to bring the charges

in issue:

Affidavit of Nico Johan Coetzee

The affidavit deposed to by Nico Johan Coetzee who was previously
employed by the South African Revenue Service is attached hereto as
SA11. There are other documents attached to this affidavit and | refer to

them individually below.

In his éffidavit, Coetzee says that in 2008, he Was instructed to prepare a
ministerial  memorandum to be signed by Gordhan (who was
Commissioner of SARS at the time), to recommend to the then Minister

of-Finance (Trevor Manuel) that he approve Pillay's early retirement.

Coetzee further states that:

I awaited the approval by the Minister of the request by Mr.
Pillay. In October 2009 while waiting for the approval of the
memorandum, | received a revised memorandum from the office
of the Commissioner, Mr Oupa Magashula. The memorandum
contained different reasons from my original 'memorandum as fo
why the Minister should approve Mr. Ivan Pillay’s early
retirement, The reasons on the revised memorandum were that

Mr. Pillay wished to go on early retirement in order to enable him

54



fo provide for his children’s education and not as | have
previously stated that he wished to pursue other interests. |
raised concems to the Commissioner through the e-mails dated
the 8" and the 9" October 2009 respectively, that if the Minister
should approve Mr. Pillay's application on the grounds of
personal interest may creale a precedent in terms of which, other
employees might come forward with similar request for early

refirement.”

139 In the e-mails dated S'and 9 QOctober 2009 referred to in his affidavit,

Coetzee said the following to Magashula:
“Hj Oupa

Luckily for me | have dealf with this mattér during June this year
but | do not know why the matter Wés not promoted at the time as
! have certainly started the process. | have amended the two
submissions (attached) to fit in with Mr. Pillay’s latest request. It
is not unusual that a retired employee is re-appointed after

retirement in a confract capacity. What may raise some

evebrows in this particular case is that the employee is appointed

in the sams position he held before his retirement, Ordinarily

such a re-appointment will be to a different and a lower-graded
position. It will have fo be decided if satisfactory reasons can be
given for the re-appointment in the same position. We had two

similar applications for early retirement, both which were not



approved by the Minister as the Minister could not find sufficient
reason to approve early retirement. In terms of section 16(6) of
the Public Service Act, the Minister only has consider if
SUFFICIENT REASON exists to approve Mr. | Pillay’s early

retirement ...” (Own emphasis).
In Coetzee’s e-mail of 9 October 2009, he said:

“I am resending this e-mail on account of a slight change | have
made fo the two attached documents. The changes indicate that
the reason why Mr. Pillay is requesting approval for early
retirement is to provide for his children’s education and not as |
have previously stated that he wished to pursue other interests.
You will now have fo consider fo recommend and the Minister
consider fo approve if this is SUFFICIENT REASON\ fo
recommend/approve Mr. Pillay’ application for early retirement.

If his application is duly recommended/approved, if coufd

technically be construed that SARS is willing to contribute from its

budaget an amount of + R340 000 towards the education of his

children. | admit it is a rather cynical viewpoint, but if can be a
viewpoint that may be held by other parties as well and that:may

put vourself: and the Minister in a tight spot, especially becatse

Mr.  Pillay was re-appointed in his present position. _The

argument may be that he was able to confinue with his present

functions. but his early retirement and reappointment was purely
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to assist him to be able to provide for his children’s education,

with a R340 000 “contribution” from SARS.” (Own emphasis).

Pillay’s contract of employment

Pursuant to Magashula’s recommendation, the Minister approved Pillay's
early retirement and re-appointment. The approved re-appointment was
to be for a _period of three years. The Minister also approved that Pillay’s

penalty to the GEPF be paid by SARS.

Despite the fact that the Mini_ster approved Pillay’s re-appointment to be
for a period of three years, on 7 February 2011, Magashula.and Pillay
c_oncluded a five year contract a copy of which is attached hereto as
SA12. This contract was clearlyno-t approved by the Minister and all the
payments made in terms thereof were not :Iawfu!ly authorised.
Magashula and Pillay were fully aware of this illegality. They acted in
contravention of the émpowering approval given by the Minister to

conclude a three year contract (even though that "A\é\pproval itself was

unlawful).

The éforesaid contract was to hav.e come to an end in 2016. But, on 26
March 2014, the Minister concluded a fresh contract, just weeks before
his. appointment to a different ministry. In terms of that contract, Pillay
was appointed with effect from 1 April 2014 to 31 Decémber 2018. There
does not appear to be a lawful reason for concluding another contract

before the expiry of the contract concluded in February 2011.

Affidavit of Chrisna Susanna Visser /é
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143 Visser's affidavit which is attached hereto as SA13 largely confirms that

there was no business reason for SARS to pay Pillay’s penalty.

144 Visser deals with other things in her affidavit, amongst others, the
circumstances under which Pillay concluded an employment termination
agreement with one Andries Petrus Janse Van Rensburg, referred to in
the affidavit as Skollie. Of relevance for purposes of this application,

Visser says the following:
[} | 8

Nic Coetzee and | were both uncomfortable W)’fh the request as it

was for personal reasons and we could find no business reasons

to pay the penalty on behalf of Mr._Pillay. We were requested to

draff a memorandum to the Minister of Finance for his approval,

Nic Coelzee and i both advised Mr. Qupa Magashula in the

Commissioner’s boardroom that it is not advisable fo continue

with the early retirement of Mr. Pillay because it was for personal

reasons and not business reasons. We were also concerned that

it could set a precedent whereby others could come and claim

the same benefit. We informed him that no such case was

recommended in the past as it was for personal reasons. He

instructed us to continue with the memorandum.

10




| was presented with the signed approved memorandum by the
Minister and ! initiated the process of the exit of Mr. Ivan Pillay
from the Pension Fund and his re-employment on a contract
basis. Part of this process was to sign a contract of employment

with Mr. Ivan Pillay. | _drafted a three year contract of

employment fo be signed by Mr. _Oupa Magashula as the

Commissioner and Mr.  Ivan Pillay as the employee. The

contract document was however amended fo five years ... Mr.

Oupa Magashula requested that | sign as a witness. | queried
the matter of the contract that was amended to five years. Mr.
" Oupa Magashula indicated that they decided that it will be five
years and nof three énd continued to sign the contract. | signed
as Witness-’as | believed it was merely to indicate thét it was Oupa
Magashula who signed the contract. | advised but the advice

was cast aside and nof taken.
11

In 2014 a new contract of employment ... was requested from my
Office via ‘Rita Hayes who was employed by Mr. Ivan Pillay. |

enquired why a new coniract was needed as the previous

employment contract was still valid however | was just advised

that the Minister Pravin Gordhan and Mr. Ivan Pillay wanted to

conclude a new contract. | then continued fo e-mail a draft

contract to:her office. | was presented with a new confract of

employment to implement for Mr. Ivan Piflay.” (Own emphasis).
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Pillay's aforesaid contract was concluded in April 2014 — the very last
year of the Minister's tenure as Minister of Finance. In view of the fact
that Pillay's contract of employment signed in February 2011 was still
valid and of full force and effect until February 2016, there was no lawful
reason to conclude a new contract other than to unduly benefit Pillay with

a further contract of employment for another period of two ‘years after

what would have been the end of his contract concluded in February

2011.

Statement of the Minister

In his own statement attached hereto as SA14, which statement was not
made under oath, the Minister says the following about Pillay's early

retirement and his approval thereof;

“15. Mr. Pillay took early retirement and was re-appointed when
| was Minister of Finance. | seem fo recall that it happened

in early 2010.

16. The then Commissioner of SARS, Mr. Oupa Magashula,
" addressed a memorandum to me on 12 August 20170,
seeking my approval for Mr. Pillay’s .early retirement and
re-employment on a fixed term contract. { was told that Mr.
Pillay sought in this way fo gain access fo his pension fund

fo finance the education of his children. | understand that

Mr. Magashula had established from enquiries made with

the Department of Public Service and Administration that



the terms of Mr. Pillay’s early retirement and re-appointed
were lawful and not unusual. | approved Mr. Magashula’s
proposal because | believed it to be entirely above board
and because | thought it appropriate fo recognise the
invaluable work Mr. Pillay had done in the transformation

of SARS since 1995."

147  The Minister's statement creates an impression that he approved Pillay’s

148

eatly retirement package on the basis that Pillay needed money to
finance his children’s education. This, however, is not what is stated in
Magashula’s memorandum to him of August 2010. The issue of raising
funds to provide for the education of Pillay's children is referre_d to in
Pillay's memorandum to fhe Minister in 2008, which is not the one which

the Minister approved in 2010.
What the Minister does not say in his unsworn statement is the following:

148.1 The legal basis on which he approved the request that Pillay's

penalty to the GEPF be paid by SARS;

148.2 The fact that the memorandum which he approved in 2010 does
hot say anything about Pillay wanting to access his pension

benefits in order to provide for the education of his children;

148.3 That he became aware of Pillay’s need for money to educate his
children when he still worked with him whilst he was still the

Commissioner for SARS;



148.4

148.5

148.6

Why he did not approve the request made to him by Pillay in

2008;

Why he considered it to be above board to approve the early
retirement and re-appointment of Pillay in circumstances where
he knew that upon early retirement, the position of Pillay had to
he advertised to enable interested parties to apply to be
considered for the position ~ and more so when Magashula
resign.ed from the position of Commissioner for SARS pursuant
to allegations that he offered a member of the public employment
at the South African Revenue Service without following the

prescribed recruitment procedures;

That he was in fact a party to the “enquiries made With. the
Department of Public Service and Administration” referred to in
paragraph 16 of his statement. In this regard, in an e-mail dated
23 July 2010 attached hereto as SA15 (and which was obtained
only in the review process), addressed to the then Acting
Director-General of the Department of Public Service *And

Administration, Magashula said:
“Dear Kenny,

Thank you very much for a quick discussion yesterday with
my Minister regarding the early retirement of our Deputy
Commissioner of SARS. In my discussion this morning with

my Minister we agreed that | should ask you for a written
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response to our discussion and the questions | posed

yesterday ..." (Own emphasis).

149  The reference to “my Minister” in the above quoted e-mail is a reference
to Gordhan. It is clear from the above quoted e-mail that Gordhan was
fully involved in the process leading to Pillay's early retirement. The
enquiries referred fo in his statement were made at his request, yet he

does not say this in his statement.

150 In his aforesaid e-mail, Magashula did not enquire about the payment of
Pillay’s penalty to the GEPF or the legality of paying it. Of relevance for

purposes of the charges in issue, he asked the following questions:

» ‘“Is there a precedent for authorising early retirement and
re-engaging the same person on a short contract
completely different from permanent employment, with a
scaled down responsibility, salary and other conditions of

employment?

» Related to the first bullet point — do ybu have any statistics
of how many of these early refirement cases without re-

engagement have been processed thus far?”

151 The response from the Acting Director-General of the Department of
Public Service and Administration is attached hereto as SA16 and it is
silent on the question whether it was lawful for SARS to pay Pillay's
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penalty to the GEPF. This response must necessarily be silent on this
issue due to the fact that the issue was not raised. In fact, the response
shows that what was asked in the discussion was the so-called
Employee Initiated Severance Package, which is completely different

from what Pillay wanted to do.

The Employee Initiated Severance Package was introduced into the
public service in terms of a ministerial determination made by the

Minister of Public Service and Administration. A copy of the relevant

Vdetermination is attached hereto as SA17 Paragraph 71 of this

determination says that it is “applicable to all employees appointed in
terms of the Public Service Act, 1994, as amended.” Pillay was employed
in terms of the South African Revenue Service Act 34 of 1997 and the
determination did not apply to him. Furthermore, the determination did
not apply to Pillay due to the fact that in terms of paragraph 3 thereof, its

purpose is to:

“... allow employees affected by transformation and restructuring
who wish fo exif the public service, to apply for an employee-

initiated severance package.”

Pillay's application was in any event not made in terms of the ministerial

determination referred to above,

What appears from the Minister's statement is that he was not a party to

the process which led to Pillay’'s application for early retirement and re-

appointment and that he only became involved in that process when he

/-
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was Minister of Finance. As demonstrated by the documents to which |

have referred above, this is simply not true.

(n his memorandum dated 27 November 2009, Pillay requested that his
approval be granted in terms of section 16(6)(b) of the Public Service

Act, 1994, It provides:

“(b) If an employee is allowed fo so retire, he or she shall
notwithstanding ~ anything  fo the contrary contained  in
subsection (4) be deemed to have retired in terms of that
subsection, and he or she shall be entitled to such pension as
he or she would have been entitled to if he or she had retired

from the public service in terms of that subsection.”

Section 16(4) of the Public Service Act, 1994 provides that an officer,
other than a member of the services or an educator or a member of the
State Security Agency who has reached the age of 60 years may, subject

in every case to the approval of the relevant executive authority, be

retired from the public service. Pillay had not reached the age of 60

years provided for in this section. This being the‘case, section 16(4) of

the Public Service Act did not apply to him.

Section 16(6)(a) of the Public Service Act, 1994 upon which Pillay aiso
relied in his aforesaid memorandum provides that an executive authority
may, at the request of an employee, allow him or her to retire from the
public service before reaching the age of 60 years, notwithstanding the

absence of any reason for dismissal in terms of section 17(2), if sufficient
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reason exists for the retirement. This provision simply authorises the
executive authority, the Minister in this case, to authorise the early
retirement of an employee who has not yet reached the age of 60 years.
This provision, howéver, is silent as far as the retirement or pension

benefits are concerned.

In his letter to the Minister referred to above, Magashula sought the
Minister's approval in terms of section 16(2A)(a) of the Public Service Act

1994, This section provides that:

“(2ANa) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsections (1) and
(2)(a), an officer, othér than a member of the services oran
educator or a member of the State Security Agency shalf
have the right fo retire from the public service on the date
on which he or she attains the age of {55 years, or any date

after that date.” | .

This section simply creates a right of a Public Service Employee to retire
at the age of 55 years or after attaining that age. The executive

authority’s approval is not required for that purpose.

In his letter to the Minister, Magashula further relied on Rule 14.3.3(b) of
the. Rules of the GEPF. Rule 14.3.3 deals with members with 10 years

and more pensionable service. Rule 14.3.3(b) provides that:

“tb) A member who retires on account of a reason mentioned in
Rufes 14.3.1(d) or (e) and who has at least 10 years’

pensionable service to his or her credft, shall be paid the
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benefits referred to in Rule (a) above: Provided, that such

benefits shall be reduced by one third of one percent for each

complete month between the member's actual date of

retirement _and _his _or her pension-retirement date.”(Own

emphasis).

It is clear from Rule 14.3.3(b) that it only applies to a person who retires

on account of a reason mentioned in Rules 14.3.1(d) or (e).

Rule 14.3.1(d) deals with a member who retires before his or her
pension-retirement date but not on a date prior to the member attaining
the age of 55 years: Provided that such a member has the right to retire.
on that date in terms of the provisions of any Act which regulates his or
her terms and conditions of employment. Pillay had a right to retire in

terms of the provisions of the Public Service Act 1994 referred to above.

Accordingly, Rule 14.3.1(d) is the one which applied to him.

Rule 14.3.3(b) to which reference has already. been made above,
provides that a person who retires on account of a reason mentioned in

Rules 14.3.1(d) or (e) shall be paid “the benefits referred fo in Rule (a)

above: Provided, that such benefits shall be reduced by one third of one

percent for each complete month between the member’s actual date of

retirement and his or her pension-retirement date.” This Rule applied to

Pillay because in terms of Rule 14.3.1(b) he was retiring “before his or

her pension-retirement date in terms of the law governing his or her

| e
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terms and conditions of service” being the Public Service Act to which

reference has already been made above.

There is no prov-isEon in the Public Service Act, 1994, in particular in
section 16 thereof, in terms of which provision is made for SARS {o pay
what Pillay himself described in his memorandum as “the penally
imposed on my pension benefits per Rule 14.3.3(b) of the GEPF Rules.”
Rule 14.3.3(b) of the GEPF Rules simply makes provision for the
reduction of the pension benefits of a person who retires before his or her
pension-retirement date and does not make provision for the employer of

such a person to pay the penalty which is imposed in terms thereof.

When the prosecutors decided to bring charges, they clearly took into
account that there was no authorisation in law for SARS to pay the

penalty, effectively financing Pillay’s retirement and education of his

children.

In addition, the prosecutors were also influenced by the fact that the so-
called early retirement was in fact not an early retirement at all. This is

so due to the fact that Pillay did not intend to retire and both the Minister

and Magashula were fully aware that Pillay did not truly intend to retire.
The fact that Pillay did not genuinely truly intend to “retire” is' not

concealed in his memorandum dated 27 November 20089.

In his aforesaid memorandum, a false impression is created that Pillay
was to serve SARS in a “different capacity’ where the demands of such a

job will “positively. support the reasons why | am in the first instance
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taking early retirement.” The reason given for early retirement is that “my
health condition is slowly deteriorating’ and “my family responsibilities,
for a long time, suffered on account of the dedication required by my job.”
Despite all of this, Pillay was at the very same time reappointed to the

very same position from which he so desperately wanted to “retire”.

In the light of the above, the prosecutors were quite correct in bringing

the charges against the three individuals.

In addition to the above, the fact that Pillay was reappointed at the same
time that he went on early retirement clearly meant as far as the
prosecutors were concerned, that the position of Deputy Commissioner
of SARS, to which he was reappointed immediately was not advertised
and other interested pérties were not given an opportunity to apply to be
appointed to that position. This would have been necessary due to the
fact that at the very moment that Pillay took early retirement, his position
of Deputy Commissioner became vacant and the position had to be
advertised to givé all interested parties an opportunity to apply for it. This

was nof done.

The applicants’ reliance upon the provisions of section 17(4) of the GEPF
Law, 1996; Rule 20 of the Rules of the GEPF; and the contents of the
Government Employees Pension Fund Members. Guide is not only
incorrect, it is also misleading the public because the applicants’ papers

have been published for all to see.

Section 17(4)
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Section 17(4) of the GEPF Law, 1996 deals with a situation where the

employer or if any legislation adopted by parliament places an additional

financial obligation on the GEPF. In that event, the employer or the

government shall pay the financial obligation it has placed on the GEPF.
This is not what happened in this case. The penalty obligation was
imposed upon Pillay by the Rules of thé GEPF and not upon the GEPF.
The penalty obligation also did not arise from the employer's action or

operational requirements — it arose from Pillay’s early retirement.

Section 17 df the GEPF Law deals with the funding of the GEPF. The
section does not deal with penalties which must be paid by employees
who are taking early retirement. The section is clearly not concerned
with penalties which the Rules of the fund impose upon retiring
employees. The GEPF is not funded by penalties levied upon early

retirees.

Section 17(4) makes it clear that it is.concerned with any'action taken by
the employer or if any legislation: adopted by parliament (places any
additional financial obligation on thg Fund) the person who places _such
an obligation on the Fund is then made responsible to péy the fund “an

amount which is required to meet such obligation.”

In the case of Pillay, no obligation whatsoever was placed on the GEPF.
On the contrary, the obligation was placed on Pillay to pay the penalty.

in the premises, section 17(4) of the GEPF Law does not assist the

/

applicants.
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Rule 20

Rule 20 of the Rules of the GEPF similarly does not assist the applicants.
Rule 20 deals with compensation to the GEPF on retirement or discharge

of a member prior to attainment of the member’s pension retirement date.

The Rule applies to a situation where a member “becomes entitled in
terms of Rule 14.8 to the pension benefits in terms of a severance
packagé, referred to in that Rule, or is discharged prior fo his or her
pension retirement date and at such retirement ... in terms of the Rules
becomes enﬁtled to the payment of an annuity or gratuity or both an
annuity and a gratuity in terms of the Rules, and any of these actions

result in an additional financial liability to the fund.”

In this case, the GEPF did not atiract “an additional financial liability.” On
the contrary, it is Pillay who attracted a penalty for himself. He, and not

SARS, had to pay the penalty.
The Guide

The applicants’ reliance on the Government Employees Pension
Members Guide is:completely wrong. The sentence quoted therefrorh, is

inconsistent with what is contained in the GEPF Law and the Rules of the

GEPF.

It cannot be, as the applicants are suggesting that the guide supersedes
the GEPF Law and the Rules. In any event, on any proper and rational

interpretation of the guide upon which the applicants seek to rely, the
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only situation which could be contemplated therein is where “the
emplbyer granted permission for your early retirement’ for the employer's
own operational reasons. There can be no basis on which the
government should fund the early retirement of its employees in
circumstahces where that has nothing to do with the government's

operational reasons.

In any event, the Minister, Pillay and Magashula did not rely for their
actions on the provisions upon which the applicanté now seek to rely.
They did not rely on such provisions simply because they knew that such
provisions did not apply. In addition, if these prdvisibns were applicable,
it would not have been necessary for. Pillay and Ma.gashula to motivate
the payment of the penalty to the Minister — they would have told him that

he must simply exercise his powers in terms of those provisions.

When regard is had to the above background and provisions of the
GEPF Law and the GEPF Rules, it cannot be said that there was no
rational basis to bring charges against the Minister, Pillay and
Magashula.  Furthermore, as demonstrated aboﬁe, the applicants’
reliance on Rule 20, section 17(4) and the GEPF Guide referred to above
is clearly incorrect and cannot be used to ju§tify the applicants’
contentions that there was no rational basis to charge the aforesaid three

individuals.
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IN FRAUDEM LEGIS

When regard is had to the information which the prosecutors had in their
possession, there was a rational basis to conciude that the early
refirement transaction was in fraudem legis or that it was a classical

simulated transaction.

183 A simulated transaction is one which is called by a name by which it is

184

not. The parties thereto call it by a name which it is not and they do not
implement it according to the terms which are communicated to the
outside world — but it is implemented according to some terms that are

kept between theméelves.

In this case:

184.1 The outside world wés told fhat Pillay took early retirement;
184.2 In fact and in truth, Pillay never retired;

184.3 Pillay remained in the very same position of deputy
commissioner which, according to his first memorandum, he

desperately wanted to retire from;

184.4 The GEPF was made to understand that Pillay was leaving the
public service by way of an early retirement, when in fact he was

not leaving the public service;

184.5 The transaction was concluded to enable Pillay to have access to

his pension benefits to provide for the education of his children;

g
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184.6 The early retirement transaction would not have been concluded

if Pillay did not need to provide for the education of his children;

184.7 The Minister approved a three-year contract of employment;
however, Pillay and Magashula concluded a five-year term
contract commencing in February 2011 with the intended end

date being in 2016;

184.8 The transaction was therefore, not a genuine, lawful and proper
early retirement transaction because an early retirement
transaction results in the retiree actually leaving t_he employment
of the employer. It is common cause that Pillay did not leave the
pubfic service, nor was it intend that he would leave the public

service.

- Ordinarily, when a person retires and the position from which he or she

retires requires to be filled, the position is advertised for interested parties
to apply to be considered for it. When Pillay retired, if he retired at all, his
position ought to have been advertised for interested parties to apply for
izt. The Minister as the custodian of public finances, ought to have
satisfied himself that this was done. He did not because he knew fhat

that is not what was intended to happen.

It is common practice that the charge of theft is always preferred as an
alternative to a charge of fraud. | did not draft the charge sheet and |
must admit that the charges could have been drafted more eloquently.

The fact that the charges were not a model of clarity does not mean that




187

188

189

180

191

they were politically motivated or that there was no basis for them,
Charges are in any event amended all the time and this cannot be
excluded. Furthermore, the accused persons themselves could have
raised this lack of clarity as an issue at the trial — it happens all the time
and does not form a basis for the impeachment of the prosecutor, let

alone th_e National Director of Public Prosecutions.

THE DECISION TO PROSECUTE

The final decision to prosecute was approved by the third and fourth

Respondents.

The decision to prosecute was taken pursuant to a consideration of the

available evidence at the time, which | have outlined above.
The applicants insinuate that | took the decision. | did not.

In my briefing to Parliament of 4 November, | made it clear that | was

open to reconsidering the charges. In this regard, | said the following:

- “f am more than willing to revfew any matter if somebody applies to
- me to review that matter. The decision to prosecdte was made on the
- recommendation of prosecutors by the Special Director who heads the

priority crimes investigation unit in consultation with the director of

public prosecution is of North Gauteng.”

Oddly, the Applicants have mis-characterised this as backpedalling.
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The argument that the non-availability of an opportunity to make
representations prior to the institution of a prosecution indicates bias on
the part of the decision-maker does not hold water. It is well within the
discretion of a prosecutor to opt to consider representations after the
institution of the prosecution. The provisions of s.179(5)(d) of the

Constitution are unambiguous in this regard.

As we have seen, the Minister's attorney on 24 August demanded that he
be informed of any future steps with fespect to his client. | responded oh
25 August that | would consider his request once the investigation was
finalized. In a letter of 29 August (attached hereto as Annexure SA18)
the Minister's attorney advised that he believed that the matter had now
been finalized and stated that he wished to offer representations. To this,
Pretorius on 5 September requnded that it was he that would be making
the decision, but that it was premature to make representations at that
stage. However, Pretorius advised if the Minister did wish to interpose
any comments, he should resort to é warning statement. This offer was
never taken up by the Minister. Against that background, the allegation

that anyone reneged on an undertaking to the Minister is not well taken.

In contending that the Minister was entitled to make representations prior
to the institution of charges, the applicants are effectively contending that
high government officials must obtain special treatment from the NPA. It
is exceedingly rare for such an opportunity to be afforded to those who

are subject to NPA investigation. There is no reason to treat the Minister
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195 In a 14 October 2016 letter (a copy of which is attached to the founding

affidavit as SA19), the Applicants wrote:

“Should you not unconditioﬁaﬂy withdraw the charges against the
Minister or furnish the information sought [by 16:00 on 21 October
2016], our clients will assume that no reasons for_fhe decisions, and
no documents other than the documents annexed to this letter, exist in

support of the charges’.

196 One of the documents attached to the applicant’s letter was the
Symington memorandum and this is the first time that this memorandum

was brought to my attention and that of the prosecutions team.

197 Once again, the inarticulate premise is that a high office holder is entitled
to impose special conditions that would not be available to any ordinary
citizen subject to prosecution. As foreshadowed above, this is
antithetical to the principl_e of equality before the law as enshrined in

section 9 of the Constitution.
198 The applicants’ added:

“In respect of both charges, even if it is assumed (contrary to the
dispositive analysis above) that the conduct of the minister of finance
was not strictly in accordance with the law. There is no basis for
imputing a fraudulent or furtive intention to him and none has been

suggested.”
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Anticipating what is set out below, | pause to comment that, upon review,
my conclusion was that the available evidence as gathered in the course
of the assessment of representations, was indeed not sufficient to create
reasonable prospect of a successful prosecution as far as the presence
of a criminal intention was concerned.  The central fallacy of the
Applicants’ argument is that this conclusion retrospectively renders the

institution of the prosecution irrational, or the product of pressure.

While, in light of what is set forth above, the prosecutors believed that
there was strong evidence that the 2008/2010 decisions were unlawful,
and that the.re were therefore reasonable prospects of a successful
prosecution, it was not clear that the State would be in a position to prove
beyond a reasonable doubt the element of intent. As noted elsewhere in
this affidavit it is trite that intention as an element of a criminal offence
falls to be inferred from an overail conspectus of the alleged facts.
Reasonable minds can differ, especially before evidence is heard, as to

whether the facts, if true would support an inference of intent.
The applicants’ attorneys said that:

“The main reason for his decision [not to make representations] is that
he does not have any confidence in the NDPP's ability or willingness

to afford him a fair hearing.

First we repeatedly asked the NPA fo afford the Minister an
| opportunity to make representations to them before they decided

whether to prosecute the Minister but they spurned out request.

b
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Second, the NDPP's conduct at his press conference announcing the

decision to charge the Minister made clear his commitment to the

prosecution.

Third, having now had an opportunity to study the charges against the
Minister, it is also clear to us that they manifest a resolute and not well
founded determination to prosecute the Minister at all costs. Any

repreéenfations to the NDPP would accordingly be pointless.”

Their conclusion that it would be futile for the Minister to offer
representations is ill-founded. No reasons are offered for the Minister's
lack of confidence in me. If the basis for his foreboding was that it was |
who made the decision to prosecute in the first instance, that was, as

shown herein, an erroneous assumption.

The suggestion that | could not be sWayed by representations, is equally
without merit. There is simply no logical connection the institution of
charges by experienced senior prosecutors, in whom | had every
confidence, and my willingness to be persuaded in light of further

information, that the threshold for continued prosecution had not been

satisfied.

| responded to the applicants’ letter on 17 October 2018, (a copy of
which is attached to the founding affidavit as SA20), confirming that the
decision to prosecute was taken by Pretorius, not by myself; that |

considered myself empowered to review the decision; that | had received

J -
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representations from Pillay and Magashula: and that the Minister should

make representations by 18 October 20186.

By way of a letter to me dated 18 October, (a copy of which is attached
hereto as $A21) the Applicants reiterated that | had disabled myself from

applying an independent and objective mind.

Representations Received

On. 17 October 2016 Magashula and Pillay, through their legal
representatives, made representations'to me in which they requested me

to review the decision taken by the third respondent.

On 18 October 2016 those verbal representations were reduced to

writing.

Counsel on behalf of Pillay, Advocate Nazeer Cassim SC raised. the

opinion by Symington dated 17 March 2009 in the following context:

“The purpose of this note is to crisply record the grounds whereupon
where respectfully submit, Pillay did not have any intention to commit
the offences in respect of which he now slands arraigned. In
essence, Pillay was guided by the opinion of Viok Symington
(“Syminglon”) a respected legally frained official of SARS at the
material time which advised that Pillay’s contemplated early retirement
from the GEPF, in his application to the Minister of Finance o waive
early retirement penalty and is requested to be appointed on contract

after his early retirement from the GEPF were technically possible

80
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under the rules of the GEPF read fogether with the employment

policies of SARS.”
209 A copy of these written representations is attached hereto marked SA22.

210 On 18 October 2016 Magashula’'s legal representatives, Advocate PJJ
De Jager SC reduced Magashula’s representations into writing attached
hereto as SA23 and states the following concerning the Symington

memorandum in particular:

“It is true that Mr Magashula promoted and supported Mr Pillay’s
request for early retirement. He was afforded a memorandum from
the Legal and Policy Division (Mr Viok Symington) and he followed all
| procedures to the letter. He sent a memorandum' on 12 August 2010
i.to accused NO. = 3 who approved. With all due respect, any
" reasonable employer would under the circumstances have approved.
However, even if you doubt the correctness of the anisfer’s exercise
of his discretion, that is still a far cry from any criminal charge, let

alone fraud, theft or otherwise.”

211 As a result 6f these representatioﬁs, | authorized furrther investigation of
the matter, in particular because the import' of the Symington
memorandum was that Pillay, Magashula and similarly the -Minister,
lacked the necessary intention to commit an unlawful act. To that end,

further statements were taken.

212 The Minister did not make representations, as Pillay and Magashula did.

(The Minister, however, subsequently indicated that he aligned himself
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with representations that had been included in the letter of the applicants

of 14 Qctober.)

Decision to Review the Charges

After affording all interested parties including the applicants in this matter,
the DPCI, SARS, Pillay, Magashula and the Minister an opportunity to
make representations, and considering the representations that were
made by those who elected to do so, | then took the decision fo review

and set aside the charges on 30 October 2016.

This decision was taken on the premise that it would be difficult to prove
the requisite intention to act unlawfully beyond a reasonable doubt on the
strength of the new information that was provided and which was not
before the prosecutions team when the third respondent took the

decision to prosecute.

| announced my decision at a press conference on 31 October; a copy
thereof is attacﬁed as SA24. Once égain, the essence of applicants’
complaint is not so much that | decided to withdraw the charges, but the
manner in which | made that decision known. My assessment was that,
in light of the wide publicity the charges had attracted, coupled with the
fact that they had been initially announced at a public event it was
appropriate that the discontinuation of the prosecution be similarly made

known to the public and the media.

The applicants disingenuously suggest that the withdrawal of the charges

somehow vindicated their position and constituted an admission that the

82
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institution of the charges was a mistake. But the withdrawal of the
charges pursuant to the review is an instance of the system working
precisely as envisaged'by the NPA Act. The initiation of the charges
elicited representations, which in turn facilitated further consideration and
uncovered material suggesting that for a number of reasons, and in light
of the fresh material, the three individuals may not have acted with a

criminal intention required for the offences of fraud and theft.

AD SERIATIM

Prior to dealing with the allegations ad seriatim | wish to address the tone
of the founding affidavit. It is somewhat difficult to answer, because so

much is framed in language of high emotion and extravagant hyperbole.

There is also a great deal of ad hominem commentary that has no place
in court papers. We are Respondents in this matter by virtue of the
offices that we occupy at the NPA. We take our oath of office, our
statutory obligationé and our ethical requirements very seriously. We
prefer not to descénd into the arena, buf instead to address the facfual

allegations at issue .

| would add that the urgency asserted by the applicants has compelled
the Respondents to prepare their answering papers in considerable
haste. It has not been possible to address all of the applicants many
dubious contentions. Respondents hénce reserve the right to seek leave

of the court to interpose a further affidavit if necessary.

Ad paragraph 1
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The content of this paragraph is noted.

His gender is irrelevant.

Ad paragraph 2

The content of this paragraph is noted.

Ad paragraph 3

| dispute that all of the facts alleged by the deponent are within his
personal knowledge. The deponent, relies on media accounts for a large

portion of his allegations. -

Ad paragraph 4

The content of this paragraph is noted.

Ad paragraph 5

I admit that | announced the charges against Pillay, Magashuia and

Minister Gordhan at a press conference on 11 October 2016.

Ad paragraph 6

The decision to prosecute, which was taken by ‘Pretorius, the third
respondent, was guided by there being a prima facie case against Pillay,
Magashula and Minister Gordhan which a prosecutor could prove beyond
reasonable doubt. Pretorius was bound by the above considerations
regardless of who the decision to prosecute pertained to. This is
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The emotive description that does not accord with the factual response

set out herein, is denied.

Ad paragraph 7

The charges were sustainable in law. That is borne out by the contents
of the affidavit. | do hold the view that if Magashula, Pillay and Minister
Gordhan gave witness statements, the information provided at the review
stage may have been provided then, which would have possibly
rendered the charges unnecessary. This does not mean that | “blame
the accused” for anything because they were simply exercising their right

to remain silent, which they are at liberty to do.

Dr Pretorius’ decision to prosecute was taken in consultation with
Advocate Mzinyathi, the fourth respondent. It was the correct decision
based on the evidence available at the time. | cannot fault the decision

to prosecute.

My decision to review was similarly taken based on the evidence
available at the time, which differed in comparison to the evidence before

Pretorius as detailed above.

Ad paragraph 8

My decision to review the decision to prosecute may be viewed by some

as an about-turn, but that is the very nature of the review process, if

successful.
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There was in fact no “about-turn”. | simply exercised the statutorily vested
power to provide an accused person with an opportunity to make

representations as part of a review process. | submit that the fact that |

did so reinforces my independent stance.
The remainder of this paragraph is denied.

Ad paragraph 9

| deny that | tried to distance myself from Pretorius’ decision to

prosecute. | maintain that it was the correct decision based on the

evidence before him at the time.

The process followed has been ventilated at length and to avoid prolixity |

reiterate it without repeating it here.

I deny that | am incompetent, unfit and improper for my office. To the
contrary, | challenge the app!icahts to set out the exact prescripts of the

law that | have allegedly contravened or breached.

It is undeniable that Pretorius’ decision to prosecute was unpopular, but

he was duty bound by the considerations set out above.

My decision to reviéw, while met with some relief by the public, is equally

an unpopular one or, put differently, makes me unpopular.

Fortunately Pretorius and | do not hold our office and exercise our duties

in the hope that we become popular, nor do we wish to antagonise the

y -
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accused or the public at large. We simply do our jobs in accordance with

our duties, regardless of the repercussions.

| deny any violation of rights, or that the decision to prosecute and the

decision to review has been destructive of the integrity and reputation of

the NPA. This affidavit attempts to rectify the record.

Ad paragraph 10

| again deny the allegation of incompetence, any ulterior motive,

recklessness and that the charges were baseless to begin with.

Concerning the “riots in the streets” with reference to annexure “FA1",

the article is dated 1 November 2018, the day after | announced my

"decision to withdraw the charges. The “rioters” were opportunistic looters

who damaged property, stole stock, assaulted customers and threatened
staff of businesses in the area, among other things. Even the business

owners concerned are of the view that nothing can justify the looting.

To suggest that this relates to me is not in accordance with the practical

realities and without merit.

In.any event, pages 62 and 63 of “FA1” deal with what appears to be the

real catalyst for the intended march, namely the narrative concerning

“State Capture”.

The balance of this paragraph is denied. The stock exchange fluctuates

on a daily basis and is influenced by an array of factors. In particular, the

/

|

/

applicants are put to the proof that R50 billion was “lost” on thf stock
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exchange, other than in a notional sense and that the stock exchange

has not recovered since,

Ad paragraph 11

The content of this paragraph is denied. In particular the applicants are

put to the proof concerning who Pretorius and | are beholden to and what

ulterior purposes are alleged to be promoted or furthered by us.

| will be able to respond more fully to these allegations once | have the
full details because these allegations, as they . stand, are bald,

unsupported and speculative.

Ad paragraph 12

The need for urgent judicial redress is denied, because at this stage, it is
premature as reiterated above. The President should be allowed a
reasonabie opportunity to make a decision before that decision can be

properly be tested by a Coun, if need be.

Ad paragraphs 13-15

The nature of the relief sought is noted, but it is denied that the
applicants are entitled to, or have made out a case for, the relief sought,

whether on an urgent basis or at all.

Ad paragraph 16

The content of this paragraph is denied insofar as it relates to Pretorius

Z' 88
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Ad paragraph 17

It is admitted that Pretorius, Advocate Mzinyathi and | occupy high level
positions at the NPA which comes with certain power, but it must be

reiterated that such power is regulated by ledislation.

| again deny the allegations of incompetence, any ulterior motive,
recklessness, unfitness, impropriety and that a clear case concerning the

aforementioned has been made out.

As stated above, | will respond to the allegations concerning the
shattering effects on the economy once the information supporting this

allegation has been provided.

Ad paragraph 18

The content of this paragraph is admitted. Any negative connotation

intended to. mean that Pretorius and | are not in keeping with this is

denied.

Ad paragraph 19

| again deny the/ allegations of incompetence, any ulterior motive,
recklessness, unfithess, impropriety and that a clear case concerning the

aforementioned has been made out.

The applicant’s premature assertion that we have committed misconduct

is illustrative of the fact that the Applicants wish to deprive Pretorius,
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Advocate Mzinyathi and me of an opportunity to ventifate our version,

and have simply decided on this, without having it tested.

This accords with the prematurity that is endemic to this application,
which presumes to pre-empt the President's decision. [ submit that the

Court's process is being abused by the Applicants.

Ad paragraph 20

Any impropriety, prejudice, damage to public perception, risk,
recklessness, damage to the economy and our country’s reputation. is
denied insofar as it relates to Pretorius and myself remaining in office.
We do not accept any wrongdoing because we have complied with our

obligations in terms of the NPA Act, among other things.

As an aside, | would mention that a country’s reputation for upholding the
rule of law may, if anything, be enhanced in the event that a Minister of
State is prosecuted — provided, of course, the charges are good, which

Respondents believed they were.

Ad paragraph 21

Regarding the allegation that a failure to remove Pretorius, Mzinyathi and
myself poses an unacceptable risk to the functioning of the NPA, the
opposite is true. Our precipitous removal would amount to the

decapitation of the institution, and seriously impede ongoing

i

prosecutions.
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Once again, the import of this paragraph appears to be that my lack of
repentance ipso facto renders me subject to suspension from office.

That is an absurd claim.

Applicants effectively seek a permanent stay of prosecution. It is

submitted that this is incompetent relief.

The fact that the door may have been left open to the prosecution of any

of the accused on other charges can never be a legitimate cause of

complaint.

Ad paragraph 22

The content of this paragraph is denied,

Ad paragraph 23

The content of this paragraph is denied, save that | admit that issues of
hational importance are implicated if this premature application is
entertained. The President has neither failed nor refused to institute an
enquiry or suspend any of us. He has yet to make a decision, and awaits
representations from us by 28 November 2016 which we are in the
brocess of compiling. We were of course also met with this application
and have had to place our representations on hold until finalising our
answer to this application. The applicants’ insistence on rushing the
President into precipitous action does not sit well with their insistence

that this is a matter of great national importance.

Ad paragraph 24 - 25
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The applicants correctly emphasise our central and essential roles within
the NPA, which is difficult to reconcile with their demand that we should

be immediately suspended.

Again, | wil respond to the applicants’ allegation that we areé “a proven
severe threat to the economy” once evidence of this nature has been

provided.

Goncerning my alleged “threat” which the applicants say may amount to
“misconduct by bringing further ill-conceived charges in the near future”,
all interested parties are aware of ongoing investigations so there can be

no mischief in what | have said.

It is admitted that the NPA and high level officers ther_ein must be, aﬁd
must be perceived to be, independent of executive and political
interference. What the applicants are.urging is that the President take
precipitous action against high level officers without even affording them
the opportunity to respond to the allegations against them. This does

indeed threaten to compromise the independence of the NPA.

| deny that the offices of the Respondents have been abused Of
compromised. 1 deny that the actions of the Respondents indicate their

unfitness to hoid office.

There is no manifest lack of independence. | have pointed out, in fact,
that my decision to withdraw the charges came in the face of strong

pressure from the Hawks not to do so.
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The President has not adopted an intransigent and supine attitude. He is
obliged to hear the version of the Respondents before taking far-reaching

action against them.

| would draw the attention of the Court to the decision of the House of

‘Lords in the matter of R (on the application of Comer House Researc_h

and others) (Respondents) v Director o'f the Serious Fraud Office

(Appellant) (Criminal Appeal from her Majesty’s High Court of Justice)

[2008] UKHL 60. Lord Bingham of Cornhill declined to set aside the
withdrawal of a prosecution arising out of alleged corruption in an arms
transaction with Saudi Arabia notwithstanding that thel Attorney-General
considered formal representations in a minute of the Prime Minister in
which the latter contended that pursuing the bresecuting severally

prejudice the public interest. [at paragraphs 17-18]

The applicants’ contention that whenever the fitnese and propriety of a
senior office bearer is placed in doubt, the integrity of the entire institution
is unsustainable, is without merit. One need only coneider the case of the
fourth respondent herein, Mzinyathi. He was accused of serious
impropriety, only to have an applica'tion to strike' him from the roll
dismissed. The public may be presumed to be aware that serious
allegations against senior office holders are not uncorrimon; they cannot
be presumed to lose all faith in an institution of state whenever
allegations against its officers, which may or may not be justified, are

raised.
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Ad paragraph 26

The contents of this paragraph are admitted

Ad paragraph 27

It is denied that the President has failed in his constitutional duty. He has
npt made a decision whether or nof to invoke section 12(6) of the NPA
against the Respondents. The applicants attempt to railroad the matter
by demanding that he make a determination within a matter of days,
without consulting those who stand to be most directly affected. It is

denied that the President does not exercise a discretion.
Ad paragraph 28
The contents of this paragraph are denied.

Ad paragraph 29

The contents of this paragraph are admitted.

Ad paragraph 30

The contents of this paragraph are admitted.

Ad paragraph 31

The standing of the applicants is not for present purposes contested.

Ad paragraph 32

The standing of the applicants is not for present purposes contested,
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Ad paragraph 33-36

The first sentence of these paragraphs are admitted. The second

sentence is denied. The third sentence is noted.

Ad paragraph 37

The contents of this paragraph are admitted.

Ad paragraph 38

The standing of the applicants is not for present purposes contested.

The implicit factual claims in this paragraph are denied.

Ad paragraph 39

The contents of this paragraph are denied.

Ad paragraph 40

The standing of the applicants is not for purposes of this Application

denied.

Ad paragraph 41

The standing of the applicants is not for purposes of this application

denied. The factual and legal claims in this paragraph are denied.

Ad paragraph 42

In so far as the quotation accurately reflects the text being quoted, it is

noted.
/ K
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Ad paragraph 43

The contents of this paragraph are admitted.

. Ad paragraph 44

The contents of this paragraph are admitted, save the final sentence

which is denied.

Ad paragraph 45

The contents of this paragraph are admitted.

Ad paragraph 46

The implicit factual claims in this paragraph are denied

Ad paragraph 47

The contents of this paragraph are denied

Ad baraqraph 48

The contents of this paragraph are denied.

Ad paragraph 49-51

| can neither admit nor deny the vague and open-ended allegations in
these paragraphs. It does not serve the applicants’ cause to attach
selected media articles, much of which reflect speculation, rumours and

“leaks,” garnished with political commentary and opinion.
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Ad paragraph 52-3

My understanding is that the list of questions referred to were compiled
by the Hawks regarding the so-called rogue unit. They are hence not
relevant to the present proceedings. | would note that the Applicants

have elected not td join the Hawks as Respondents. (Neither, indeed, did

- the Applicants join the Minister of Justice.)

Ad paragraph 54

The contents of this paragraph are admitted.

A_d paragraph 55

The contents of this paragraph are denied for the reasons set forth
ab.ove. Although the charges were immediately connected to the Pillay
retirement, they came to light in the course of the investigation into the

rogue unit.

Ad paragraph 56
I know nothing of the so-called “reference group”.

Ad paragraph 57

The contents of this paragraph are denied. The applicants’ continuing

use of extravagant adjectives is to be deplored.

Ad paragraph 58

I stand by what | said at the press conference of 11 October 2016.
J
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Ad paragraph 59

It is true that | addressed the matter of the rogue unit at the press
conference. Although aliegétions about the unit form no part of the
charges that were laid on that day, the subject matter is not unrelated. |
deemed it appropriate to address a subject as to which there has been
much speculation. | deny that my intent was fo attack the reputations of

any person or that | acted with ulterior purpose.

Ad paragraphs 60-61

The contents of these paragraphs are denied.

The applicants will have their remedies in the event that charges relating

to the rogue unit are preferred.

Ad paragraphs 62-66

| deny any impropriety or pre-judgment.

As head of the National Prosecuting Authority, | deemed to address the

issue of the Rogue Unit, about which there had been much public

speculation.

In the event that a decision is ever taken to prefer charges in connection
with the Rogue Unit, anyone subject to such prosecution will have their

remedies in law.

As to the charges relating to the early retirement of Pillay, | indicated that

| had agreed with the decision that had been made by Pretorius to}initiate
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a prosecution, having been briefed by him in that regard. Nothing | said
preciuded me from reviewing the charges upon representations having

been received.

Ad Paragraph 67

| deny then | manifested either incompetence or ulterior motive. The
inferences relied upon for these unfounded allegations are based upon

wrong facts and are in any event totally unfounded. |

The start of the reference to 3000 requests of early retirement with full
benefits arose from the memorandum sent by Magashula to the Minister

(FA, page 100). Magashula stated:

“Over the past 5 years the GEPF has approved over 3000
: requests from various government departments for staff
; members to retire before the age of 60 with full benefits. The
' statistics are attached to this memorandum as received from

the GEPF (Appendix A).”

The third and fourth Respondents endeavoured to ébtain the appendix
referred to but were informed that the no such document existed. It would
be astonishing if the approvals referred to by Magashula were given on
the same basis as that sought by Pillay. In fact, based upon the amount
paid on behalf of Pillay, it would have cost SARS in the vicinity of R3

billion in unlawful payments on behalf of employees if this ever occurred.

Ad Paragraph 68

89




308 | deny that the NPA reneged on any undertaking to the Minister. The

facts are the following:

308.1

308.2

308.3

308.4

308.5

On 24 August 2016 the Minister's attorneys, Gildenhuys Malatji,
wrote a letter to me relating to the rogue unit investigation. In
paragraph 4 of the letter, the Minister requested that when this
matter is presented to me for a decision of whether to initiéte a
prosecution against him or not, he should be afforded the
opportunity to make both written and verbal representations to

me regarding my aforesaid decision.

| responded to this letter on 25 August 2016. | informed

Gildenhuys Malatji in regard to paragraph 4 of the letter that

““consideration wil only be given thereto once the investigation

has been concluded and the docket submitted to the National
Prosecuting Authority for decision on whether or not to institute

you to prosecution against any person(s).”'

It would not be for me to make the decision as to whether or not
to iniiate a prosecution. Such decision would be made by

Pretorius.

On 29 August 2016, Gildenhuys Malatji again wrote to me
requesting the opportunity to make representations. | forwarded

this letter to Pretorius,

On 5 September 2016 Pretorius wrote to Gildenhuys Malatji.

Pretorius stated:

100
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“It would be advisable that your clients’ comments,
views and version are incorporated in a warning
statement to be taken into account before a decision is
made and such warning statement being part of the
police docket in this instance.”

308.6 But when the Minister was invited to make a warning statement,

he refused.

308.7 Accordingly, no undertaking was reneged upon.

Ad Paragraph 69

My responsibilities do not include making every prosecutorial decision. |
have set forth above my responsibilities as head of the NPA. |, however,
do have the responsibilty to review decisions in appropriate
circumstances where representations are made. Notwithstanding that
the Minister r_efusedrto make representations in this matter, | exercised
my discretion to do. s0, as a consequence of which the charges were

withdrawn.

| deny the allegations made expressly or implicitly in this paragraph. |

prefer not to engage with personal invective.

Ad Paragraph 70

As | have noted, to characterise my statement that | was prepared to
review the charges as backpedalling betrays a fundamental

misconception of the statutory scheme.

R\ 101



312

313

314

315

The applicants should be aware that if | took the decision to prosecute, |
would not have been able to withdraw the charges - which would

ironically entail that they would be reinstated with no review possible.

Ad Paragraphs 71 and 72

The contents of this paragraph are noted.

It is true that the applicants placed me “on terms” to withdraw the
charges. | was reviewing them at that time and they were ultimately
withdrawn within the process of review, and not as a result of the
démand's of the applicants. In fact, before the time limit imposed by the
applicants, | informed them that | had prioritized the review and that | was
dealing with it urgently. In the same way that they Weré not satisfied with
the:President’s advice to them that he was dealing with their complaint
and required further time, they were uncompromising in fheir attitude.
They precipitously brought the applications to set aside the charges and

the present application.

Ad Paragraph 73-74

| find it difficuit to understand why the applicants would object to efforts to
elicit representations and enquire into the background of the charges, as
part: of the review exercise. Those enquiries ultimately caused me to
withdraw the charges — not on the basis that they were improperly
instituted in the first instance, but because materials that were not initially
to hand raised questions as to whether it would be possible to prove

knowledge of wrongfulness beyond a reasonable doubt.

102
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Far from negating the decision to institute charges, documents that came

to light in the review process, reinforced the assessment that the special

arrangement made for Mr Pillay was unlawful.

Ad paragraph 75

| deny that there was no evidence warranting either the institution or the
continuation of the prosecution. If the suggestion is that | should have
withdrawn the charges earlier, before the completion of the investigation,
that claims falls to be rejected. Once again, the ‘Empii'cation appears to be
that 'the Minister is entit!éd to special treatment. The refusal of' the
Minister to make representations did not accelerate the process. The
allegation that my mind was closed, was unfair. My subsequent decision
to withdraw the charges in fact demonstrates that | was open to being

persuaded by what served before me.

Ad Paragraph 76

The contents of this paragraph are admitted insofar as they accurately

paraphrase the document quoted

Ad Paragraph 77 - 78

| have already explained in detail the extensive steps taken before the
prosecution was decided upon. Anyone familiar with the prosecution
process would know that it would be entirely impractical to require that
every possible source of exculpatory evidence be pursued before

charges are instituted. The applicahts should also know that that the
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standard for the institution of prosecution is no higher than reasonable
prospects of success in the prosecution. On the applicants' version, the

scope of prosecutorial discretion would narrow to vanishing point.

Ad Paragqraph 79

The contents of this paragraph are admitted.

Ad Paragraph 80

It is true that | made it clear that | did not in‘stitute the prosecution. The

adverse implications in this paragraph are, however, denied.

The applicants simply failed to appreciate that a decision to prosecute
can only be reviewed if | did not take the decision. They accept the fact
that | reviewed the. decision and are pleased that the charges were
withdrawh. Yet they want to persist in alleging that | took the decision,

which | did not.

Ad Paragraph 81

The contents of this paragraph are denied. | stand by what | stated at the

31 October press conference. | refer to that which is set forth above in

this regard.

Ad Paragraph 82

It is naive of the applicants to believe that | should simply have withdrawn

the charges once the Symington memorandum came to light. The
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decision to prosecute was not haphazardly taken by Pretorius; nor are

decisions to review done in this matter.

325 It was proper that | should make further investigations concerning the
Symington memorandum, includihg obtaining confirmation from
Symington himself. Further investigations were also necessary in terms

of following proper process.

Ad Paragraph 83

326 | have stated that the charges were fully justified from the outset. | have
dealt in detail with the justification for the charges. The applicants’
contention that the charges were “unsuppoﬂéble from the outset” is
clearly wrong and | have explained in this affidavif the basis of the
charges. It was only the q'uestion of intention which caused me to

withdraw the charges on review.
327 | did not issue a subpoena.

Ad Paragraph 84

i

328 The first two sentences of this paragraph are admitted. | deny the second

and third sentences of this paragraph.

Ad Paragraph 85.1

329 As set forth above, it is not standard practice for the head of the NPA to

evaluate the credibility of charges before the institution thereof.

Ad Paragraph 85.2




330 | have stated that | relied upon the briefing of trusted senior prosecutors.

Ad Paragraph 85.3

331 | have already stated why it was not an error to issue the charges. Once
again, the implication appears to be that | should have taken into account
the status of the accused, as well as media speculation, in my

assessment of the charges. That is denied.

Ad Paragraph 85.4

332 1 have addressed this subject matier above.

Ad Paragraph 85.5

333 | have addressed this subject above.

Ad Paragraph 85.6

334 There is no basis or reason to hold anyone to account for charges which,

on the information before the prosecutors, met the threshold réquirement

for the institution of the charges.

Ad Paragraph 86

335 Save for the final sentence, the contents of this paragraph are admitted.

Ad Paragraphs 87 - 88

336 The contents of these paragraphs are denied. | have stated that |

reasonably acted on the basis of a briefing | received from trusted senior
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prosecutors, which | had no reason to disbelieve.
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Ad Paragraph 89

The adverse implications in this paragraph are denied. It is true that |
primarily relied upon a briefing by the prosecutors, in whom | had full
confidence. When it came to the review stage, | directed an extensive
investigation, which led to the withdrawal of the charges. It is not
necessary for me to engage in the contentions of law advanced by the
applicants in this paragraph. The fact is, ag | have already stated above,
the charges were justified based on the information which the

prosecutors had.

Ad Paragraph 90

| stand by what was stated at the press conference.

Ad Paragraph 91

| do not know what is meant by the claim that | adopfed the decision to
prosecute. | did deem, based upon the briefing, that there was sufficient
tq meet the threshold for the institution of a prosecution. | have never
reversed that position. Indeed, some of the material received post-hoc
vindicated the initial assessment that the special privilege accorded ‘to
Pillay was unlawful. The applicants seem unable to distinguish between

unlawfulness on the one hand and the element of intent on the other.

Ad Paragraph 92

| deny that the first sentence of this paragraph. As for the second

sentence, | declined to enter into a debate with the Applicants as to the



public response to the charges. Suffice to say that the subject matter
was, and remains, of great public interest. | would be derelict in my duty if

| attached weight to the extent and scope of public opposition to the

charges.

Ad Paragraph 93

341  The contents of this paragraph are admitted.

Ad Paragraph 94

342 | am aware that my visit to Luthuli House caused disquiet in some
quarters. | deny that it is categorically excluded for me to attend a
meeting at such venue. Such attendance may be justified in special

circumstances, such as arose in this instance.

343 In this regard | say:-

344.1 During the afternoon of 10 October 2018, | received a telephone
.call from Minister Masutha, who invited mé to attend an
emergency meeting around the escalating ﬁiolence that had
erupted at institutions of highér learning as a di;rect result of the #

Fees Must Fall’ campaign.

344.2 Minister Masutha is a member of the Justice, Crime Prevention
and Security Cluster ('JCPS). The President had requested
Ministers of the JCPS Cluster fo urgently brief him on the

interventions by their respective departments to bring stability to



an already escalating volatile situation. | understood that the
President was leaving the country later that day. The President did
not invite me to the meeting nor was the President aware that |

would be in attendance until my arrival.

344.3 The Minister of State Security, who was in attendance, deputised
as the Minister of Police. The Minister of Social Development who

- was also in attendance, deputised for the Minister of Defence and
Military Veterans. Many of the members of the executive were
already at the venue, _where they had attended earlier
engagements. Due to the. urgency of the meeting, it was deemed

necessary for the meeting to take place at the venue in question.

344.4 Minister Masutha was of the view that 1 could contribute much
more than he could at the meeting and requested my attendance.
| was best placed to explain the initiatives undertaken by the NPA
in éooperation with its stakeholders in stabilizing a rather volatile
situation aréund the escalating unrest at institutions of higher

learning.

344.5 The NPA Prosecution Policy requires the NPA to cooperate
effectively with the police and other investigating agencies to

enhance efficacy in the criminal justice processes.




344.6 Section 22(4)(a)(iii) empowers me to advise the Minister of Justice
on all matters relating to the administration of criminal justice and
section 22(4)(i) empowers the NDPP to make recommendations to
the Minister of Justice and Correctional Services with regard to the

prosecuting authority and the administration of justice as a whole.

344.7 As head of the NPA and by virtue of the provisions of section 22(1)
of the NPA Act nothing precluded me from attending an
emergency meeting at the invitation of the Minister of Justice and
Correctional Services with Ministers of the JCPS Cluster and the

President.

344.8 As | recall, in places like Braamfontein, only a kilometre or two
from Luthuli: House, vehicles were burning, streets were
barricaded, shops were being looted and buildings and vehicles

were being vandalised.

344.9 At no stage were individual or specific matters implicating any
person(s) discussed. Neither the arrest nor the prosecution of ahy

specific person(s).

344.10 In any event, decisions around these matters are ordinarily made
under the jurisdiction of the provincial Directors of Public
Prosecutions (‘DPPs’) concerned. To this end, section 20(3) of the

NPA Act empowers DPPs to (i) institute and conduct criminal




345

346

proceedings on behalf of the State, (i) carry out any necessary
functions incidental to instituting and conducting criminal; and (ii)
discontinue criminal proceedings in the area of jurisdiction for

which he or she has been appointed.

344.11 The issue of the summons against Minister Gordhan was not
discussed. | learned that the Minister Masutha had advised the
President of the issue around the summons days earlier. There
was hence no need to discuss the matter relating to Minister
Gordhan. The only issue that was discussed was the violence that

had erupted at institutions of higher learning.

It may be worth mentioning that, at the committee meeting attended by
me on 4 November 2016, the Chairperson noted that the former Public
Protector, Adv Thuli Madonsela had called on the offices of the
Democratic Alliance (‘DA’) where she attended meetings. She had also

att_ended official DA events.

Ad Paragraphs 95 and 96

| admit the interview with Eyewitness' News Mandy Wiener. | do not
intend to respond to the offensive allegations contained in these
paragraphs (and their sub-paragraphs), nor to the gratuitous insults and

repetitive statements to disparage me.




346.1

346.2

346.3

346.4

| have emphasized that the conduct in making payment of
Pillay’s penalty was unlawful. | have explained that the charges
were withdrawn after | have formed the view that the necessary

criminal intention would not be proved.

The central issue is whether Pretorius was justified in making a
decision to charge GP&M. In making the decision, adherence
was paid to the rule of law and the Constitution. A detailed
explanation has been furnished as to why {he conduct was

unlawful.

| have explained in detail the circumstances of my visit to Luthuli

House,

| have explained in detail the reasons for the charges and the
reasons for the withdrawal on review in terms of section
179(5)(d) of the Constitution. | submit that my conduct and that of
the third and fourth Respondé’ﬁts was absolutely in compliance
with the powers vested in us and we at all times paid adherence
to the rule of law and the Co_hstitution. [t is unfortunate that ‘the
applicants describe me as being arrogant, which | certainly
believe not to be the case. It is an attitude which | decry and
would avoid. | do however rﬁention that the superior attitude
adopted by the applicants in calling upon me to explain why | am

fit and proper carries its own insolence.

Q 112



347

348

349

346.5 | have dealt with the effects of the economy above. | have also
addressed the question of chargers relating to high officials in

relation to the economy and the public interest generally.

Ad Paragraphs 97 and 98

| was not "summohed" to attend Parliament. | was “invited” to attend fo

provide a briefing.

Ad Paragraph 98

The applicants again selectively refer to what was stated by the
Chairperson. It is _signiﬁcant that they chose not to refer, for example, to
the comments by the Chairperson which | have referred to above,

relating to the Public Protector having attended the offices of the DA.

Ad Paragraph 99

1 do not intend to respond once again to the unfounded criticisms and

disparaging remarks. It certainly does not behove organisations such as
the applicants, supposedly acting in the public | interests to make
grétuitous insults based on wrong facts, and to draw- adverse for making
inferences without evidence. They are clearly trying to create media hype
but overlook the factithat the court is not a jury. Their motivation is purély
political. Hence, a baseless statement, without evidence to support it,
that | have “a seeming vendetta... with the perceived political rivals of
President Zuma and his allies”. On what possible basis is such an

allegation made? Furthermore, | have explained the circumstances of my

AN



350

351

visit to Luthuli House. Yet the applicants, without compunction, and
without any evidence to the contrary, refer to the meeting as being

“‘clandestine”.

| do not intend to burden this Court with the details of my objection to the
presence of Ms Breytenbach presence at the meeting of the

Parliamentary Commitiee.

Ad Paragraph 100

My briefing to the Parliamentary Committee is a matter of public record.

Ad Paragraph 101 to 109

352 | dispute that any conduct on behalf of the third, fourth Respondents and

353

364

355

myself provides any evidence that we are not fit and proper to continue to
hold our positions. In fact, we have at all times fully and properly carried

our duties and obligations, both in terms of the Act, the Constitution and

prosecutorial policy.

The third, fourth Respondents and | were copied on the letter addressed

to the President.

We ‘;assume that the President will respond to the renﬁaining allegations

contained in these paragraphs.

| nevertheless state that it is exiracrdinary that the applicants felt entitled
to demand on 1 November 2016 that the President make a decision,

based purely on their complaint and the voluminous documents furnished
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to him, to suspend us and conduct and enquiry. Surély, the President
would be entitled to hear from us. | add that the applicants clearly
anticipated that the President would not be able to deal with their
complaint within the short time prescribed. Once he had not given their
desired response by 7 November, they launched this application just

more than a day later, on @ November.

Ad Paragraphs 110 to 116

In paragraphs 110 to 116, under the heading “Other refevant conduct’,
Mr Antonie, on behalf bf the applicants, deems it relevant to the
applicants’ case to refer to the matters conceming‘the Deputy National
Director of Public Prosecutions, Nomgcobo Jiba (“Ms Jiba”). His purpose
in doing so is to contend that this is “further evidence” that | “cannot bé
entrusted with the office of NDPP” (para 118, page 47). Not only is this

without foundation, but the essential facts he relies upon are untrue.

Two points arise out of Mr Antonie having thrown in “the Jiba matter” into

the present application:

357.1 FEirstly, the applicants cannot truly expect that this Court should
engage in a consideration of the facts surrounding the Jiba
matter, and then make a determination based on this concerning
my suitability to hold the office of NDPP, If the applicants were of
the view that | should be suspended and an enquiry held
pursuant to the decision — (made by Marshall Mokgatihe, a

Deputy Director of Public Prosecutions and the regional head of

/-
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the SCCU) — to withdraw the charges against Ms Jiba, then an
application to this end should have been brought by them. It was

not brought.

357.2 Secondly, and more importantly, it is disturbing that Mr Antonie,
in seeking to malign me, has not disclosed to this Court the
sequel to the judgment of Gorven J as dealt with by the Full
Bench in this Court in the matter of the General Council of the
Bér v Jiba & Others [2016] ZAGPPHC 833 (15 September

2016) (referred to in paragraph 113 of Mr Antonie’s affidavit).

It is inconceivable that Mr Antonie, who is a Director of the first appiicant,
would not have read the judgment of the Full Court in the matter of the
GCB v Jiba, to which he refers. It is therefore astonishing, and cause for
concern, that Mr Antonie states that Ms Jiba was struck off the roll for,
inter alfa, her “dishonesty” in the Booysen case. He has the temerity to
state, after having read the judgment in the GCB v Jiba application, that
the Jiba matter “furthers the perception that (I am) incompetent or prone
to partiality”. His remaining derogatory comments concerning me in these
paragraphs are inexplicable. He has not apprised this Court of the actual
findings of the Full Court in which that Court disagreed with Gorven J in
the Booysen matter. On the basis of the Full Bench judgment it is
absolutely clear that there was no basis whatsoever for the charges of
perjury and fraud to have been brought against Ms Jiba in the first place.

However, it is because | have not reinstated the charges against Ms Jiba,
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that the applicants contend that | cannot be entrusted with the office of

NDPP. It is puzzling to say the least.

With regard to the question of perjury, Legodi J, (writing the judgmen.t for

the Full Court) said:

[61] | am unable to find any conduct on the part of Jiba that
justifies an application contemplated in section 7 of the

Admission of Advocates Act.

In regard to the authorisation of the POCA certificates, Legodi J said at
[67]:
[67] | cannot find any mala fides and/or ulterior motives in the

authorisation by Jiba as contemplated in POCA

And

[68] It suffices for now fo conclude on Booysen matter by
stating that no case has been made for removal or

suspension from the role of advocates.

Clearly, there was no finding by the Full Bench of dishonesty on the part
of Ms Jiba. In the light of this judgment, there could be no basis

whatsoever to reinstate the criminal charges against her.

[ do not wish to engage in futile retaliatory allegations. Suffice to say that

organisations such as the applicants, claiming to act on the public
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interest, should be expected to be objective, fair and impassionate.
Unfortunately, the opposite is evident in this matter, especially when
regard is had to the plethora of hyperbole and extravagant exaggerated
adjectival expressions, many of which have simply been copied and

pasted from the Jiba matter.

| attach as Annexure SA25 hereto the relevant portion of the judgment
dealing with the Booysen matter. The entire judgment has not been
attached to avoid prolixity but will be made available to this Court at the

hearing of this matter.

Accordingly, the decision to withdraw the charges of fraud against Ms
Jiba was totally justified. Yet, in the face of this judgment, which the
applicants not only knew of, but in fact referred to, Mr Antonie failed to
inform this Court of its contents relating to the .Go'rven J judgment and in
fact misstated the relevant findings. It demonstrates, that the appiicants

will go to any lengths to have me removed.

On 19 September 2016, the first applicant's attorneys wrote to the
F"resident, as appéars from Annexure FA15 (paée 146). Despite the
contents of the judgment of the Full Court concerning the Booysen
matter,. the first applicant’s attorneys nevertheless demand that the

prosecution against Ms Jiba for fraud and perjury be reinstated.

| respectfully submit there is no basis for any of the concerns expressed

by the applicants should we continue in office; neither do they truly

i

believe their concerns.
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Ad Paragraph 117

The contents of this paragraph are denied

Ad Paragraph 118

The contents of this paragraph are admitted, save that it is denied that

my conduct constituted a blunder. | have given a full account above.

Ad Paragraph 119

| deny the first sentence of this paragraph. As to the second sentence, I
dispute that an apology is warranted, and even if it were, my failure to
afford an apology could in no circumstances warrant the invoking of

section 12(6) of the NPA Act.

Ad Paragraph 12

The contents of this paragraph are denied. For the Respondents to
overnight be barred from exercising their functions would impact very
seriously upon the day-to-day functioning of the NPA for the foreseeable
future. The suggestion that the former NDPP can readily step into my

shoes is absurd.

Ad Paragraph_121-123

The allegation that the prosecution of the charges was pursued for an
ulterior purpose, is false and without substance. Nothing has been
furnished by the applicants to support this allegation. The defamatory

allegations of recklessness and incompetence are denied, as well as the
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allegation that a proper investigation was not carried out. | refer to the
detail furnished above relating to th‘e extensive steps taken before the

decision was made by the third respondent to institute the charges.

Ad Paragraphs 124 - 130

| refer to the accompanying affidavit of Pretorius and Mzinyathi.

I deny that | shifted responsibiiity to the third and fourth Respdndents.
The third respondent took the decision to institute the charges, with

which | agreed, having been briefed by the third and fourth Respondents.

| deny in particular that no rational and conscientious prosecutor of
integrity would have preferred the charges. That has been explained in

detail above. |

In terms of section 24(3) of the NPA Act, a Special Director shall exercise
the powers, carry ouf the duties and perform the functions conferred or
imposed on or assigned to him or her by the President, subject to the
directions of the National Director: provided any of the powers, duties
and functions referred to in section 20(1) they shall be exercised, carried

out and performed in consultation' with the Director of the area of

jurisdiction concerned.

The powers referred fo in section 20(1) relate to the instifution and
conducting of criminal proceedings on behalf of the state; carrying out
any necessary functions incidental to instituting and conducting of such

criminal proceedings; and discontinuing of criminal proceedings.

AN
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In the NPA, the normal practice of the interactions between Special
Directors and Directors of Public Prosecutions is that, when the Special
Director is seized with an investigation, the management of such an
investigation and the engagements betwéen the investigating authorities
and the Deputy Directors and prosecutors under the control of the
Special Director, happen without the involvement of the Director of Public

Prosecutions.

It is only when such a Special Director is contemplating making a
decision that he or she initiates discussions with the Director of
Prosecutions concerned. It is the culmination of these discussions that

will determine if the decision of the Special Director was taken in

‘consultation with the Director of Prosecutions or not, in other words

whether the Director of Prosecutions agrees with the decision or not.

Essentially, the agreement or otherwise of the Director of Public
Prosecutions with the. decision of the Special Director is on the basis of
informafion provided by the Special Director working in conjunction with

the prosecutors resorting under him.

In such instances, the Director of Public Prosecutions is not the original
decision maker, nor is he accountable for the decision as in instances

when decisions are taken by staff in his area of jurisdiction.

it is not the function of the Director of Public Prosecutions to review or
substitute the role of the Special Director in managing the activities falling

under the auspices of the Special Director.
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Ordinarily, the Special Director would summarise what the decision

entails. This is normally done either through personal engagements, or

through the submission of memorandums summarising the facts of the

decision. If there are aspects that the Director of Public Prosecutions is
not clear about, he or she usually asks the relevant aspects to be
clarified by the Special Director, and the Special Director would cause

such clarifications to be made.

The Director of Public Prosecutions does not get involved in the normal
day to day activities of the work of the Special Director, and for instance
in the case of an investigation, he or she does not usually call for the
dockets and to instruct which further investigations should be followed
up, etc. This day to day running of the activities remains the responsibility

of the Special Director.

it is not correct that there was no proper legal analysis. It further
disproves the Applicants’ assertion that the prosecutors failed in their
constitutional and statutory duty to ensure that the charges were properly
grounded, and to take an impartial, independent and objective view of all

the facts that were presented before them.

Ad Paragraph 131 - 136

| admit paragraphs 132, 133 and 134.

[ admit the remaining contents of these paragraphs insofar as they
correctly repeat the terms of the relevant provisions of the Constitution

and the Act.
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Ad Paragraph 137

This is admitted.

Ad Paragraph 138

| do not understand in the distinction drawn by the applicants between

subjective and on objective determinations in this regard

Ad Paragraph 139

This is a matter of legal argument that will be advanced in the heads of

argument and at the hearing. | refer to what | have foreshadowed above

regarding the standard of rationality.

Ad Paragraph 140

The underlining rationa.le for s.12(6) of the NPA Act will be the subject of

argument.
| admit the balance of this paragraph. |

Ad Paragraph 141-143.

The contents of this paragraph are denied.

Ad Paragraph 144

is denied.

Ad Paragraph 145-148
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The contents of this paragraph are matters for legal argument.

Ad Paraaraph 149

The contents hereof are denied. Argument will be addressed to this
Honourable Court in regard to the unreasonableness of the time periods
the applicants sought to unilaterally impose upon the President. The fact

is that no decision has been made.

Ad Paragraph 146

The contents of this paragraph are denied. I, the applicants wish to
anticipate the potential lodgment of charges against the Minister, and to
pre-empt same by obtaining a permanent stay, they are free to approach
a court .of law to seek such a remedy. | again emphasise that no
decision has been made regarding the rogue unit and the investigation is

at present incomplete.

| have already referred to the judgment of the Full Bench concerning the
Booysen matter and the withdrawal of the charges against Ms Jiba. It is
astounding that the applicants still contend that | should reinstate the
charges against her in light of this judgment. | reiterate that the applicants
incorrectly informed this Court of the finding of the Full Bench in the
Booysen matter concerning Ms Jiba by stating that she was found to be

dishonest when this was not the case at all.

No doubt the applicants in their replying affidavit would explain the

misrepresentation to the Court.
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Ad Paragraph 150

The politicization of. this matter by the applicants is clear from this

paragraph.
The contents of this paragraph are denied.

Ad Paréqraph 151

The contents of this paragraph are denied.

Ad Paragraphs 152 - 164

The question of urgency has been dealt with above.

Ad Paragraph 165

This is disputed.

The third respondent and | dispute that the applicants are entitled to any
relief..\We submit that the application should be dismissed with costs,

including the costs consequent upon the employment of three counsel.

COSTS

In the event that the application is struck-off the rolt for lack of urgency,
the costs should follow the event and such costs should include the costs
consequent upon the employment of three counsel for .the two

Respondents. In this regard, the Court should take into account the

following factors:
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The applicants are not impecunious. They litigate just about everything
which they do not like and with which they do not agree. The applicants
do this. because they can afford it. The fact that the applicants are so-

called civil organisations does not exempt them from an adverse cost

against them.

The application is premature, to the extent that it constitutes an abuse of
process. The applicants knew that the President had not taken the

decision which they have requested the President to take.

The applicants. also knew that the President had requested them to
extend the time fréme within which he should take the decision which
they requested the President to take. They unreasonably refused to give

such an extension.

The refusal to give the President an extension to consider their request
was unreasonable and calculated to justify the bringing of this application
on an urgent basis. The application wo{lld clearly not have been brought

if the applicants had given the President the extension which he asked

for.

The refusal to give the President the extension requested was therefore
for an ulterior motive, i.e. to bring this application on an urgent basis in

circumstances where there was no justification to refuse the extension.

When regard is had to the fact that the President still had to give the
affected parties an opportunity to make representations, the time frame

prescribed for the President to respond was unreasonable and it oo was
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calculated to justify the bringing of this application as the applicants must
have known that the processes which the President would have had to

embark upon would not be completed in a matter of three days.

412 In the light of the above, the‘fact that the applicants may be raising a
constitutional matter need not be taken into account in their favour due to
the fact that they acted in bad faith in bringing this application and in
giving the President an unreasonabie time to respond to them. Similarly,
[ and the other Respo.ndents were not given any time at all to engage

with the President as to why the President should not grant the

applicants their request.

413 In the premises, the application should be dismissed with costs of four

Ql@ ) >

SHAUN KEVIN ABRAHAMS

counsel.

| hereby certify that the deponent has acknowledged that he knows and understands
the jontents of this affidavit, which was signed and sworn before me at
Sendbon on the fg"_‘f day of November 2018, the regulations contained in
Government Notice No. R 1258 of 21 July 1972, as amended, and Government Notice
No. 8/of, 19 August 1977, as amended, having been complied with.

AN

%MMISSIONER OF OATHS

S;
FULL NAME JAYSON JUDE REBELO

GROUND FLOOR, 33 FRICKER ROAD
ILLOVO, JOHANNESBURG
Commissioner of Qaths
Practising Attorney R.S.A 127

BUSINESS ADDRESS:



IN THE HIGH COURT OF SOUTH AFRICA
GAUTENG DIVISION, PRETORIA

In the matter between:

HELEN SUZMAN FOUNDATION
FREEDOM UNDER LAW NPC

And

THE PRESIDENT OF THE REPUBLIC
OF SOUTH AFRICA

SHAUN ABRAHAMS

DR JP PRETORIUS SC

SIBONGILE MZINYATHI

THE NATIONAL PROSECUTING AUTHORITY

CASE NO:

First Applicant

Second Applicant

First Respondent

Second Respondent
Third Respondent
Fourth Respondent

Fifth Respondent

CONFIRMATORY AFFIDAVIT OF THE THIRD RESPONDENT

[, the undersigned,



JACOBUS PETRUS PRETORIUS

do hereby make oath and state as follows:

INTRODUCTION

1

[ am the Third Respondent in this application.

| am the Acting Special Director of Public Prosecutions and Head Priority

Crimes Litigation Unit. | am the Third Respondent in this matter.

The facts contained in this affidavit are to the best of my knowledge true
and correct, and within my personal knowledge, unless stated otherwise

or indicated by the context.

| oppose the application brought against me and deny that the Applicants

are entitled to any of the relief claimed.

| dispute that the application is urgent and submit that it should be struck

from the roll for lack of urgency with costs.

| have read the answering affidavit of the Second Respondent, Shaun
Abrahams. | oppose this application on the grounds set out in the
affidavit of Shaun Abrahams and confirm the allegations in his affidavit

insofar as they relate to me.

| submit that the application should be dismissed with costs, including the

costs consequent on the employment of three counsel.



TRUS PRETORIUS

| hereby certify that the deponent has acknowledged that he knows and understands
the contents of this affidavit, which was signed and sworn before me at

S&’(AJ(-/W\ on the 15% day of November 2016, the regulations contained in

Government Notice No. R 1258 of 21 July 1972, as amended, and Government MNotice

No. R 1648 of 19 August 1977, as amended, having been complied with.

MMISSIONER OF OATHS JAYSON JUDE REBELO
) GROUND FLOOR, 33 FRICKER ROAD
ILLOVO, JOHANNESBURG

FULL NAMES: Commissioner of Oaths
Practising Attorney R.8.A

BUSINESS ADDRESS:
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14 November 2016

Dear Adv. Abrahams,

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO SUSPEND IN TERMS OF SECTION 12(6)(a) OF THE
NATIONAL PROSECUTING AUTHORITY ACT, 1998 (ACT NO.32 OF 1998)

| have been requested' by Freedom Under Law and the. Helen Suzman
Foundation to provisionaily suspend you pending an enquiry into your fithess to hold
office. IR ' ' ' o

Freedom Under Law and the Helen Suzman Foundation raised concerns with
the manner in which you conducted the prosecution of Minister Pravin Gordhan, Mr
Visvanathan Pillay and Mr George Magashula. According to them, your condugct in
relation’ to . prosecution of the above: mentioned people brought the NPA into
disrepute, and consequently rendered you unfit to hold office as National Director of
Public Prosecutions. '

The letter from Freedom Under Law and the Helen Suzman Foundation is
aftached hereto.

Section 9 (1) of the National Prosecuting Authority Act, 1898 (Act No. 32 of
1998 (the Act), provides that “Any person fo be appointed as National Director,
Deputy National Director or Director must-

(a) possess legal qualifications that would entifle him ar her to pra cfiée in
all courts in the Republic ; and - ,

(h) be a fit and proper person, with due regard fo his or her experience,
conscientiousness and integrity, to be entrusied with the responsibilities of the office

concerned.”

According to section 12(8) of the Act, the President may provisionally suspend
the National Director or a Deputy National Diractor from his or her office, pending an
enquiry into his or her fitness to hold office,

f// |



As yau are aware, the National Prosecuting Authority is an important
constitutional institution in- the administration of Justice and maintaining public
confidence in the institution is of necessity.

I hereby afford you an opportunity to make written representation as to why |

should not place you on suspension pending the outcome of the enquiry into your

fitness to hold office. Such representatron must reach my- office on or before
28 November 2016.

Yours sincerely,

Presuient of the Repu blic of South Africa.

Advocate Shaun Abrahams

National Director of the Public Prosecutions
Private Bag X752

Pretoria-

0001

cc: Minister TM. Masu'tha: Minister of Justice and Correctional Services:



14 November 2016

Dear Dr Pretorius,

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO SUSPEND IN TERMS OF SECTION 12(6)(a} OF THE
NATIONAL PROSECUTING AUTHORITY ACT, 1998 (ACT NO.32 OF 1998)

| have been requested by Freedom. Under Law ‘and. the Helen Suzman
Foundation to provisionally suspend you pending an enquiry into your fitness to hold
office. - . o R _ S

Freedom Under Law and the Helen Suzman Foundation raised concerns with

- the manner in which you conducted the prosecution of Minister Pravin Gordhan, Mr

Visvanathan Pillay and Mr George Magashula. According fo them, your conduct in

refation -to. prosecution of the above mentioned people brought the NPA into

disrepute, and consequently rendered you unfit to hold office as Director of Public
Prasecutions. ‘

The letter from Freedom Under Law and the He'_len Suzman Foundation is
attached hereto. ' '

Section 9 (1) of the National Prosecuting Authority Act, 1998 (Act No. 32 of |
1998 (the Act}, provides that "Any person fo be appointed as National Director,
Deputy Nafional Director or Director must-

{a) possess legal qualifications that would entitle him or her to practise in
all courts in the Republic ; and

(b} be a fit and prop'er' person, with due regard to his or her experience,
conscientiousness and integrily, to be entrusted with the responsibilities of the office
concerned.”

According to section 12(6) of the Act, the President may provisionally suspend
the National Director or a Deputy National Director from his or her offica, pending an
enquiry into his or her fitness to hold office.

The provisions of section 12(8) of the Act are mutatis mutandis applicable to
suspension of the Director of Public Prosecutions.




As you are aware, the National Prosecuting Authority is an important
constitutional institution in the administration of Justice and mamtammg public
confidence in the institution is of necessity.

| hereby afford you an opportunity to make written representation as to why |
should not place you on suspension pending the outcome of the enquiry into your
fitness to hold office. Such representation must reach my office on or before
28 November 2018.

Yours smcerely, ‘

President of the Republic of South Africa

. Dr Torie Preforius '
- Acting Special Director of Public Prosecutions
Private Bag X 752
Pretoria -

- 0001

ce: Minister TM Maéutha: Minister of Justice and Correctional Services



14 November 2016

Dear Adv. _Mzinyathi,.

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO SUSPEND IN TERMS OF SECTION 12(6)(a) OF THE
NATIONAL PROSECUTING AUTHORITY ACT, 1998 (ACT NO.32 OF 1998)

| have been requested by Freedom Under Law and the Helen Suzman

Foundation to provisionally suspend you pending an enquiry into your fitness to hold
office. - - e : S T _ _

Freedom Under Law and the Helen Suzman Foundation raised concerns with

the manner in which you conducted the prosecution of Minister Pravin Gordhan, Mr

Visvanathian Pillay and Mr George Magashula. According to them, your conduct in

relation to prosecution of the above mentioned people brought the NPA into
disrepute, and consequently rendered you unfit to hold office as Directar of Public

Prosecutions. '

The letter from Freedom Under Law and the Helen Suzman qundation is
attached hereto. ' :

Section 9 (1) of the National Prosecuting Authority Act, 1998 (Act No. 32 of
1998 (the Act), provides that "Any person to be appointed as National Director,
Deputy Nalional Director or Director must-

{a) possess legal qualifications that would entitle him or her to practise in
all courts in the Republic ; and

(b) be a fit and proper person, with due regard to his or her experience,
conscientiousness and infegrity, fo be entrusted with the responsibilities of the office
concemed.”

According to section 12(6) of the Act, the Prasident may provisionally suspend
the National Director or a Deputy National Director from his or her office, pending an
enquiry into his or her fitness io hold office.

The provisions of section 12(8) of the Act are mutatis mutandis applicable to
suspension of the Director of Public Prosecutions.
/
f
i
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As you are aware, the National Prosecuting Authority is an important

constitutional institution in. the administration of Justice and maintaining public

confidence in the institution is of necessity.

| hereby afford you an opportunity to make wiitten representation as to why |
should not place you on suspension pending the outcome of the enquiry into your
fitness to hold office, Such representation must reach my office on or before
28 November 20186.

Yours sincerely,

vitilekisa Zuma .
President of the Repu_blic of South Africa

" Mr Jacob Gedie

Advocate Slbonglle Mzinyathi -
Director of Public Progecutions

- Gauteng North

Pretoria
0001_ '

cc: Minister TM Masutha: Minister of Justice and Correctional Services

- \
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S A4

Q“HCE OF THE MATIONAL BIRECTOR
OF PUBLIC PROSECUTIONS -

Victoria & Griffiths Mxenge Building,
123 Weastlake Avenue, Weavind Park Silverton,
Pretoria, 0001

‘NATIONAL PROSECUTING AUTHORITY Private Bag X752, Pretcria, 0001

South Africa I Contact number: 012 845 6758
Email; ndpp@npa.govza
Www.npagov.za

Your ref: V Movshov]ch /P Dela/D Cron/ D Rafferty / T Dye 3012607

Our ref: Summons No 574/16
CAS Brooklyn 427/05/2015

Webber Wentzel

P OBox61771 -
MARSHALLTOWN
2107

Dear Sir

. Email: v!ad.m'ovshoVich@WebbeMentzef.com

THE STATE VERSUS OUPA MAGASHULA VISVANATHAN (IVAN) PILLAY
AND PRAVIN GORDHAN - , _

1. Your ieﬁer dated 14 October 20186, the conten't.of Which is noted, refers.

2. As you are aware, the decision to prosecute Minister:Pravin Gordhan was
made by the Acting. Special Director of Public Prosecutions and Head:
Priority Crimes Litigation. Unit, Dr Torie Pretorits SC, in consultation with the
Director of Public Prosecutions, North Gauteng, Adv Sibongile Mzinyathi in
terms of section 24(3) of the National Prosecuting Authority Act, 32 of 1998

(“the NPA Act").

3. Section 179(5)(d) of the Constitution, which is replicated in s22(2)(c) of the
NPA Act, empowers the National Director, if requested to do so, to review a
decision to prosecute or not to prosecute, after consulting the relevant
Director and after taking representations, within a period spscified by the
National Director, of*the accused persons, the complainant and any other
person or party whom the National Director considers refavant.

4, Earlier today Messrs Oupa Magashula and Visvanathan (lvan) Pillay, through
their legal representatives, made representations to me in which they




requested me {o review the decision 'by the Acting Special Director of Public
Prosecutions. :

5. lam presently considering the aforementioned representations.

6. In giving effect to the provisions of éection 179(5)(d) of the Constitution and
section 22(2)(c) of the NPA Act, | have further invited Minister Gordhan
through his lawyers, to make representatrons to me by no later than 17h00 on

18 October 2016.

7.1 wi!l consider all these representations.

Yours sincerely .

~ ADV SK ABRAHANS -
NATIONAL DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC PROSECUTIONS
DATE: 1 — o - 2y .

Report fo the Minister of J&CS In terms of section 332)(a) of (he NIPA Act, re the SARS matler; 3 Gctober 2016

s,
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PrIVaatsﬂi(!Prl\}atG Bag X 1600, SILVERTON

Referenca

_ Enqulrles Lt Gen B M Nilermeza
Tal/ Fax 012 846 4002

012 846 4400

OFFIOE OF THE NATIONAL HEAD

HEAD OFFICE
PRETORIA

)

10 Octobier 2016

Emall o ‘gclhead@sagsg’ovzg' .'

Natlonal Dlrector of Publlc F’roseout!ons

VGM Buildlng .
123 Westiake Avenus, Weavmd Park

: Sllverton :

~ ATT: Adv Abfahams

DIRECTORATE FOR fﬁ}rpm ,cglma INVESTIGATION

0 -1~ 18
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“1

RES THE STATE v OUPRNAGASHULA, AN PLLAY AND PRAVN GO |

1,

| refer to your letter dated 17 October 2016 for whsch l thank you for mwting ms to make. ! .
' representatlons to: you I terms of sectzon 179(5)9(1) of. the Conshtution,\read with -
sectmn 22(2)(c) of the:. NPA Act regardlng the. representations whlch 'you say you have . '

. 'received from the above mentloned persons through their legal representaﬂves

Wh_!lst ] am at plll\}y‘fo the represeniafibhs théy have"madd‘td ydu.'.‘.l ‘am of the view that
the DPCI has fulfllled Its statutory abligation In terms of Chapte,r'SA of the. SAPS Act by

conclucting an Investigation and submitiing the docket to-the' NPA for & declsion. We wil
as the DPCI be bound by whatever declsion that is taken by your offica-in this matter
and will continue to coopefate with the NPA and to catry whatever instructions they. give *
to us in'guiding our investigating offlcers in carrying out thef'r invéstigaﬂons‘

| For the above reasaons; the DPC! will not be making any representations on the matter

but will await your decision on the matter which will be respactad by this office:

Yours sincerely

LIEUTENANT GENERAL
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PrivaatsakiPrivate Bag X 1500, SILVERTON

OFFICE OF THE NATIONAL HEAD

Réference Cas 427/5/2015 DIRECTORATE FOR PRIORITY CRIME INVESTIGATION
- : HEAD OFFICE
Enquires Lt Gen B M Nilemeza PRETORIA
30 OCTOBER 2016
Tel/ Fax 012 846 4002 ‘
012 846 4400 - , o
' BENGE Gt o MRETUR
E mail dpcihead@saps.gov.za S T :
40 -
Adv Shaun Abrahams . 016 <0 31
National Director of Publlc Prosecut:ons : -
VGM Buildmg SR : _
SILVERTON . - .dﬁ i’”"*t s et
S 5

- Re: state vs PRAVIN GORDHAN 8 2 OTHERS

1. On 17 October. 2016 you wrote to us asking if we had any representatlons to make

Wlth regard to this matter

2. We lnformed you per our !etter dated 18 Qctober 2016 that we had no representations

to make

3. We learn through the. media reports that at the time.when you wrote this lefter you had
received representations from some of the accused in this matter, Mr Oupa

Magashula and Mr trvin Plllay.

4. In this regard we would like to enquire whether these media reports are true and if so

why you did not:
4.1 disclose to us that you received those representations;

T T e LI T i i e T e s



Re: STATE vs PRAVIN GORDHAN & 2 OTHERS - .

4.2 request us to make our input as the rnveettgatlve agency. responsible for this
matter and clearty a person relevant in terms of section 22 of tha NPA Act;
4.3 furnteh us with a copy of the representatrene you recerved to enable us to

properly conssder them when we make our input. |

5. tt Is atteged that when Mr Oupa Magashula was called for tingerprmt takmg, he sald it
was hot hecessary to do so as the NDPP mtends to withdraw the charges against

them,

8. lam aware from the medra reports that you intend to wrthdraw the charges when the"

“accused appear in Court on the 02 November 201 8.

\“:.

7. Furthermore, the. medra reports of today 30 October 201 B,- state that you mtend to

- make an announcement pertaanlng to your declsaon. whioh we betreve woutd be to the
: effeot that you wlll wnthdraw the oharges

8. ltisour consxdered view that |f this is true, your acttone are oontrary to the tmperattves;

of section 41(1)(h) of the Constftutton which you dealt with at length In announcing the

decislon that the accueed are to be charged with fraud and theft some weeks ago. We

do not expeot the NDPP todo so.

9. Further it Is our considered view that your. decision. Is- notmade in good faith- on

. evidence that we have gathered as an investigative: agency in this. matter. Rather it

seems to us that you make thls decision based on the nolse made by politicians; clvil
society lobby groups, and the media sympathetic to the accused,

10. These groups have falsely accused the Hawke and the NPA in the public domain of
pursulng the case against the accused persons for political purposes on instructions
fram the political masters which is utter nonsense. This is the deliberate propaganda
machinery that they have unieashed to gain public sympathy and support for the
accused persons in their quest to discredit law anforcement agencies in the execution

of their mandate.




RE: STATE vs PRAVIN GORDHAN &2 OTHERS

11.1t is our mandate to investigate crime and bring perpetratcrs to book where there is
evidence, irrespective of who the perpetrator is, which office or station in society they
occupy and whatever thelr popularity stake Is, in giving. effect to the principle of

equality before the [aw.

12. We are extremely concernad about your reported prevarlcating stance with regard to
the prosecution of the accused persons  in this matter -and- whlch will bring. the
admmlstratmn of Justtce and. the law: enforcement ‘agencles rnto senous dlsrepute in
this country. We note with deep concern the overtures of offers you have made to the

accused persons to make representatrons to you in thls matter after announcrng the =

NPA dectslon to charge them, Wthh is very much unusual In our experlence

13. We haVe handled many mvestlgatlcns of fraud end theft as: you are aware.. it is our
ccnsldered view that we have a strong case against the accused desp[te aII contrary
the VIEWS of the so-called optnion makers and legal experts in the ‘media. If the
accusad have any defences to: the- charges or any: issues wrth regard to their

prosecutron the place.tc ventilate that is an open cc_urt through a cnmmal_ trial-and be-

cross examined to expose the truth.

14.We mention all these Issues of -whtch you are aware to hi'ghlight one issue: that it

would be Imp_rciper for you as a NDPP to stall or withdraw the_ prosecution of the.

accused persons in this matter. We do so without being privy to-any information at
your disposal which you may have received through representations as you opted not
to share this with us though we are an investigative agency responsible for this matter.

15. In light of all the Issues and considerations highlighted above we humbly request that:

15.1 vyou provide us with the representations that you have recelved from Mr
Magashula and Mr lrvan Pillay in order to enable us to make a meaningful input
as envisaged In section 22 of the NPA Act;

16.2 the decision on whether charges should be withdrawn or proceeded with be

made once you have considered our views,

e




Re: state vs PRAVIN GORDHAN & 2 OTHERS

16, We trust that you will senously consider our views and requests before reaching your
decision In this matter.. We hope to hear from youg soon. i

Kind regards

SRR 4777 '  LIEUTENANT GENERAL
NATIONALHEAD: DIRECTORATE FOR PRIORJTY CRIME INVESTIGATION

B. M. NTLEMEZA"

DATE: 2016+10-31
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©OF PUBLIC PRUSECUTIONS

Vrc{m ta & Griffths chnge Hulldmg.

[23 WesHale A\.'cnue Weagvind Park Silverten,
" Pretoris 000!

Pr"ivnie Bag X732, Pretorla, 0001

NAT!ONAL PROSEC‘.UTING AUTHORITY

Soith J‘\D‘ftﬂ (‘_:un,lact‘nmnber; 012 845 1'57.‘59
Ernail * ndpp@npa.gavan

WAL BOVET

General B Nilenieza :
© Pirectorate for Priority Crime’ Jnvest[gatlon . . .

. Promat Building--
1 Cresswell Road
Silvetton
0186

Dear General . © - e L R o
S ‘ S S Emaif tlemeza beming@seps.gov.za
: ' o A chhead@sags gDVZ o

THE STATE VERSUS OUPA MAGASHULA; wsVANATHAN (EVAN) PILLAY -
AND PRAVIN GORDHAN - o |

1. Your Ietters dated f8.October 2016 aind 30 October 2016 refsr. L

2. For ease of referenc:e i attach hareto coples ‘of self-explanatory let’ters
hetwesn- ourselves, dated 17. and: 18" October 2016 : respectively,, Your
.asserﬂon in paragraph 3 of your letter; dated 30 October 2016 is thus

mcorrect

3.1 do ot Intend o respond to each and évery avermen’r contained if your ietter :
dated 30 Ostobier 2016 and will endeavour to respond thereto fmore fully at a
Iater stage. .

4, ln glvmg effect to the prov!smns of sectlon 179(5)(d)’ of tha Constltutlon I
have reviewed thé declsion- o prosecute Messrs Oupa: Magashuila, ‘

. Visvanathan (Ivan) Pillay and Pravin Gordhan In respect of the charges listed
~ In the summons, . . R

5. After perusal of the matter | have decided to overrule the decislon fo
prosecute: the. aforementioned ;persons. and have directed” that the
summonses be withdrawn Immediately. | am of the .view that the prosacution
will have extreme difficulty in proving the prerequisite knewledge of
unlawfulness and Intention In respect of all three accused persons, This
decision was made yesterday afternoon after much consideration. Your letter
dated 30 October 2016 was racelved after my decision had beén made.

Justice [n our soclety se that people can live in freedom and security

OFFICE OF THE NATIONA Dlﬂﬁcmiﬁ e




. Under the cirsumstances 1t will ha Iongol be neoessary fcn‘ aﬁy ohe-of {hem to
appeax i court on the. ohafges as. Iﬁfer;l In the summonses. Thell Ieg'\!‘ g
|ep1esenta’zWeu have. been informed accordihgly '

7. :Membets af thes P:routy Cum@s Ljilgatton Unit. wll[ conimue td plowde '
: guldance ta membars of the: nwesflgaﬁng teain In respact. or the. |emammg* ct
' mvaatlgatrons under Broaklyn CAS 427/5/201 5. -

ADV SK‘ ABRAHAMS

" NATIONAL DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC PROSEGUTIONS | o
- DATE! 31@0t0ber20‘16 L

Report g {he Mintsler of J&ES In lerms of seciion 33(2){a) of the NPA Aél, re the BARS maller; 3 Octobst 2016




SEFICE CF THE RATIOMAL DIRECTOR
G PLIBLIC PROSECUTIONS

Victaria & Griffiths Mxenge Buikling,
143 Waasiladee Averue, Wanvlnel Parle Sitvartan,
Pretoria, 000!

Gt

i ROSEEUTINGAUTHONTY | Flvate g 742, Preloria, 000!
Biuth Altica Contant mmbser: 012 845 4758
Erviaik relppEinpagovien
YA D OV
8 November 2016
Lt Gian BM Nileme:za
Natlonal Head - _ ‘ ,
! Directorate for Prioity Crimea Invastigation : : o
j - Mead Offfics ' ; |
[rivate Bag X1600
SILVERTON B o |
' ' ' Emall: Nemazabemina@saps.ofd.za

“dpclhead@saps.qov.2a

Dcﬁar Genaral Nilemeza
5 v PRAVIN GORDHAN & @ OTHERS

1, Your \etters dated 18 and 30 October 2016, as well as my Iéttérs, dated 17 and
41 October 2016, have mference, Coples thereof ara aftached hereto for your
cotveniance, ' o

2, In.my letler ;Izii{ed 31 Qatober 2016, | sommunicated my intention to respond more
comprehenslvaly to your letter dated 30 Octobar 2016, henge this comtnunigue.

4, | find the tone of your aforemantioned letter extramsly disconserting and contrary to
the spirft espoused In the provislon of saction 41 of the Constitution. '

4. | deem It prudent to recoit that the power to Institute orlminal proveadings on behalf -
of the Gtate and to cawy out any necessary functlons Incidental thereto 18
conatitutionally entienched and vested in the National Prosecuting Authority.

Further, the NPA Ast provides that a member of the Prosecuting Authority shall i
sorve Impartially and exerclse, carty out or perform his/her powers, duties and
furictlons In good Yalth and without fear, favour or prejudics and subject only to the

:

Copstitution and the law,

5. At the outset | deem it Instructive to record that the powers of review, as enunciated
in sestion 179(B)(d) of the Conatitution, and which are replicated I saction 22(2){(c)
of the NPA Act, are vasted in the Natlonal Director of Publle Prosecutions, As stich,
| desmed your, department to be a relevant party in terms of saction 178(8)(d)(l).
To thls end | Informed you that | had received representations from Mr Pillay and

Justiga i aup sociaty so that peopls can livae In (reedom and gachrity




-

Mr Magashula's legal representatives in my letter dated 17 October 20186, which was
clear and unamblguous, My letter dated 17 October 2016 also setved as an
invitation to you to make represertations to me had you wished to do so, Under no
slreumetancas am | obligated to provide you with & copy of any representations
rmade to me by any party, - '

7, ake umbrage at the very sarlous allegations you levellad agalnst me of not having
acted In good fallh, Speaking of good falth, kindly advise me how did It come about
that the niemtorandum of Mr Symington, by way of example, only surfaced on
14 October 2018, whan Frasdom under L.aw and the Helen Suzman Foundation
wroty to ma?- ' .

8, Your view. adopted I para 9 of your letter, dated 30 Ostober 2016, is rather
regretiable In that you alleged that my decision to.withdraw the charges against
Messra  Magashula, -Pllay and Gordhan- was “based on the. noise -made by
poliileians, olvil soclety lobby groups, and the media syinpathetic to the accused.” In
this regard you are completely Incorrect and ii-nfarmad. My deaislon was -hased

" pdly on the merlts of the matter after having reviewed the matter and- having
directed further investigations along with the applicable legal provisions, -

9, T ot"hava proceeded with the matter aiter recalpt of the representations and the
additional Invastigative matetlal would, with the greatest of respect, have been

- contrary to the rule of law and constitutional preseripts. - - -

10,1 am not In a position to.respond 1o the allegations around Mr Magashula, | made
“the declgion to withdraw the charges during the afternoon of 30 October 2018, You
‘ware - informed of - my  aforsmantioned  deolsion the very next day, on

31 QOotober 2018, ' |

11, 1n conclusion, youlr logal and constitutional mandate does not permit you to advise
me wher to withdraw matters and/or when to proceed with prosecutions, | insist that
you fefraln from any further communioations or conduet to this effect, failing which
will have serfous repercusslons.

12, Neverthelegs, your racommandations in respect of concluded investigations,
submittad to the National Prosecuting Authority, will as usual always be welcome,

13.Aly omission not 1o comimant on any other allegation as per your letter, dated
30°Ogtober 2018, should not be constiued as acquiescence tharewith.

‘Aourrs Incerely

T N FETELEN
Moty g / ——y s
] . gt
( Mtoses 1t
L s e

ADV 8K ABRAMAMS
NATIONAL DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC PROSECUTIONS
DATE: Y = 1~ iy

- - " A i
Justice in oltr dociaty so thal people can tive in froedom and securlty ///é
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CONFIDENTIAL

Internal Memorandum A"

Daar 6upq '

PURPQSE
Tha pirpose of this memorandum ls o explain ihat { have decided to ta

to recommend for posslbia approval by the M:niater cartain related matt

(o aarly reflrement as well as to requgst yols to consider
s that wll flow from my declsion to take early

refrement. .. .

ears, | 0 yeara wh!ch have been spentwllh SARS. For

As you knuw. | have been wofking ln the PubHc Sdotdr for the past 16
gtad to perform at a vaty hfgh level acnompan!ed hy the '

B  themost part ofthls perlud especlally my tenura wlth SARS; 1 was exp
‘aucnuntabilltles that gowith tha performanca of sucha hlgh Ievei job. T is avacted ts toil from me I the sensa that my health

o eondlﬂon is slotly deterloratlng Added to'his, ry Tamlly responshiltey; fora long time, suffered on account of the dedicatlon”

' _' requlred by my job Wit h the afaremenﬂoned ln mind althuugh sill not asy, | i have decided fo tal(e eariy ra!lrement

huton makes toWa_rds theestabllshmentofaneven
serva in SARS In 4 diffarent capacity whera the - -
e fiat Instarice taking early refiement,

- HOW&VBF, I am shl[ emhuslasilc about SARS and the tremendous conirl
better South Afrlca for all Its citfzens., With a viaw therslo i 'am willlng id
| demanc_ls of such'a jqb will positivaly suppon the reasons why | am in

Should yan favorably consider my-proposal to serve SARS in a different capacty, such service wi[{ have to be subject to that 1

be appolnted as a contract amployes, This wil allow.me more flaxiailityfin torms of making a deciston to finally part ways with
nat my eatly refirement is approved In ferms oftha -

SARS, should | come to such a declslon. The second conditlon wil he i
pravisions of sectlon 16(6){a) and (b) of the Public Service Act, meanin | that the Minlster, In terms of the provisions of the
aforementioned sectlon approve that the penalty imposed on my pens{cn beneflts per Rule 14.3.3 {b) of the GEPF Rules, be

paid by SARS fo the GEPF, The GEFF has Indicated that the penalty amount on my pension benefits that the smployer has to
nay on my behalf s R1 292 732,68, - ' '




- GONFIDENTIAL -

F!ECOMME{:\!@ATDN
My recommendaimns are that you please
o Take nota fhat | tntend to tale early retirement

_Gonsider fo approveihat Ihe reappomted In a different capacity if SARa on & ooniract hasls, and

-]
uenaliy oh iy pensiun henefﬂs be paid on my behai‘f

o Consider to rec:omrmand {othe Ministsr that he approves that the

]

fothe QEPF by thia employer.

A g T e e



SALD

_ PLEASEINSERT TOPIC

Dear Pravin

FURPOSE
The pumosa of this memorandum is to explain the reason why | have decidsd fo teke early retiroment as well as to request you

" fo considsr o approve / recommend certain related matters that will ow from my dacision fo take sarly rafirement

ZISCUSSION
| have reached the stage inmy life where it has becomie a reality that | had to make some very mpori_amgemﬂgeb_ouihe
-S_Jﬂaﬂgim%cbﬂdren, The dcclsxens Ihave taken will require a considerable capital nvestment, money that can be relsed by
- . means of a bank lean but which would be profibitively e)(pensme in wew of the current f nanma! circumstances where very hlgh
fates of inierests are the erderof the day and fndlcatlons are that fhis situation will prevail for rl‘ze foreseeable futura. -

n view of this| have decidad to mz‘erm you. that 1 infend to refire in 2009 when I veach the ege of 58 years. As I have already

5 reached the sarfiest optional retirement age of 55 years In terms of the SARS retgnement provisions, the refirement benefits wilf
prev;de me with a lump sum benaft (WMW*WWW
,ob_!glmn) as el as amonthly pensnon Whilst this may not heideal in terms of maximum benef ts wheri finafly retmng, [ a of

 the' opinion that this Is #he best opﬂon evaﬂab]e fo ms as far asmy ch]?dren s education is concerned
This bnngs me ‘if: the secend Issue at staks, nemely how | view my retlrement as ralsed above, Cleeriy ! am doing thls on
account of & matter that has nothlng to do with my work at SARS. | still feal that | am still capabia of doing my worl; | stifl have
the enthumasm and will o daitand | am of tha opinlon that through my work, | can sl contnhute ta the es;abhshment of an
aven befter South Afiica for all its citizens, Tel\mg this into eccount { will appreciate it if you will consider to approve that
immadiately after my early retirement, appaint me fo my ctrrent position butas a confract employee, Na legal provision
prevents you from making such an appoiniment. |

The third matter is slightly more feehﬂical and complicated and i.t conceins my early refirement henefits payable from the GEPF.
Although the Rules of the GEPF provides that a member of the GEPF can elect fo refire from the age of 55 years and onwards,
there is & penalty payable in terms of the benefits. The specific Rules in this regard determines (hat hoth the lump sum and
monthly pension wil be reduced by 0.30% for each month before an early 1etiree reeches the age of 6 years. As fintend fo
take early retirement at age 56 ysars (48 months before reaching the age of 60 years), my pension henefits will be reduced by
14.4%.1t was rsalized that the provisions of this parficular GEPF Rule prevented many employees from early mtirement and in
many instances those were employees Departments would have liked o take early rafirermant, I an effort to address [I"IF‘
situation, Sesiion 16 (6) of tho Public Service Act (which sifl applies to SARS) was amended fo provide ihat where early

retirement is apolicd for, Ministers can approve that employars (lepariments/SARS) pay the penaliies imposed on aarly

retifees i lems of the GEPF rules,

h views o this it will Le appraciated if you, when ! tke early retiremart, would recommend fo the Minisier ihat SARS )m/w iy
CEPE wy ooy pstiemont GEPE penaliios, 1 is aslinater] that iho penal fes wil amount in 21004 207




COMFIDENTIAL

Oupa Magashula
L)
Gomemisslorar: AR

Hata:

.........................................................................................................
..........................................................................................................
..........................................................................................................

..........................................................................................................

' 'AF'PROVEDI NOT APPROVED

Pravin Gordhan
Minlster: Finance

Date:’
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CBROGKUYN CAS 42770572015
Mico Johan Coetzee states under oath in English
1.

I'am an adult imale, 68 years old with {D number 480428 5047 081 and a pensioner residing
at number 23 Manfreya Mansions, 544 de Beer Street, Wonderboom-South, Pretoria, with
cellular phone number 0721196823 and home telephone number 012- 3356402,

2.

I am a former South African Revenue Service Human Resource Specialist. | worked for South
T T

African Revenue Service for 29years I retired from the employment of SARS on the 281" of

February 2013, My clutles entailed deahng with complex HR matters, drafting
letters/memorandums to the Minister and the Commlssmner I was a member of SARS
‘Bargaining Council, { was aIJO responsible for drafting News Flashes regarding HR matters. |
checked all legislations that may have had an impact cn SARS matters, | was reporting to Mrs
Susanna Vlsser

3,

Durmg December 2008, | was instructed by Susanna Visser to prepare a memorandum for the
early retirement of the Deputy Commissioner of SARS, Mr Ivan Pillay to the Minister of
Finance in terms of Section 16(6)(a){b) of the Public Service Act, 1994,

l prepared the memorandum based on the fact that Mr Ivan Pillay wished to pursue other
interests. The memorandum was submitted to Susanna Visser for Commissioner Pravin
Gordhan to recommend to the Minister that he considers approving the early retirement of
Mr Ivan Pil?ay in terms of the aforementioned provisions of the Public Service Act.

4.

| awaited the approval by the Minister of the request by Mr Pillay. In October 2009 while
waiting for the approval of the memorandum, | received a revised memorandum from the
office of the Commissicner, Mr Oupa Magashula. The memoarandum contained different
reasons from my original memorandum as to why the Minister should approve Mr tvan Piltay’s
early retirement. The reasons on the revised memorandum were that Mr Pillay wished to go
on early retirement in order to enable him to provide for his children’s education and not as
I have previously stated that ke wished to pursue other interests. | raised concerns to the
Commissioner throtigh the e-mails dated the 8™ and the 9 October 2009 respectively, that
if the Minister should approve Mr Pillay’s application.on the grounds.of personal interests -
may create a - R
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BR@GKLYN CAS A27/05/2015
plico Johan Coetzee continues under oath -
4,

precedent in terms of which, other employees might come forward with simitar request for

early retirement.

5.

| have amended the two submissicns | have received from the Commissioner’s office to fit in
with Pillay’s jatest reguest. On my e-mails to Qupa Magashula, | commented that it is not
unusual that a retired employee is reappointed after retirement in.a contract capacity. I afso.
commented that what may raise some eyebrows in this particU]ar case is that the emp!ovee
is appomted in the  same position he held before his retirement. Ordinarily, such a re-
appomtment will be {0 & dﬁgrer_rj’t and a lower graded pos;tson | further commented that we
q “had two similar appl;catlons for early retirement, both which Were not approved by the.
; o Minister as the Minister could not find sufficient reasons to approve early retirementin terms
of Sectlon 16(6)(a) of the Public Service Act. The Minister only had to consider Ef sufficient //

reasons existed to approve r Plllay 5 ear!y retirement.

6.

j On the e-mail dated 09 Dctober 2009, | stated that if Mr Pillay’s application is duly
recommended or approved it could technically be construed that SARS is willing to contribute
from its budget an amount of plus/minus R340 000.00 towards the education of his children.
| also stated that it is a rather cynical viewpoint, but it can be a viewpoint that may beheldby , ¢
] _ ‘other parties as well and that may put yourself (Qupa Magashula} and the Minister of Finance M
in a tight spot, especially because Mr Pillay was reappointed in his present position. The
argument may be that he was able to continue with his present functions but his early
retirement and reappointment were p_ureEy to assist him t__o_b_e_____a_blﬁo_jp%provide for his
children’s education. The supporting ogopii_mggg_(e—mai[s) to the above effect is attached

hereto as annexure NCI,
7.

| prepared the revised memorandum regarding this matter and forwarded it to the office of
the Commissioner, My Qupa Magashula. After the 18" of October 2010, HR received a
] memorandum in which the Minister approved the early retirement of Mr van Pillay, Human

Resources started the process to ensure that Mr Pillay be paid his fult retirement benefits as

M Y
B

approved by the Minister.




CEROOKLYN CAS427/05/2015 T s e

Nico Johan Ceetzee continues under oath
3.

On the 6th of July 2012, the SARS Chief Financial Officer received a Revised Claim from the
GEPF for the additional fiability owing to the FUND. In respect of the liability of Mr ivan Piilay
SARS owed GEPF an amount of R1 141 178.11 in terms of the reduced benefit {penalty) that
was due to be paid by SARS after the approval of the early retirement with full benefits. See
Annexure A, | prepared a memorandum to Yolande van der Merwe {finance SARS Own
Accounts), see annexure NC2, to explain to her why the claim for the payment of
R1 141-278.11 should be paid to the GEPF in respect'of Mr lvan Pillay. The payment of
R1141178.11 was effected on the 06 July 2012, The payment was the amount that
representecl the penalty due to be paid by SARS in terms of Section 17(4) of the GEPF Act,
1996,

9.
| am unaware from which provision in the SARS budget this payment was made.
10,

During my time at SARS, { also dealt with two other applications for eariy retirement wuth full
henefits. None of these appllcatlons were approved and | assume that insufficient reasons

axisted for the Minister not ta approve those applications. At some stage, [ and Susanna Visser
had a méeting with Mr Qupa Maghashula to discuss the implications of Mr Ivan Pillay’s

possible early retirement with full benefits. We advised Mr Magashuia that it was not
advisable to continue with the early retirement application of Mr Pillay because it was for
personal reasons and not business reasons.

This is all | can say

11,
| know and understand the contents of the above statement.
[ have no cbjection to taking the prescribed oath.

| consider the prescribed oath o be binding on my conscience.

Ay ]
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BROOKLYM CAS 427/05/2015

| certify that the deponent has acknowledged that he knows and understand the content of
this statement. This statement was sworn to before me and the deponent’s signature was
p!aced the z Urigg m@/resence at Pretoria on the 2016-09-14 at about 20:00

Sighature of Commissioner of Oaths

COMMISSIONER OF OATHS

MAGEZI FREDDY SEWELE

DIRECTORATE FOR PRIORITY CRIME INVESTIGATION (CATS)

CAPTAIN

218 VISAGIE STREET, PRETORIA
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South African Revenua Service
Suid-Afrikaanse Inkomstadisns
Uphike lwezimali Ezingenayo eMingizimu Afrika

Memorandum Tiretomatiotlo ya Afrika.Borwa

Human Resourcas

TO = Yolande van der Merwe
FROM e MNic Coetzee ' FEL e (012) 422-
DATE »05 July 2012

o Ravised claim: ADDITIONAL LIABILITY OWING TO THE GOVERMMENT EMPLOYEES
SUBJECT PEMBION FUND {GEPF).

Yolande

The attached revised claim {Annexure A) for the add]tzonal liability owing to the GEPF refers
As to the background of this claim by the GEPF, vour attenuon is invited to Section 17 ( E} of
the GEPF Law which reads as follows: _ '
“17 (4) If any action taken by the employer or if any legislation adopted by Parliament places
any additional obligation on the Fund, the employer or the Government or the employer and
the Government, as the case may be shall pay to the Fund an amount whrcn is required to
meet such obligation.” -
The aforementioned section of the Law thus places an obligation on SARS to pay to the GEPF
an amount that is equal to the amount of the additional costs that accrued to the GEPF on
account of a dzscreuonary decision made by SARS in terms of Lhﬂ retirement of ernployees
who were members of the GEPF. :

ms of the of R 91 as indicai ' ised claim by the GEPF
(Annexare A}, SARS approved that only one employee between the ages of 55 and 60 60 vears
retire with SARS paying the penalty as provided for in Rule 14.3.3({b) of the GEPF Rules for

‘early retirement on their behalf to the GEPF. This discretionary approval by SARS is provided

for in terms of the provision of Section 16{6){b) of the Public Service Act, 1994. In this regard
you are referred to the attached Annexure B and in particular to Annexure R9. You are
requested to pay only the original claim amount of R1,141,178.11 in respect of Mr Pillay SARS
has never approved the retiremant of Ms G van den Heever in terms of the aforementioned
provision of the Public Service Act and the interest amount, is c ly also in dispute
With reference to the second claim amount of R4, 020,631.37 on the revised GEPF claim
{Annexure A) the President of the Republic of South Africa approved that Mr S Soni, a former
SARS employee, be appointed as the South African Ambassador to Kazakhstan. Rules 14.1.1(e)
andi4.1.2  read with Rule 14,2.4(b)(AA) of the GEPF Rules determine that where th

President granted approval for this appointment  the pensionable service of th
employee/member of the GEPF be increased hy 1/3 of his/he rfommbuiory service limited to
a maximum of 5 years, The increase of the pensionable service of the former employee by 5
years lead to the additional liability by SARS te the GEPF of R 4 020 631,37, Particulars as how
this figure has been arrived at is indicated in Annexure C 3 - 7.
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b view of the afa
the amount of 5,161,809,
CTUTURFT m«sm:ftmnf by the GEPF. I lease also ensure that proof of payment is forwarded to the

! GEPF as per the EFT instructions. SARS’s employer code to be used as a reference number of
the deposit slip is 000146,
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arementioned it will beappreciated if the attached EFT ’\ppthLlf.il Form for |
48 can be processed as soon. as. nossible according to the atiached -




MEW TRADE CREDITOR REGUEST FORY

i
1Request by NIC COETZEE Checked by
Tel 012 422 4185 Tel

Dats 2012-06-28 Date

REASOM FOR REQUEST:

CREATE VENDOR

VENDGR ON HOLD

>

OTHER REASCON

Note: ADDITIONAL L

IABILITY OWING TO THE GEPK

FOR THE PERIOD 01/04/2011-30/06/2011 (FIRST QUARTER CLAIM)

FOR THE PERIOD 01/01/2012-31/03/2012 (FOURTH QUARTER CLAIM)

Creditor ID {Head Office use only)

Sreditor Mame

Trading as ...

GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES PENSION FUND

Class D

GEPE

VAT Reqgistration number

Current information

New information (Change)

Address (Postal and Physical) PRIVATE BAG X63 34 HAMILTON STREET
City ' |PRETORIA ARCADIA, PRETORIA
Postal code 0001 - ' 0007

| Contact Persen

MR MS MASANGO

2 _mail address

simon.masango@@aepf.co.za

Phone number(s) (0123319 1237 ( )
Additionai contact number(s) () { )
'{_JFax number_- (012 ) 325 0220 ()

BANKING DETAILS

Account name

GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES PENSION FUND (GEPE)

Bank ARSA BANK
Account number A05 419 7798

Tyne of account (savings or cheque) CURRENT/CHEQUE
Branch code 832005

B Dlagzs aiachad a sancallsd ¢

hagus, if applicabla.

— .

K
A
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|

SOVERNMENT ﬂ”LF SES PEMBION FUMHD

Contact Mr M8 Masango, Tel no.: (012) 318-1237, Fax na,: (212) 325-0220, Ref.: Bank Details (96)

Al deposits and ﬂ'eum“l‘ilc transfers in raspect of the Governmeant Enployeses

Pansion Fund {GEPF) should be deposited into the following bank account:

Account Name: Governmant cmployass Pensinn Fund (GEPF)

Account Mumber:  40-5419-7798

Account Tyne; e
Branch: Vaoorrakkar Road
Branch Coda: 5320-00

Proof of deposit must be sant to the Government Employeas Pension Fund by
fax to - My M35 Masango {042) 2250220 or emal o
simon.masango@aeof.co.za. Please ensure that you quote your Departments’
smployar code as a reference number (egZNBFEEE2) on your deposit siij

ST Sk

Thank vou for your ce-operation

AU ,j‘f;ﬁmzﬁ)s .
ASSITANT MAMAGER: CONTRIBUTION MANAGEMENT S
GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEED PENSION FUND T

[

il

[P,
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i REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRIGA
GOVERKMENT ERPLOTEES PERSION

ADRFISTRATION AGENCY
| Psivaie Bag XC3, Pretoria, 0001, 34 Hamlfion Sireet, Arcadia, Pretoria
H
]

Fef: 000145

j
! PR LI SRR e T X4 S
; Chief Financial Offices

NAT: SA REVENUE SERVICES
LEHALE LA SARS BUILDING
209 BRHONKHCORST STHEET
NEW MUCKLENEUCK
PRETORIA

0001

21 June 2012

% ATTENTION:
' Pevised claim: ADDITIONAL LIABILITY OWING TO THE GOVERNMENT
: - EMPLOVEES PENSION FUND '

| URGENT

Reference is hereby made to the letter dated 19 June 2012 with regard io
i Additional Liability Claim(s) for the period 01 April 2011 1o 30 June 2011 and ¢
| January 2012 o 31 March 2612 for which an amount of R 5,431,718.19 Is sill
! outstanding and payable to GEPF on' or before 7" of July 2012. (Hefer fo
Annexiire B)

Should an employer fail 1o pay the additional lability as it becornes due, interest
will be charged at the prescribed rate (repo rate plus 3%) and the employer will
also be obliged to pay the capital amount pius inferest raised.

Also note that the GEPF debt collection Policy requires the following escaiation
procedurss io be adhered in the event of nonpayment. Escalating to your Chief
* financial Officer (CFO), Accounting Officer and Executive Authority; should
this not have the dasired effect the issue will then be escalated to the office of the
Agoounting General within ths Mational Treasury for the nscessary

! intervention(s).

o

cugties

J ¢ . H i 2 L
g‘ _ If the amount has already been paid, please forward prootf of paymen(or
in ihis regard to fherssa.neethling@gpaa.gov.za or by fax to e following~.

1y

number {086) 690-00868.
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You are reminded that actuarial interest will accrue on the ouistanding balance;
thersfore contact must be made with our departtment to make payment

arrangeiments.

An ne}(me §-3

Payment Received:

issus . -
S ‘Be ?iuﬂi}ﬁ e Vaie 3 Total .
First Quarter Glalm: 201 1/04/01.201 1/06/30 25-Aug-11 | 1,333,460.91 1,333,460.91
Payment Received: - -
Balance 1,333,460.51 1,333,450.91
Fourih Quarter Cleum 20|2/D1/D1 to . : :
2012/03/31 15-June-12 | 4,020,631.37 5,354,002.28

Late paymsnt interest:

77,625.91

77,825.41

Armount Outstanding

4,098,257.28

5,431,718.19

| trust-tratyey will find this in order

/7.'/ )
4 s
Al

57?{ 15 fPMSﬁ:V&—O

Your co-operation is urgehﬂy required with rega'rd_to this matter

\@zsm"ztﬂfianager Contrlbutzon Management: EB - Finance Szction

Tef (012) 319 1101
Fx: (086) 690-0068
H-mail: theresa.neethling@gpaagov.za

[ F—

o

P

T



Nn Coelze

ot R i S : —_— . B
) Framt: Mic Coetrae
! Sent: ) 09 Ociober 2008 05:57 AM

To: Oupa G. Magashula
. Subject: FW: HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL
L
it

e e
i Early retirsment  Zarly retirement lvan
applicaticn I... Pillay m...
. Hi Ou

!
i I am res=nding this s-maill on acocuni of a slight changs I have mads bto the two
‘ attachsd documents. The changes indicate that the reason why Mr Pillay is regusstiog
. approval for early retirement is to provide for his Phildren’s zducation and not as I
i have previously stated that hs wished bto pursue cthar interssts. You will now have ©o
1"~ consider to recemmend and the Minister considsr to agprove ifF *hws'is'S”F“ICIEWP'

REASON to racommend/approve Mr Pillay's application for early retiremant. If his
application is duly rﬁPJmme1ded/ap roved, it couvid technically be Lonstruﬂd that SARS
is @i;;an (9] contrlbuL, From 1€s Dudgpc an amount of + R340 000 towards the

delication of his children. I admiu it is’a raither bvnlcal v1ew001nL, but it can be a
vvapoﬁn that may be heild by cthe artiss as well and that may pun Lourau‘f ﬂrd fFﬂ

Minister in a tlgnL SDOtL“ESDEQléle bpacauss Mr E1llay was. re-appointed in hils pre SrnL
pos1Lfaﬁf”§Fé argument may He that he was able to continie with his present fTUncrions,
BE?FEIZ_Eérly retirement and reapp01ntmpnt wa5 purely to assisk him to be able to
provide fufi?ﬁ??ﬁIIHﬁ;??rgdULaL1Oﬂ, with a R340 000 "contribubion" from SAERS.

1
!
;

Thanks

—

Mic.

¢ T Original Message-----

! From: d¥ic Coestzee

Sent: 03 Octobsr 2009 03:24 PM
To: CGupa G. Magashula

Subject: RE: HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL

Hi Oupa
I Luckily for me I have dealt with this matter during June this year but T do not know
" why the matter was not promoted at the time as I have certainly started the process. I
have amended the two submissions (attached) to fit in with Mr Pillav’'s latest requesh.
‘mﬁlt is not unusual that a rebired employse is re-appointed after reti 1
; ontract capacity. What may raise some eyehrows in this particular c 3

niz=dl Ln the same pcsitiOB he held before his reti
lowar-graded posi

for fhﬂ re-app

cmpLOJUJ is app




Employment Contract between SARS and My Visvanathan Pillay
- EMPLOYMENT COMNTRACT

enterad into hetween:

THE SGUI:IAFHICAM PEVENUE SERVICE

(‘the Employer”) .

Cand

- 1.2 The-Employes: shall commence: omp!oyment ar” 1 January 20! 1. {the-

Mmployes Witness | % lmployer Witness | -

Yisvanathan PI”‘:’U _
Identity numuar 53041‘8 5?’34 085

("fhe Emp oyee”)

1. APPOINTMENT

1,1 | ~ The mefoyar employs thae Empfoyee and the Emp#oyee accepts the_

appointment and shall render services to the Emp?o;er in the capaclty saf
out in Annextre A to this cfmnact OF any olher s fmnar capacity leqmred
by the Empioysr from time to time, Any change in capacity will be set out
in a letter, which letter will then form an Addendum to this agreement and

will replace Annexure A,

“Commencemant Dafe") for a period of Fivs (5) yaam and shall terminata
an 31 December 2015, Notwithstanding the date on which this contract of
employmant Is signad, the Commencemant Date Is a5 stated.

15 Tha Employae will perforr hig functions and dutias in terms of this
cgreemont at SARS Head Office in Pratorla or such other place as tha

Employee inay reasonably ba required by the Emplover from tima o time
for the effective performance of ihe Employae's funciions and duties in

terms of this agreement

4

Imployes

Pl .
Fiplovee Witnoss 2 4}/ Employer Witgess ) L i Prplayver

i b L RIS P ﬁﬂ?“._‘ﬁ i

1
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|i e Fmployment Coaliact betwesn SARS and M Visvanathan Pillay 2 '
| 5 ( "5 '.
;Jf , .
4 2, I'UNL TOMS AND DUTIES OF EMPLOYEE -
I 2.1 The Employes will perfarm functions and dutles In a professianal manner
and to the best of his abllity as referred to in the role profile/ job
’ . description.. Any changa In role profils fjob description will carnmunicated f"'
r _ ' as may be nacessary. ' o
¥ _ , .
‘, i
2.2 I addition ta the fumtlons and dutlas Lontaénpd in the Job deocrlptlon the . sl
‘ ' Employee w:ll '
2210 . - perfolm aUCh dunes as. the. Employer ar. ;ts duly authonsed o
B oo N 'Jepzcsenianve ma/ from ffme to t;ma aosign to hlm % -'
L _ 222 peﬁolm hls dulies m a. tfme!y. profesulonai fmd redponsllﬁe - E
H LI ) . . ; i,
‘ ? manner as this l::mpioysr o other authonsed representative of the ‘
L‘mp!oyer may dirsct ﬂ om tlme to tlme, S 1r
1 j -
2.2.3 _ in ilwe.'dischargé7.-of'hrls duties, observe and comply with il

P _ - resofutions, dlrecnvns, mres orders, poiices and procedures as
I" ' the Employel may glve from time to time;

SN

! 2.2.4 davots all his time and attention to his dutles under this agreement

. - | ]
during normal working hours; ¥

i
2.2.5 not comimunicate, publish or distiibute to any person outside the ;

Employer's employ, oither dwing the contnuance of his

employment undar this agreement or thersaiter, any offlcial

b sk

daguments, raviews, research resuils, articles and/or publications
witether produced by tha Employas ar net, without tha prior wrilten
permission of the FEmployer or other duly autherised 4

811

reprasentalive of the Employer;

Iy i
[

) Emnployar Witness [ s
i
i

Mmployae Wiliess Lnployes

: - oAl \ i . 7 ,
Proployes Witnese g n Erpsloyer Witness 7 {;":‘.‘-;" Hoipleyyor



Employment Contract between SARS and Mr Visvanathan Pifiay 3

2,286 at such intervals as tha Employer may direct, report fully on the
rasuits obtained and knowledge acquired by him in any ressarch

work done by him both durihg and outside working hours;

22.7 : tise hlo best endeavours to praperly conduct, improve, cxtpncl
promote and protact and pr eserve the interasts and reputation of

the Em pfoyer, and

228 0 S not engage. ll’] actlwtles that woulcf detract from the proper

o pﬂrrmmance of hls functions fmd dutles

The i:mployer may, ar[er cans uftlng W|th the Empfcjee changa oF am@nd,

o
o

the-. Employass dutres and rcsponsrb:!ntles from tlme fo- time i
accordance with the Emplo /er 8 operatmnal requ;rpments

X !"L.MUNE. \“\TiON

3.1 ,  The Emp!oyee wsl! be pafd an ail mc#uslve remuneratlon package as Set
out in Annexure A to th!s contract of employment, -

3.2 . R The Empfoyee agreés that his rémunaraﬂon 'package Qvi!l be reviewed
annually in line with the Empfo;er’s guaranteed Jpay policy and
pmcadu;ss a8 applicabls from time to time, coples of whrch are avallablas

the Employee from the HR department. The Empfo;en agrees o
access the Employer's Pay Policy. and Procedures and to “familiarise -
himsaif as to the content therenf, A key slemant of this annual review wil

be the measuremant of the Employes’s performance agalnst the
standards of performarnce agraed to with the cmployer represented by the
Employee's line manager. The Employee wilt be advised of an Y increasa

(o his remuneration packaga by means of a latter, which |elter will then

form an Addendum to this agreement and will replace Annaxura A, .

t
— ' . y - —
Employes Witness | ,f Linployer Witness | Foployes (U

. e ,
Fimployes Witness 2 410 Hinployer Witness 2 1F Linployer
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Finployee Wimese 20 T 2D Haployer Witness 20

3.3 The Employer shall provide the Employae during his smployment with the
beneill of membership of a Medical Ald Schems selected from tims fo
time, unlass the Emplcyee furnishes proof that he Is a dependant on his

'spsuse’s or partner's scheme. The Employee shall be subject to such

- Medical Ald Scheme's rules as amended fram time to Hme.

3.4 The [Employee is excluded from memparship of the Government
_ Em.ploy_ee_s; FPension Eund -in_.;acaordancej-‘wi'thf‘sec'tion_ 5" (d)- of ‘the—

Government Erﬁployees‘.Pensldn_Law."fQQB (Prc}ciamation 27 of '1996).

(W5
{I1

The Enwploynr 'sﬁ'a!%'ma! c'.*'mribu .ona to thb EJHPIDYL.B 8 ﬁedu al aid on

_ behalf of lho Emn!oyga and at. the: Employees |equest monthl/ in.
qrrears “the cost of w‘ﬂch shall form part of the Employefs remunerdﬂon
p'tr‘kage reﬂecthd i Annewure Ato thrs contract of empioymeﬂt

3.8 : f" he ;,mpfoyae wiil receivca hfs remunerailon in twel\Je equwl monthiy
: payments on the |50 of every month. Should the 15‘h fall ana weekend or

gubhr hahday the Empfoyee will b pald on the day lmmedlately
precedln J uUCh weekand or pubrrc hofrday

3.7 ~ Tha Employer doas ot provld_e any post retiremen-t medical aid bansfits.

4. PERFORMANCE BONUS

41 The Emplovae will report to the Commissioner: SARS or a tlalegate who
will discuss and sonclude a performance contract with the Employea
within the first six weeks of smploymant.

Emptoyer Witneg |
v I;'f




Employment Contract between SARS and Mr Visvanathan Pillay

4.2 By concluding and signing such a performance contract, the Employee'

Wit he eligible  to pariiclpale In the Employei's Parformance
Bonus/lncentive Scheme. In the avent lhat the Employee refuses or I3
unwilling to participate in the E‘rﬁploypr's Bonusf%ncehtiva Scheme, then in
such an event -the Emp!oyee agrees that he will not be entitled to any

addmoml remunelahon save that as detalied in the agreaed Employea's

~ remuneration.

43 The terms and cond[’nons Of the Employee° partlclpaﬁon on the above;
"scheme are. SPt oui in more detall ‘on the Empfoyel“s Performance 7
Mﬂnagement and/or lnccntlve Scheme Pohmes as appllcable f;orn tima

to time. and avallabla 1o the Enmfoyee who agrees to access such'

_polfcles rrom the HR depar&meni
5. WORKING HoURs Awb_ ov’&é'nms_

The Empioyeeg ordmary hours of work are. Bam to Spm Mondays to -

‘ <

Fndays both days rncluswe with an entltlement to a 80 ‘minute mea

intarvai, However the Employee will be requnred to work such add! tlonai

tfime as s ne_ce‘ssary to prapt:rly perform all the‘funchons of ihejob.
52 Qverilmais paid anly to those smployees who are entitlad to overtimsa In

terms ofthe'Overtime Policy.

8. LEAVE

8. Annual leave, sick leave, family respensibility leave and study leava is
regulated by the Emplayer's Leave Policy, applicable from time to tima, a
copy of whlch Is avallable from the HR department.

‘s .. /.
filoyee Witness |1 finployer Wimess | Lmployee )

Employee Wiiness 2 } [ Lieployer Wimess 4y Fiaphoyir /;
Ji _
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;‘ T ALLOWANGE . i
t .
, . . - + ‘
- 7.1 Allowancea payable to the Employae are ragulated by the Employer's -
Allowances poiicy, appiicable from fime fo iime, a copy of which Is )
available fram the HR department.
a, COMFIDENTIALITY _ .*
i ) B ' T ) .L_‘
81 o ThF‘ l:mplo,'ap "ch‘Beb not to dlvulge ar cllscuss his remuneratmn package o F
| Wllh r*nlleagues as rhe l:mployer rEQ'%FElS such ma‘zter as confldentlal : .
o o 8.2 S The meloyae shall not elther durmg the contlnuance of ms employment l
l . ' ©dnder this agrpemem or therearter use for hlo own benefrt or otherwlse to s
l : S - o the demment or prejudlce of the Employer chept i the proper course of | -l
H i ’ . : i
| his r_lutleq, dwulge to any person any trade sacret orany other confidential .
lnformatlon ooncm nmg tha business or affairs of the Employer whlch may . *l'l
i - ‘ : * gome to the Elnployees knowledge during his employmant B s
; 3.3 in particutar, the Employee shall not at any fims durng or aiter 1
' termination of his emploympnt ravesl to ;my parson; firm of corpotation, -
| any of the trads. u:arrels techmcal,lcnow—how and data, drawings, ]

systems, methads, sollwale, procasses, llsts, programs, marketing and/or

~flnancial information, confidential  Information, or any  Information

Poomttm

goncerning the organisatien, functions, transactlons. or affairs .of the

. . o .

. Employer, and shall nat use or atternnt to use any such infarmation in any 3

' i . Ly , . e ; J
manner which may infurs or causs loss either diractly or indirectly to tha

Employer or may be liabla to do so. 1

J

' 3.4 Tha Emoloyee agrees that It is a conditlon of this contract that hie signs l

L ihe SARS Qath of Secresy an or before the Commencemant Date, l

1

|

3

Proployes Witness 7] Employer Witneas 1 2
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Employment Contract between SARS aud Mr Visvanathas Pillay

9. EMPLOYER RESOURCES

0.1 : The Employes acknowledges and accepts that the Employee's resources,
mriudmg but not limited o serwars computars, printeru, telefax machlnrzs,
talephanas, postal :nervlce:: &- mail facilities and internet f’lclliti&“‘ (“tha

resources") are for conducting the Employer's husinass.

9.2 ~_ The Employee shall have no expectatmﬂ of pnvacy in. relahon to the. use -
of lhe %'BQDLEFCGS plovided by the me[oym s '

83 - The Employee understands and accapts ihat the i:mplc}yer may, Subject
to reiemnt fegrslailon at |ts dlscretlon monitor the Empfoyee 3 Use of the _
, rssaumes and mtemept acqulre read view, mspect record anc!/or;r.
‘ re\new any and aH communicatlons rreated stored, t ansmitted,’ spoken,
‘ oent recelved ‘or commumcatﬂd by the Employee un “over ur in the
- resaurces or othPrW!Se The Emplo yae hereby consents to the Emp{ayer

'dnmg 50,
10, BECURITY

10.1 The Employse agrees to submit his parson, psrsonal helongings and
office or workstation to a search by any person designated by the
Employer whenaver the Employer deerns it necessary and reasonable.

y
Frployee Wilness | !\L cinployer Witness {

Enpluyee

Hiployee Witness 2 ) ) 4 Finploger Witess D 1y Py
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11.

11,1

11.2

11.3
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I mplo;mﬁnt Contract between SARS and Mt "‘/to\»fdlmthdn tliav 4

EMPLOYER PROPERTY

Al catalogues, corraspondence, letters, memoranda, note books, order
hooks, documents, pagers, goods, samples, squipment and any other
- articles of any kind whatsoaver that may be made available to or come

into ihe poeseﬁon af the Employee during the perrod of his employment

- under this agreemont shail helong to and yemain the property of the
Employer. -both durmg the- Employee 5 empioymﬂnt end aftertermmauon

of his employment at’ whlch time the Fmployee sherl delrver ta. the

_ Employer aH suoh rtems In hl‘; possesbron wrth the agsurance that o

o suorr ertroles remam in hrs ,Jossessron

Upan the t‘ermlhetion' of the Employee’s. empioyment he must return to

the F_‘mpfoyer all property, of whatsoe\fer nature f hrs poesesolon wh%ch
belongs o Lhe Empfoyer '

In addition, th}eEmployeo must returmn to the Employer all other material -

‘contatning Information relating to the affairs of the Employer, regardless of

whether or not stch material was orlgln'elly stpplied by the Employer to
the Empbyeo,-{ln_oiuding but not limited ta:. racaords, dises, accounts,
lstters, notes of memaranda, |

Employer Witness |

o —

T

1
Tbemm - i
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L
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Employment Contrrct betwesn SARS and My Visvanathan Pillay

12, INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

12.1 Intellactual property rights Include, but are not limited to, trade marks,
sarvice maiks, trade names, domain names, daslgns, patents, patly
patents, utillly models and like iights, in each case Whether registered or
unregistered and inciuding appllcatlone for the grant of any of ihas
foragoing, copyright (including, without Iimltatlon rights in eomputei
~software and data bases, and moral fights), rlghts in inventions, deelgnsl;
know- hew conﬂdent!dl lrlformatlon rade secrets, - other intellectual
property aighte and ali r:ghts or forms of pmtectlon havlng eqUWaient or

- similar- effect fo any of the reregemg whlch may subs;et in any country In

' the werfd

'Any mtellectue! property nghts of whatsoever nature anemg out of [he,.f
perfarmance by the- Empfoyee of hls obhgatlons in terms: hereof arey; to‘_
the extent that they da’ not vest automatiaaﬂy ln the Emp!oyer hereby_ :
irrevocably cedad and assigned in perpetuxty ta the Employer Jt bemg
rurthe; recorded rhet the Employer shall he enﬁtled to cade end ass;gn all

'}2.2_ .

stich nghts to any ather person without lrmltatlon

_1.2.3. ' The. me[oyer and/en such other person, as the case may ba, shall be
- entitled to dispose of any and ail Inteliectual proparty rzghts in their adla
discrstion, anywhere in the world, without the payment of any additional /

cansidaration {o the Employee

12.4 The Empleyee-undertakes.te slgn all documents and ta do all things
hecessary, &t the cost of the Emplover, to obtain or to rscord such
intellectual properly rights at any inteflectual properiy rights registry in the

world,

”/

Bmploves Witness 1 [ Employer Witness i rnpi()ynr

Fiaployee Wiiness 2 ,‘}_,l_:]_l Bmplyger Y¥itness 2 Al oy
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Employnwnt Cunt[act between SARS and Mr Visvanathan Pillay 10

13, TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT

13.1 The Emnployes’s employment shall automatically lurrnimte as Indicated in
'paragraph 1.2,

13.2 i\Jotwrihstandmg 13,1 above eliher purty may tn,rmlmte thls contract by
' gwmgthp other party ano (I) month‘ written notics of terminatian or bLl(‘h
Ionger penod' for disengagement as agreed o in good. faith with. due
reqard fo operatnonai contmuny oi the Emp!oyel 5 bLInh‘lB&: and the penod

it WOuld talce to replace the Emplwne R . R

13.3 o rhe Employet may ‘1|SO te1mlnate {his contract by paymg the Ernployee :
E the amount ofsalanj he would hfwe rerelVed durmg the required per]od of

notlce In Eleu of Jivlng him thatpenod of noﬂce

13.4 if {he Em;ﬁloyee is incapabie‘ldf ";'Jerform'ing his'dﬁties under this contract
' " because of -mental ar physlca! mneso or rnjury, the ;_mp!eyer may
- tgminaie his emp!oyment for Jncapfm'fy To asslst the Employer In
deciding  whather to Vtermanate.,.emp_l‘_oyment on thase grounds the
Employ'ert.méy rerjuira théEmployea'_ to 'underg'o (at the Emplayer's
axpense) a medical exan'jinatidnby a ragistered medical practiioner. The
Employer may rely on any report or recommendatfons made avéiiab[e f
the Employar as a result of that examinatién, afchg with any other
ralevant madical reports or recomﬁwendatidns raceived,

13.5 Mothing In this contract pravents the Emplover from exercising its right to
dismizs the Employes without notice at any stage for misconduct,
incapacity, poor performance or the opsrational raguirsments of the
Emplaysr, or for any other reasan justified in law and in accordance with

the Employer's Disciplinary Code and Procedurs
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v Employment Contiact betwesn SARS and Mr Visvanathan Pi lay L
13.6 On termination af empfo;rﬁent the Employee must retum all the
equipment and property of the Employer In a qatlsfacton/ candition before
!' his final remuneration shali be pald,

14 GOMFLIGT OF INTEREST

14,1 ' Employraes ara ieqwred ta ensure at alf ¢ times that they do not put
_.,_ihumdelves in a aituailon whme their own personal fntereots conflict or -
: may porenﬂally conﬂzc{ W!Eh the mteresr of the Empfoyer

4.2 | 'Confflcts of mterest are regulated by the Emplovel s Dccraraﬂcn of F’: Jvdle.
| o Jn’r@rests Palicy apphcabfe Trom tfma to time a copy of whfch Is ava_liable g
' _fmm the HR d@pqr‘tment : R

16, GOMPANY Paumfss AND'PRQGEDUR ES

1514 . Al rha Emp!oyer § polfmes and promdures as applicabfe from tlme to Hme.
form part of the terms and condltsons af empfoymeni The Employse
_undamkes and EIQ]F'SS that on sngnmg thla agreement he will abide by

~ such pohmes | ‘

- 52 .‘Th'e Emploves further agrees and undertakes fo mmply wuth ':H other
' Employar's policles, ries, ragulations and - proceduras apphcabfe from
tima to ilma, Coples of the Empioyara polictes and proceduras are
available fram the HR department, It Is tha Empioyee‘s responsibility to
familiarise himself therewith,

15.3 Transgression or hoen-compllance with fmy of tha provigions of an y of the
Employer's policies and procedures may result in disciplinary action baing
taken against the Emplayes which may resull In termination of the
Employea’s Bmoloyment relationship with the Entolover,

154 The Emplover resemves the right {o amend itg policies at its iseration,
from ling o tima,

f
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o Emplayment Contract between SARS and MrV isvanathan Pillay I3
gt
- AMMEXURE A

1. CAPAGITY

1.1 Tha El'ﬂpleee [a employed in the capaclty of Deputy mmmismoner,
" SARSIN terms ofthls qqreement R

P ‘JQE.QESCR!PTMNUF_EMPLU\“EE o

A lhe Employee W[H perforrn the set functians and dutlas in a professfonal

marner and to the best of hls abllity

- . :.u_,‘ /

Fmployee Witness | ,/““V/ Crpoyer Witness 1 Eiployee L}
! i H

Croployes Witnesg £ 505 hployer Wilnesy ) ; J‘/f'l’ Frapliyer




BROOKLYN CAS 427/05/2015

CHRISNA SUSANNA VISSER states under oath in English
1.

[ am an adult white female 53 years of age id number 6210020074083 residing at 53 Ninow
Road Vathalla Pretoria and employed by the South African Revenue Service as an Executive
Remuneraticn and Employee Services with our offices situated at no.570 Fehrsen Brooklyn
Linton house with cellphone no.0824602493 officenc.012-4224182.

Z.

| am employed in SARS since tanuary 1992 in-the HR Division. Ny current duties include
centralised HR and payroll administration far all employess in SARS.

3,

During March 2008 [ was invited to a meeting at a Guest House in Brooklyn together with

Ms Rita Hayes. During this meeting t was introduced to a group of employees who | knew
worked for SARS as a group of e'mployees whose duties it was to investigate the illicit
economy. | was told to accompany Mr Pillay'and Rita Hayes to the meeting as they wanted
to regularise the appointment of these employees. During this meeling mentioned was
made to “surface” these employees, Discussions was also taking place about who they will

report as Andries Janse van Rensburg referred as “Skollie” was no longer going to be in

charge as he was becommg a probfem | did not know who “Skollie” was.
4,

As per my recoilection, a couple of days later, | was requésted hy Mr Pillay and Rita Héyes to
meet them at the SARS Offices at Hatficld Gardens to assist them in trying to'reach an
agreement with “Skollie”, It was the first time that ! met “Skollie”. We met in a separate
room from where Mr Pillay was sitting. “Skollie was a threatening character and made
threatening remarks to me. He said things- like “hijackings can be arranged”. [ was vér\/
scared of him and knew that | was out of my depth. | went to Mr Pillay and informed him
that | was not prepared to deal with this matter on my own. | requested that we inform Mr
George Nkadimeng, the head of the SARS Employment Relations Division in HR, to assist
with the process of obtaining a settlement agreement with “
hriefed George Nkadimeng. From that point forward | met with “Skollie” only in the

Skollie”. He agreed and we
presence of Mr George Nkadimeng.
During these talks George Nkadimeng and | would go back and forth between Mr Pillay in

the cther office and "Skoltie” who we sat with in the other office. At some point during

these Lalks, “Skollie” informed us that he had information that he is prepared to take to the

b i

P |

[



1
!
!
i

BROOKLYMN CAS 427/05/2015
CHRISNA SUSANNA VISSER states further that:-

5.

media if we do not agree to pay him the balance of his employment contract. We informed
Mr Pillay that he is threatening with information that he would leak to the media, however
Mr Pillay told us that “he just thinks he still has it”,

6.

At some point during these negotiations we were informed to pay Skollie the full balance of
his employment contract. | then insisted that we draft a memcrandurm to obtain a mandate -

‘from SARS to enter into the separation agreement. See annexure CSV 01. Once this

memorandum was signed by Mr Oupa Magashula (the then Head of Hurnan Resources) in
SARS and Mr tvan Pilay, George Nkadimeng and | continued to draft the separation

agreement,

7.

The - separation agreement is a standard template that was used in the Employment
Relations section. | then inserted “Skollie’s” details into the agreement. This agreement
was then signed by Mr Oupa Magashula on behalf of SARS. | signed as the witness for Mr
Magashula. Skotlie signéd the agreement See annexure 02. 1 then continued to make
payment to “Skollie” based on the signed 'separation ‘agreement and memarandum
approved b\,f SARS officials. The payment was made up of a settiement of 36 month’s
remuneration that amounted to R3 063 937.68 and his leave pay due to him to the amount
of R86 957.13. | never met or spoke to “Skollie” since.

8.

}'was informed in 2010 via- the Office of the Commissioner that Mr lvan Pillay wanted to
retire prior to the normal retirement age of 60, however he wanted to invoke a clause in the
Goverrment Employment Pension Fund Law that allows the Fxecutive Authority (Minister of
Finance in this case) that allows the Employer to pay the penalty in terms of the rules on
behalf of him. was presented with a document that he signed and addressed to Mr Oupa
Magashula in his capacity as the Commissioner. See annexure CSV 03, Mr Nic Caetzee who
reported to me dealt with all the difficult pension cases in my Unit and he discussed this

request with me.
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BROOKLYN CAS 427/05/2015
CHRISNA SUSANNA VISSER states further that:-
8.

Nic Coetzee and i were both uncomfortable with the request as it was for personal reasons
and we could find no business reasons to pay the penalty on behalf of Mr Pillay. We were
requested to draft a memorandum to the Minister of Finance for his approval ic Coetzee
and | both advised Mr Oupa Magashula in the Commissioner’s hoardroom that it is not
advisable to continue with the early retirement of Mr Pillay because it was for personai
reasons and not business reasons. We were also concerned that it could set a precedent
whereby others could come and claim the same benefit, We informed him that no such

case was recommended in the past as it was for personal reasons. ‘He instructed us to

continue with the memorandum.

9.

The memorandum stating the clauses that SARS will invoke to pay the p-enalty and to re-
employ Mr lvan Pillay, was forwarded to the Office of the Commissicner. At some point

during the process, Mr Magashula requested to have a list of such cases approved in
Government. 1 informed him that | do not have.access to such a list. According to my

knowiedge, Mr Magashula obtained such a list lrom the head of the. Government
Employmee Pension Fund. The memorandum marked annexure CSV 04 was then amended
by Mr Marco Granelli who reported into Mr Qupa Magashula as the Cominissioner.

10.

i was presented with the signed approved memorandum by the Minister and | initiated the
process of the exit of Mr lvan Pillay from the Pension Fund and his re-employment on a
contract basis. Part of this process was to sign a contract of employment with Mr lvan
Pillay. | drafted & three year contract of employment to be signed by Mr Oupa Magashula as
the Commissioner and Mr ivan Pillay as the employee. The contract document was
however amended to five years. See annexure (CSY 05). Mr Qupa Magashula requested
that | signt as a witness for him. [ queried the matter of the contract that was amended to
five years. Mr Oupa Magashula indicated that they decided that it will be five years and not
three and continued to sign the contract. | signed as witness as | believed it was merely to
indicate that it was Oupa Magashula who signed the contract, | advised hut the advice was

cast aside and not taken.
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BROOKLYN CAS 427/05/2015
CHRISNA SUSANNA VISSER states further that:-
11,

In 2014 a new contract of employment annexure (CSV 06) was requested from my Office via
Rita Hayes who was employed by Mr Ivan Pillay. | enquired why a new contract was needed
as the previous employment contract was still valid however | was just advised that the
Minister Mr Pravin Gordhan and Mr lvan Pillay wanted to conclude a new contract. | then
continued to e-mail a draft contract to her office. 1 was presented with a new contract of
employment to implement for Mr lvan Pillay.

12,
| know and understand the contents of the above statement,
I have no objection to taking the prescrihed oath.

[ consider the prescribed oath to be binding on my conscience.

»,5):'2"’/ g
A f’?fg/ CS Visser

{Signature of the deponent)

Date: 2016-08-10

I certify that the deponent has acknowledged that she knows and understand the content of
this statement. This statement was sworn to before me and the deponent’s signature was
placed theréon in my presence at Pretoria on the 2016-08-10 at about 13:31.

/\Dﬁzﬂx/%

Signature of Commissioner of oath

COMMISSIONER OF CATH

MAGEZI FREDDY SEWELE

CIRECTORATE FOR PRIORITY CRIME INVESTIGATIONS
CAPTAIN,

218 GENERAL PIET JOUBERT BUILDING, PRETORIA

AN




CONFIDENTIAL

.»?

internal Memorandum

Dear Oupy, :}

PURPOSE :
The purpose of this memorandunt is to explain that | have decided fo take early relirement as well as to raquest you to consider

fo recommend tor possible approval by the Minisfer cartain related malters that will flow from my decision to take aarly

refirement,

DISCUSSI0N
As you know, | have hean wor}\mg in lhe Pullic Sector for the past 15 years, 10 years which have tisen spent with SARS. For

the maost part of this period, espec:ally my tenure with SARS, [ was expecied fo perform at a very high level accompanied by the
accountahitities that go with the performance of such a hi gh level jOb This exacted its toll from me i the sgl;w.thatmy health

sondition Is slowly deferlorating. Added to this, m asponsibilities, for a long time, suffered on accaunt of the dedication
. required by my job. With the aforementionad in mind, although still not easy, | have decided to take early retirement -

However, | am still enthusiastic abotit SARS and the fremandous contribution it makes tewards the estab-lishment of an even

Better South Africa for all its citizens. With a view thereto, | am willing to serve in SARS In a different capacity where the

demands of such a job will positively support the reasons why | am in the first instance taking early retirement,

Should you favorably consider my proposal to serve SARS in a difforent capacity, such service will have fo be subject to that !
hie appointed as a contract empioyee. This will allow me more flexihity in terms of maldng a decision to finally part ways with
SARS, shotild | come to such a decision, The second condition will be that my eaily retivement is approved in terms of the
pravisions of section 16(6)(d) of the Public Servica Act, mean ing that the Minister, in terms of the provisions of the

alorementionad section apprave (hat the penalty imposed on m y pension benefits per Rule 14.3.3 () of the GEPF Rules, he

éf}'ﬁiald hy SARS to the GEPF, Indications are that the penalty will amount to abouz R1064 257,

RECOMMEMDATION
My macommeidations are thai you please:
= Take note that  intend to taks early refirement
v Lonsider o approve ihat [ e reappointed in a diffsrent capacity in SARS on 4 confract b basis; and

+ Uonsider io recoimmend o the Ministar that ho anproves fhat e penatty on my pension benefits ha naid on Iy hahalf

0 the GEPE by iha employer.

Rogards

vy Pillay



S A

DRAFT STATEMENT OF MINISTER PRAVIN GORE}AN

INTRCDUCTION

I make this statement in response to the request for a "waming statement” made by
Major General Ladwaba of the Directorate for Priority Crime Investigation in her letter

of 21 August 2016, As I understand the letter, | am required to deal with fwo issues.

The first is my role as the Commissioner of SARS in the, establishment of an

investigation unit in 2007. The second is my approval, as Minlster of Finance, of Mr

tvan Pillay’s early retirement and re-appointment to SARS in early 2010:

| shall deal with both these matters. | am advised that 'my conduct was at all times

entirely lawful. | will however not address matters of law because | have raquested my

éttdrneys to do sa.
THE SARS INVESTIGATION UNIT

| was the Commissioner of SARS from November 1999 until May 2009.. | was Minister
of Finance from May 2009 to May 2014, Minister of Co-operative Governance and

Traditional Affairs from May 2014 to Decembér 2015 and again Minister of Finance

from December 2015.

Your questions relate to an investigation unit in SARS. This unit was‘part of the
broader enforcement division of SARS - similar to the enforcement capabilitiss
required in any tax and customs administraticn in the world. In the South African
societal and economic context, SARS had developed a compliance approach which
consisted of good service to the compliant taxpayers, increased education about the

importance of paying tax to those entering the economy, and different types of
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enforcemant being utilised on the non-compliant taxpayers depending on the lavel of
hon-compliahce, Non-compliance could include non-submission of a tax return,
incorract information on a tax return, different types of debt collection, aggressive tax
. avoidance, abuse of trusts, tax evasion, smuggling across borders, cigaretfte and other
farms of illicit trade, ﬁaﬁcking of drugs, round-tripping to avoid excise duties and VAT

sic,

A few thousand staff could be engaged in these forms of enforcement activity.
Enforcement actions are more effactwe when they are gurded by good risk
assessments and lnformatmn from various stakeholders Relatlvely few staff are

‘engaged wath nsk assessments - some twenty-odd ln the instance of the unit in

questlon.

The unit did not iniﬁéltf have a name but was later successively known as the Special
Projects Unit, the Naﬁ.onal Research Group and the High-Risk Investigations Unit. |
participated in the decision to establish the Unit in February 2007, The manager of the
Unit reported to Mr lvan Pillay. in his capécity as General Manager: Enfarcement and

Risk. Mr Pillay in turn reported to me for as long as | was Commissioner of SARS untit

May 2008,

| believed that the Unit was lawfully established to pérform very important functions for
and on behalf of SARS. As far as | was aware, the Unit lawfully performed its

functions. If it.or any of its members engaged in unlawful activities then they did so

without my knowledge or cbnsent.




10.

11.

SARS was established by the South African Revenue Service Act 34 of 1997
Saction 3 provides that its objectives are “the efficient and effective (a) collection of
revenue; and (b) control over the import, expert, manufacture, movement, storage or

use of certain goods” including those subject to customs and excise duty.,

Sectlon 4{1)(a) of the SARS Ac:t prowdes that SARS must “sacure the efficient and

- effectfve and w;dest passzbls, enforcement” of the tax Iaws hsted in Schedule 1.

' Those tax laws have always vested SARS w1th wide powers for the investigation of tax

matters mcludmg the investigation of crimes with tax lmplfcaﬂons The wide scope cf

these powers is apparent from:
- sections 4 and 4A to 4D of thé Customs and Excise Act 91 of 1964;
- sectfons 74 and 74A to 74D of the Income Tax Act 58 of 1962 (before lts amendment

by the Tax Admm:strat!on Act);
- sections 57 and 57A to 57D of the Vaiue-Added Tax Act 89 of 1991 (before its

amendment by the Tax Administration Act); and

- sections 4_0 10 66 of the Tax Administration Act 89 of 1991,

BARS has thus always had its own Investigation and enforcement units engaged in a

wide range of investigations including criminal Investigations with tax implications.

The Unit was established against t'he background of govemment's commitment to
crack down on crime generally and organised crime in particular. President Mbeki
mentioned this commitment in his state of the nation address on 9 February 2007
when he said that govemment would, amongst other things,

o start the process of further modermnising the systems of the South

African Revenue Services, ospecially in respect of bordsr control, and

W




12.

13.

14.

Improve the work of the Inter-tlepartmental co-ondinating structures in
this reqard;

. infensify intelligence work with ragérd to organised crime, building on
the successes that have béen aciiieved in the last few months in
dealing with cash-in-transit heists, drug fraﬁicking and poaching of

game and abalone’.

it became apparent to SARS that it had to enhance Its qapac}ity fo gathér intelligence
of and investigate organis“ed cﬁme. It decidad in abbut February 2007 to set ub the
Unit to penefrate and intercept the actvities of ta'x‘ and customs related crime
syndicates.  lts initial intantion was to employ and train the members of the Unit and
then to trahsfer _t'hem to the NIA where th'ey Qmﬁld continue to function as a unit
dedicated to SARS.. The NIA, however, lost appetite for the project as a result of

which SARS decided to ratain the Unit within its Enforcemant Diviéion.

I 'was, in my capacity as Commissioner, the chief executive officer of SARS. Its staff

complement at the time was about 15 000. The Unit with a staff complement of only
26 odd, was a miniscule 'part of SARS. My knowledge of its establishment, funcfions
and operations was consequently very limited. Your guestions moreover enquire

about events of many years ago. My recollection of the detail of those events is

inevitably patchy.

I firmly belleved at all times that the establishment of the Unit was an entirely lawful
extension of SARS's long-standing capacity to investigate tax-related crime. | still hald

that belief and am advised that those who contend otherwise are mistaken,




MR PILLAY'S EARLY RETIREMENT AND RE-APPOINTMENT

15, Mr Pillay took early retirement and was re-appointed when | was Minister of Finance. |

seem 1o recall that it happened in early 2010,

16. The then Commissicner of SARS Mr Qupa Magashula. addressed a memorandum to_
) me on 1 2 August 2010 seekmg my approval for Mr Pillay's early ratirement and re-

employment on a fixed term contract, | was told that Mr Pmay sought in this way to

_gain access to his pensmn fund to finance the educaﬂon of his children. | understood
that Mr Magashula had estabhshed from enquines made with the Department of Publrc
_Ser\nce and Admin!stratlon that the terms of Mr Pillay's eariy retirement and re-
emp!oyment were lawful and not unusual ! approved Mr Magashuias proposal
because | believed ft to be entirely above board and because | thought lt appropriate to

_recogmse the invaluable work Mr PJ!lay had done in the transfcrmatlon of SARS since

1998.

CONCLUSION

17. 1| have nothing further to say in refation to these matters. If the Hawks hewever require

any further assistance in good faith, | would be happy to assist,

Pravih J Gordhan
Minister of Finance
23 August 2016



Thembani Mokhari

57474

Fronm:
Sent:
To
Subject;

Bear Kenny

Cupa G. Magashuia
23 July 2610 09:03 AM
kenny@dpsa.gov.za
Early retirment

Thank you very much for a guick discussion yesterday with my Minister regarding the early retirement of our Deputy
Commissioner of SARS. In my diseussien this morning with my Minister we agreed that | should ask you for a written
respanse to our discussion and the questions | posed yesterday. For the sake of refreshing both aur memories the

questions were:

o . |5 there a precedent for authorising early retirament and re-engaging the same person on a shart contract
completely different from permanent employment, with a scaled down responsibility, salary and other
conditions of employment?

¢ [Ifauthorised, what is the impact of Cabinet's decision to recognise NSF service at a 100% on the refirement
benefits of the Deputy Commissioner {assuming the approval is granted immediately). ? You mentioned the

only outstanding decision to give effect to the cabinet's dacision, is to develop/find a funding model for the
100% recognition of NSF service? If you could kindly give me an indication of how lang you expect the '
pracess to take and who can do the estimates to assess the impact of this decision on the Deputy
Commissioners retirement which is anticipated to happen in a month's time.

s Related to the first bullet point- do you have any statistics of how -many of these early retirement cases
without re-engagement have been processed thus far?

Thank you again for your assistance and | will await your soonast rasponse in the above matter;

Kind regards,

Cupa Magashula

Commissloner: Sauth African Revenue Servica

Tefme i SARS, 299 Brocitast 8 OO, it Apchlanead, PRETORIA D181

e Bog AN20 PRETORIA GO
Tof: +

§2422 50107 | Fox »37 11422 51R0
% ‘f jor sliichs conespondence omagashula @iars.pov.za




Thembani Mokhari _
Fronw Kenny Govender <Kenny@dpsa.gov.za>

Sent: 03 August 2010 0&6:14 PM

To Qupa G. Magashula

Subject; _ RE: Early retirment

Dear Qupa

1. Employee initiated severances packages (EISP) are granted to employees that are ganerally in excess of the
organization as a result of a restructuring exercise. It includes changing the content of the job or the
abolishment of tha post.

2. There is no restriction in the appointment to the public service or to the same department on a person who

- has left on a EISP. Any new appoint will be to a new post with a new set of conditions,

3.- 1 do not have figures on how many were re-employed, but | aware of a few that were,

4. Cab Mema 8 of 2009 recognised fult NSF service as pensionable service ito the GEPF rules for department of -
defence personnel Dpsa together with dod and the gepf are currently preparing a cab memo to extend this
decision to cover all public service employees and secondly to approve the funding assaciated with the
recognition of this period has pensionable service, in light of this matter from 5ARS, we need to include
other employers, outside the public service, that are contributing employers to the gapf ~ 1 will make sure it
is included. The intention is to get this memo to cabinet before the end of this month. Gnce a decision is
taken, the gepf will need to putin place systems to give effect. Its difficuly to give a clear indication of
timeframas.

5. Finally, if the DCis granted an EISP his package will be calculated fto his current contnbutmn to the gepf and
amended once the NSF decision is obtained and implemented.

| hope the ahove assists and my apologies for the delay in resbonding. Please fael frea to follow-up if necessary.

Kenny

From' Oupa G Magashuta {mal!ta OMagashula@sars gav. za;
Sent: 23 July 2010 09:11 AM

Tot Kenny Govender -
_Subjects Early retirment

Thank you very much for a guick discussion yesterday with my Minister regarding the early retlrement of our Deputly
Commissioner of SARS. In my discussion this morning with my Minister we agread that | should ask you for a written
response to our discussion and the questions | posed yesterday, For the sake of refreshing both our memories the

guestions were:

» s there a precedent for authorising early retirement and re-engaging the same person on a short contract
campletely different from permanent employment, with a scaled down responsibility, salary and other
conditions of emplayment? )

+ Ifauthorised, what is the impact of Cabinet’s decision to recognise NSF service at a 100% on the retirement
benefits of the Deputy Commissioner (assuming the appraval is granted immediately). ? You mentioned the
only outstanding decision to give effect to the cabinet's decision, is to develop/find a funding mode! for the
100% recognition of NSF service? if you could kindly give me an indication of haw long you expect the
process to take and who can do the estimates to assess the impact of this decision on the Deputy
Cammissioners retirement which is anticipated to happen in a month's time.

»  Related to the first bullet point- do you have any statistics of how many of these early retirement cases
without re-engagement have been processed thus far?




Thark you again for your assistanca and ! will await your soonest respanse in the above matter.

fud

Kind regards,

QOupa Magashula ,
Commissioner; South African Revenue Sarvice

Ci-tind for of

i povinsoonsencs: omagashula@sars.gov.2a

Flease Mata: This sarall and Its contents ara subject to our emalk legal notice which can ba viewed at bitp:/fwerns sivs.ov.a/Email Dischmmnee pdf
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PETERMINATION ON THE INTRODUCTION
OF AN EMPLOYEE-INITIATED SEVERANCE
PACKAGE FOR THE PUBLIC BERVICE
(REVISED)

1 JANUARY 2006

MIADE BY THE MINISTER FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICE AND
| ADMINISTRATION

=



DETERMINATION ON THE INTRODUCTION OF AN EMPLOYEE-INITIATED SEVERANCE
' PACKAGE FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICE ,

1. SCOPE

1.t This Delermination is applicable fo al empioyess appointed in terms of the
Public Service Act, 1994, as amended.

1.2 For purposes of this Determination, the term ‘employees” means persons who
are appointed permanently, but excludes persans who are appointed temporarily
or on a fixed term contract,

2. AUTHORISATION AND DATE OF EFFECT

This Determination has been ina_de by the Minister for the Public Service and Admini-
stration in terms of section 3(3){c) of the Public Service At, 1994, as amended and is ef-
feclive from 1 danuary 2008. :

3. PURPOSE

To allow employees affected by fransformation and restructuring who wish fo exit the
public service, to apply for an employee-initiated severance package.

4 APPLICATION

44 Only employses who are affected by transformation and restructwing may
vofuntarity apply to hisher exscuting authority (or delegate) fo be discharged
from the public service In ferms of section 17(2)(c) of the Public Service Act,
1994, as amended on the basis of the employee-nitiated severance package sef
out in paragraph 6 or 7 of this Delermination, as the case may he. :

4.2, The application is subject to the approval of the relevant executing authority {or
delegate). : _

4.3 The application must be made on the application form attached as Annexure A,
An electronic copy of the application form is avallable on fhe DPSA website
(hitp:/fwww:dpsa.gov.za),

% PROCEDURE FOR CONSIDERING THE APPLICATION

5.1 When an application is received by the execuling authorily (or delegate), hefshe
must decide whether or not to support the application,

5.2 In considering the applicaticn, the following must, as a minimum, be taken into
account;

(&) Theimpactof the empioyes's exit from the deparlment on its service de-
livery capabilities,

() The employee’s compatence and slitability for continued ‘emp!oyment,
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(¢} The manner in which the employee’s exit will support the transformation
and restructuring of the department,

(d)  The specific reasons for the employee’s request,

(8)  The abilily of the department o finance the costs related fo the payment
of the severance package (e.g. refunding the Pension Fund, saverance
pay, leave pay, efc.).

(f) The impact of the granting of the severance package on the morale of
other employses.

(@)  Whether the employee occupies a post on the department's establish-
ment or whether the employee is hold additional to the establishment.

5.3 If misconduct or incapacity (due to poor performance) proceedings'are under-
way against an employes, the decision regarding hisfther application must be
postponed unil such proceedings have been finalised, ; :

54 If the execufing authority (or delegate) does not suppart the application, the

- employee must, In writing, be informed that the application is not approved. The

employee must also be provided with adequate reasons for the decision and be
informed of any right of review, - o _

55 fthe é)ke.cuﬁng authority (or delegéte) Supports the application, the application
forr, with section B completed, must be submitted to the Minister for the Public
Service and Administration (MPSA) for comment, '

56  The MPSA’s comments will be provided {in section C of the application form) to
the refevant executing authority (or delegate) for a final decision,

9.7 Taking info account the MPSA’s comments, the relevant executing autherity (or
- delegate) must finally decide whether or not to apprave the application,

58 If the application Is approved, the employee must be nofified in writing of the
decision and histher exit from the public service, must take effect not iater than
two months after the date of such nofica,

3.9 If the application is not approved, the employee must be nofified in writing of
fhe decision, must be provided with reasons for the decisions and informed of
any right of review, ‘

216 Due care must be taken to ensure compliance with the provisions of the Prosm-
tion of Administrative Justice Act, 2000, with regard to declsions not fo approve
applications made in terms of Determination.

6. SEVERANCE PACKAGE PAYABLE: EMPLOYEES ON SALARY LEVELS 110

If the executing authority or delegate approves the employee-inifialed severance pack-
age application, the following maasures shal apply;
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6.1

6.2

Fension benefits (in accordance with rules 14.8 and 20 of the Rules made in

terms of the Government Employees Pension Law, 1996 {as amended) and Part
B of the Annexure to the said Rules, as amended, with effect from 1 July 2005)

The following pension benefits are payable:

(a)  Members of the Government Employess Perislon Fund who have at-
tained the age of 55 years and who have completed af least 10 years'
pensionable service, on writien choice of the member:

() A gratuity equal to his or her actuarial inferest payabis to the
member in own right ar into an approved retirement fund of the
member's choicg; OR

(i) Agrafulty and annuity determined in terms of the formula that
applies to the member

without scaling down of pension beneflts In terms of Rule 14.3.3(b) and
without an addition of pensionable service in terms of Rule 14.24(b),

| {b) Members of the Government Employeses Pension Fund who have not

yet attaingd the age of 55 years, and members who have attained age
55 but have less than 10 years pensionable service;

A gratuity equal to-his or her actuarial interest payable to t the

member in own right or into an approved retirement fund of the
membar’'s chorce,

without ssailng down of pension henefits in terms of Rule14.3.3(b) and
without an addifion of pensionable service In terms of Rule 14.2.4(b).

Severance pay -

Two weeks basic salary for avery full year of the qualifying period of service will
be paid with a minimum payment of R15 000. The following formuia will be

used:

Sep 1
Calculate the foliowing:
Basic annual salary x qualifying period of
service.
26
Step 2!

if the result of the calculation is less than R15 000, an amount of R15 000 must
he paid. If the resuit of the above calculation exceeds R15 000, the calculated
amount must be paid.
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6.3

JulH 05081103 82

Service that may be recognised for severance pay purposes include the follow-
ing service periods:

(a)  Service in'statutory bodies provided the affected employees were frans-

ferred fo the Public Service in terms of section 15 of the Public Service
Act, 1994 or a similar legisiative provision.

) Service in former Development Boards provided the affectsd employees
were fransferred fo the Public Service in terms of the Abolifion of
Development Bodies Act, 1986, or similar legistation.

(¢} Service under a former provincial ordinance provided that the affected
employees were transferred to the Public Sérvice in terms of the Provm
claf Government Act 1986, as amended

(d  Byvirlue of secﬂon 2(5)( b) of the Pubﬁc Service Act, 1M, as amended,
service In institufions referred to in section 236(1) of the Interim Consti-
fution must be recogmsed for severance pay purposes.

In determmmg the qualifying period of service, the provisions of section 84 of the
Basic Conditions of Employment Act, 1997, apply. . For this purpose, previous

- employment with the State as employer must be taken info-account if the break

between the periods of employment is less than one year and occurred after 1
December 1298, i.e. the date of implementation of section 41 (severance pay)
of the Basic Condifrons of Employment Act, 1997, in respsct of the public ser-
vice.

Example:

Mr A was in service from 1 January 1997 until 31 December 1999 (a full three
years) when he resigned. He was re-appointed on 1 July 2000 (a break in ser-
vice of 6 months) and will leave the service with a severance package on 30
September 2006. Since the break in service was Jess than 12 months, the three

‘year period until 31 December 1999 must be added fo the period of service that

commenced on 1 July 2000 fo calculate his severance pay. Note that only full
years may be used and the severance pay due fo Mr A will be calculated on

eight years.

L.eave pay

All unused days accumulated unfil 30 June 2000 (capped leave) as weli as all
unused days in respect of leave due to employess under the leave dispensation
that became effective on 1 July 2000 must be paid according to the formulas
contained in paragraphs 7.4 and 8.4 of the Directive on Leave of Absence in the
Public Service issued by the Minister for the Public Service and Administration,

l.eave must be audited before any ieave payments may be made to an em-
ployee. in respect of capped leave, the Head of Department shall determine
whether there are periods that cannot be audited due to a lfack of records, in

[
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such instances, an affected employes’s leave payout shall be on the basis of 8
working days per completed year of service up to a maximum of 100 days in re-
spect of unaudited periods.

84  Compensation for medical and housing benefits

(a)  Employees aged 55 and older on the date of service termination who
have been members of registered medical schemes for the year endmg
with service termination, wil quairfy for post retirement medical assis-
tance as foilows:

()  Employees with less than 10 years of actual service: An amount
equal to 12 timss the employer's monthly condribution zs at the
date of service termination will be paid fo the employee directly by

- Pensions Administration,

(i)  Employees with at least 10 but less than 15 years of actual ser-
vice; An amount equal to 36 times the employes's monthly contri-
bufion as at the date of service termination will be paid to the em-
pioyes directly by Pensions Administration.

(i)  Employees with at least 15 years of actual service: Employees
who continue to he members of registered medical schemes wil
qualify for a continued employer contribution, The employer con-
tribution will be two-thirds of membership fees limited to a maxi-
mur employer contribufion of R1 014 per month. The employer
contribution will be paid directly fo the medical scheme by Pen-
sions Administration.

(6} Al other employees, namely-

- all employess who are yotfnger than 55 at the date of service
fermination; and

- amployees who are 55 and older who do not qualify for the above
post refirement medical assistance benefits, e.g. they are not
members of registered medical schemes,

must be paid a once-off all-inclusive amount of R 000 by departments
direcfly. This amount is in lieu of medical and housing benefits regard-
less of an employee’s parficipation in the benefits before service termi-
nation. These employees do not qualify for post retirement medical as-
sistance in future,

65  Service honus

A pro rata setvice honus calculated according to the formula in paragraph 1,2 of
(he Financial Manual for Purposes of the Caloulation and Application of Remu-
nerative Allowances and Benefits will be paid,
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6.6

6.7

68

6.9

6.10

Cortractual obligalions

Employses are o be released from contractual obligations that require from
them 1o remain in service.

Payments to third parties under the Slate Guarantee Scheme as well as other
deparimental debt will be recovered from pension benefits in terms of section
21(3) of the Government Employees Pension Law, 1996, if employees do not
make stitable arrangements to sellle their deb,

Qfficial housing

Employees must be given one month’s nofification to vacate official fiousing,
unless a different period s specified in an individual contract of employment,

Hotice of termination of service

The employee’s termination of service by the department must take effect within
two manths after the date of the notice of the approval of his/her applicafion.

Subsidised car scheme -

Subsidised motor vehicles must be dealt with in terms of the policy of the De-
partment of Transport on subsidised motor vehiclas. :

Resattlemeant benefits

Employees who are 55 years and older on the date of sarvice termination must
be compensated agcording o provisions as sef out in PSCBC Resolufion 3 of
1999 and existing departmental policies.

7. SEVERANCE PACKAGE: EMPLOYEES IN THE MIDDLE MANAGEMENT SERVICE
{LEVELS 11-12) AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT SERVICE (LEVEL 13 ~16)

If a department grants & severance package an application to an emploves remunerated
according fo the provisions for fhe Senior Management Service or Middle Management
Service, the folfowing measures shall apply; -

7.1

Pension benefits (in accordance with rules 14.8 and 20 of the Rules made in
terms of the Government Emplovees Pansion Law, 1996 (as amended) and
Part B of the Annexure fo the said Rules, as amendsad, with effect from 1 July

2005)

The foliowing pension bensfits are payable to employses who are members of
the Government Employees Pension Fund:

{a)  Members who have aftained the age of 55 years and who have com-
pleted at least 10 years' pensionable service, on written choice of the
member:
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7.2

{i) A gratuilty equal fo his or her actuarial interast payable to the
member in own right or info an approved retirement fund of the
member's choice: OR :

(i) A gratuity and annulty determined in terms of the formula that ap-
plies to the member; .

without scafing down of pension benefits In terms of Rule 14.3.3(b}
and without an addifion fo pensionable service in terms of Rule
14.2.4(b).

by  Members of the Government Employees Pension Fund who have not
- yet attained the age of 55 years, as well as those who have attained age
55 but have less than 10 years pensionable service:

A grafuity equal fo his or her actuarial Inferest payabls to the
member in own right or into an approved refirement fund of the
member’s choice., _

. without scafing down of penéion benefits in terms of Rule 14.3.3(b)

and without an addition of pensionable service in ferms of Rule
4.2 4(b) : ' -

Severance pay

 The salary to be used for purposes of calculaing severance pay is 100% of the

inclusive remuneraffon package. Two week's salary for every full year of the
qualifying pericd of service will be paid according to the following formula;

Inclusive package x qualifying petiod of
service

26

Service that may be recognised for saverance pay purposes include the follow-
ing service perfods:

(@)  Sewice in statutory bodies provided the affected employees were trans-
ferred fo the Public Service in terms of section 15 of the Fublic Service
Act, 1594 or a similer legislativs provision,

(b} Service in former Development Boards provided the affected employess
were transferred to the Public Service in terms of the Abolifion of Devel-
opment Bodies Act, 1986, or simitar legislation,

(c)  Service under a former provinlal ordinance provided that the affected
employees were fransferred to the Public Service in terms of the Provi-
olal Government Act, 1986, as amended.

{d) By virtue of section 2(5)(b) of the Public Service Act, 1994, as amended,
service in institutions referred to in saction 236(1} of the Interim Consti-
lilien must be recognised for severance pay purposes.
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7.3

74

In determining the qualifying perled of sevice, the provisions of section 84 of the
Basic Conditions of Employment Act, 1997, apply. For (his purpose, previous
employment with the State as employer must be faken inta account if the break
between the periods of employment is legs than one year and ocourred after
December 1998, L.e. the date of implementation of section 41 (severance pay)
of the Basic Condlifions of Employment Act, 1987, in respect of the public ser-
vice. {Nole the example in paragraph 6.2). :

Loave pay ‘

All unused days accumulated- until 30 June 2000 {capped leave) as wall as all
unused days in respact of leave due to employees under the leave dispensation
that became effective on 1 July 2000 must be paid according fo the formulas
contained in paragraphs 4(d) and 5(d) of Chapter 3 of the .SMS Handbook

- (SMS) and paragraph 7.4 and 8.4 of the Directive on Leave of Absence (MMS)

as issued by the Minister for the Public Service and Administration,

Leave must be audited bafore any leave payments may be mads to an em-
ployee. in respect of cappad leave, ihe Head of Department shall determine
whether there are periods that cannot be audited due fo a lack of records, In
such instances, an affected employee's leave payout shall be on the basis of 6
working days per completed year of service Up to a maximurn of 100 days in ra-

- spect of unaudited periods.

Compehsaﬁon for medfcal'beneﬁts

- Emplayees aged 55 and older on the date of service tefminétion' who have been
- members of registered medical schemes for the year ending with service termi-

nation, will qualify for post refirement medical assistance as follows:

(8  Employees with less than 10 years of actual service; An amount equal to
12 fimes the employer's monthly contribution as at the date of service
termination will be paid fo the employse directly by Pensions Administra-
tion. '

{b) Empioyees with at least 10 but less than 15 years of actual service: An
amount equal to 36 times the employer's monthly contribution as at the
date of service termination will he paid fo the employee directly by Pen-
sions Administration. :

(¢} Employees with atleast 15 years of actual service: Employees who con-
finve to be members of registered madical schemes wil qualify for a
continued employer contribution, The employer's montly contribution
will be two-thirds of membership fees limited 1o a maximum employer
contribution of R 1 014 par month. The employer contribtition will be
paid directly to the relevant medical scheme by Pensions Administration,
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7.8

7.7

7.8

7.9

Service bonus

(@  Employees wha have sfructurad a service bonus: A pro rata service bho-
nus calcuiated according o the formula in paragraph 1.2 of the Financial
Manual for Purposes of the Calcuation and Application of Remunerative
Allowances and Benefits wifl be paid|,

(b} Employees who have not structured a service bonus: No payment will

be made.

Contractual obligations

Employees are to be released from confractual abligations that require from
them {0 remain in service.

Payments fo third parfies under the State Guarantes Scheme as well as other
deparimental debt will be recovered from pension benefits in terms of section
21(3) of the Govemment Employees Pension Law, 1996, if employees do not
make suitable arrangements fo selfle their debt. '

Cificial housing

Employees must be given one month's notification to vacate official housing,
unless a different period Is specified in an individual contract of em ployment,

Notice of termination of service

The employee’s termination of service by the depértment must take effect within
two manths after the date of the notice of the approval of histher application, -

Resettlement henefits

Employees wha are 55 years and older on the date of service termination must
be compensated according fo the provisions as set out in PSCBC Resolution 3
of 1999 and existing departmental policies.

Sl
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ANMEXURE A
PROCESS EORM: APPLICATION FOR
EMPLOYEEINITIATED SEVERANCE PACKAGE

SECTION A (To BE COMPLETED BY THE EMPLOYER)

L : (full first names and

sumame), herewith apply fo be discharged (in tetms of section 17(2)(c) of the Public Service
Act,1894) from the public service on the basis of the employee-nitiated severance package as
determined by the Minister for the Public Service and Administration, in a dpsa circular 1/16/21
dafed 16 January 2006. | declare that this request is made voluntarily and that | accept the
condifions and severance b.eneﬁts‘ set out in the aforementianed deferminafion by the Minister. | .
acknowledge that my pplication is subject to approval by t_hé executing authority {or del_egate).

The reasons for my raquest are the following (Please make use of a separate sheet If the

allocated space ls inadequate):

SIGNATURE

DATE:
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SECTION B (10 BE COMPLETED BY THE RELEVANT DEPARTMENT)

Department:

Rark of Employee;

Occupational classification code

Salaiy nofch: R

Salary scale: R

Age:-

Race:

Prescribed retirement age:

Amount of severance package (excluding pension beneits):

Reasons for supporting/not supporting the applisation (Please use a separate sheet if the

allocated space is inadequate).

EXECUTING AUTHORITY {OR DELEGATE)

DATE:
{HOTE: If the application is supported, submit the process form to the Minister for the Public

Servive and Administration for comment.

If e appllcation is pot sugporied (and therefore nof approved), do hot submit fo the
Minister for the Public Service and Administration, bt inform the employes in wiifing of
ihe deulsion, provide himher with adequate reasons for the decision and inform himv/hor

of any right of review,}

R I T T T e e R R At B R R
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BECTION G (70 BE COMPLETED BY THE MINISTER FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICE AND
ADMIMISTRATION OR DELEGATE)

Comment

MINISTER FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICE AND ADMINISTRATION (OR DELEGATE)

DATE:

O I R I B

P S v T R R A SR TR I RPN B I

SECTION D (70 BE COMPLETED BY EXECUTING AUTHORITY OR DELEGATE)

The application is approvedknot approved

EXECUTING AUTHORITY (OR BELEGATE)

DATE:

{NOTE:  fthe application is approved, the employee imust submit a completed pensior withdrawal form

{Z102).

If the application is not approved, the employes must be infarmed In writing of the decisfon,
he provided with adequate reasons for the decision and be informed of any right of review.)
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THE NATIONAL DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC 29 August 2016

PROSECUTIONS

THE NATIONAL PROSECUTING AUTHORITY OF SA .
VGM BUILDING (CNR WEST LAKE & HARTLEY)

123 WEST LAKE AVENUE

WIEVIND PARK .

SILVERTON

PRETORIA

ATTENTION: ADV S ABRAHAMS

Dear Adv Abrahams, -
BROOKLYN CAS 427!05!2015 — THE HON. MINISTER PRAVIN GORDHAN

1. We refer to the above matter and to our Iéﬁers exchanged on 24 and 25 '
August 20186, '

2. Our client has come to learn through Media reports that the Hawks had

~ completed their investigations and have also handed the docket pertaining
to the above matter to your office. We again reiterate our request and in
light of your letter of 25 August 2016 request that you- urgently confirm .
whether our client will be afforded the opportunity to make both written and
verbal representations fo you regarding a decision whether he should be
prosecuted or not, :

3. We look forward to your response as soon as circumstances permit.

Yours faithfully

GILDENHUYS MALATJI INC
Per: Tebogo Malatyi

(Transmitted electronically and thus not signed)
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YWEBBER WENTZEL

in altiance with » Linklaters. . RN
' . . T b
' . N . . N . / J.; i
Shéun Abrahams . ' . '90 Rivonia Road, Sandton
s . - : . Johannesburg, 2156
National Director of Public Prosecutions ‘ :
‘ PO Box 61771, Marshalitown .

- National Prosecuting Authority « . . : . i
Victoria and Griffiths Mxenge. Building (Corner Westlake & Hartley) - Johams?”rg' 2107, South Afflea
. Docex 26 Johannaesburg

123 Waestlaks Avenue- , :
i ‘ i ort L . o T++27 11 530 5000
g‘;gtﬂg’r’g?'\ Park, Slerton ' CFF2711530511
01 R . www.webberwentzal.com ;

- JPPretoriusSC. - . | | |
‘Acting Special Director of Public Prosecutions |. .- ' . ST

. Priority Crimes Litigation Unit = - w .-~ 0 0 o ' =
National Prasecuting Authority "~~~ 0 ] 0T aﬁﬁﬁ%%? :
Victoria and Griffiths Mxenge. Building (Corqér Westlake & Harﬂey) '

123 Westlake Avenue = - | . S en—

Weavind Park, Siiverton | - - JRGEGE T AT E P BIRECTOR]

Pretoria R : Co _ _ R

oted - I
R S R S R R

By hand . _ N ) R

By email: skabraliams@npa.gov.za; kbenjamin@npa.gov.za  {fEfiduaL PROSECHING AUTHORITY

© By fax: 012843 2220 -

_ Yourreference - - ' Our referance Date
Summons No 574/16 .V Movshovich /P Delal/ D Cron/ - 14 October 2016
CAS: Braoklyn . . D Raffarty / T Dya
427/05/2015 3012607 -
Dear Sirs

Summons in criminal case against, inier Ialios, the Honourable Minister of Finance Mr
Pravin Gordhan: Summons 574/16; CAS: Brooklyr| 427/05/2015

1. We act for Fregdom Under Law NPC and the Helen Suzman Foundation, non-
governmental organisations concerned with, amongst other things, the promotion of the
rule of law and the protection of our constitutionai project ("our clients"),
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Inalllonce with 3 | inkiaters

3.1

32,

6.2

As prefaced it our previaus, correspondence y

clients intend fo revi_ew‘ and set aside your deg

We address this lett_er on behalf of our clients at

On'11 Qgtober 2016, eum.‘mons na. 574/16 w
Minister of Finance, Mr Pravin Gordhan, MP.

. Page 2

cting in their own and In the public Interest.

as served on, l'nter alios, the Honourable
In terme of annexuree A, B and E thereto

(“thie charge eheet‘!), the Honourable Minister Is chargecl with:

fraud alternatfvely theft in relatlon to tll\e alleged payment by. the. South Afncan

C Revenue Servlca ("SARS") to. the. Gov=rnment Employees F’ehs:on Fund- ("the-

‘Fund") of R1, 141 178, 11 on behalf of Mi

count 1 of the charge sheet) _and

‘_ fraud in relatlon to the re- hmng of Mr Plll
charge sheet).

'(collectlvely, "the ch_argee").' |

Vlsvahathan F'lllay, where such.sum was

ay'i‘nbf around April 2014 (count 4 of tha *

our conduct in preselng baaelese charges

agalnst the Mlnlster of Finance has, and conlmues to have clevastatmg consequencee for

the Republic and its.economy. . ~This Is a ma

Minlster of Finance, under the constitutional prin
withdraw the decisions or furnish a cogent basig
a long line of cases that our ollents havs

prooeedlngs

olple of legahty and otherwise, unless you
; for the actfons taken It has been held In

The charges, such as they ars, are unsustainab
conscious recklessness or ulterior purposes

Authority ("NPA").

In respect of charge 1 (fraud, afternatively theft),

'Le in law and fact, and may be actuated by

n the part of the Natlonal Proseculing

wa note the following:

Mr Pillay was clearly entitled under tf
servants' refirement to retire from the ags
emplayment relationship with the South Af

In terms of the Rules of the Governme

howavar. a ratiramant hafara AN vasre A

Le relevant legislation governing public
2 of 55. This was an Integral part of his
rican Revenue Service ("SARS").

=ntEmployees Pension Fund ("GEPF"),

f ana namcHb ban endieaemamd mefmu ba dHan

allegedly a penalty payable by Mr Plllay Wo the Fund (count 1 and the a_lternatiVe fo .

standing and an intarest to . bring such -

ter of paramount public interest and. our - -
Istons to lnstltute the charges agamst the-

=
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pension retirement date and a penalty (try way of a deduction) would normally be

appllcable to the pavout on such ealy retifement.

83 - Al t'he releven't Iegisietion, however, provide's_for that p'enelty or teduction to be paid -
by SARS or the Government of the Repubiic of South Africa:

631 . Rule 20 ot the Rules to the Governiment Employees Penslon Fund Law. .1996,
- ,("GEPF") states; that. "CompensE .

- drscharge of a member pnor tqg: attamment of the members pens:on

B retrrement date Without detraotrng from’ the generahty of sect.ron 1 ?’(4) of the'

) Lew the Government or tne em,otc yer or the. Government and the employer

"<shatl, i a member except for a: r=eson m rule 14. 1 1(3} retires, becomes '

1 entrtted n terms of Rule 14.8 to the penston beneﬁts rn terms of a saverance .

tion tao the. fund ‘on.. retirement or. ..

packege referred to In tnat Rute o :s dlsoherged prior-fo h!s or her pensron e

L ‘retrrement date and at suoh retrrement entrﬂement or drsoherge m terms of
the rules becomes entrtted to the pc yment of an ennulty or greturty or both en
: annmty and a. greturty :n terms of the ru!es and any. of these actions result In .
an additional ﬂnenctel trebmty o the Fund pay.to the Fund the addittonat
fmancral obhgatrons as decrded k y the Board actmg on the advice of the
aotuar'_v.,Such peyment. lo the Funnt, Wit interest fo a_ocount for any delay_m o
peyment, shall be In accordance with a schedule approved bj/ the Board."

6.3.2 Section ﬁ7(4) of the Government Employees' Pension Fund Law, 1996, which
states that: "IF any action taken. by {he employer or if any tegistetion adopted
by Parllament "plaoes any. additioral financial obligation on.the Fund, the
employer or the Government or tha employer and the Government as the
case may be shall pay to the Fund an amount wh.'ch is required fo meet

such obligation”;

6.3.3 Gavernment Employees Pension Fund Members' Guide, page 34, which
reads "Where the employer granted|permission for your early refirement, your
henefits will not be scaled down.|However, your smployer will pay an

additional liability."

6.4 In light of the above alone, the charges ara unsustainable,
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8.5

6.5.:1

6.5.2

653 -

Cge

6.62

67

6.8

7.1

7.2

7.3

* related to the retirement of Mr Pillay:

[n respect of charge 4 (freudj, we note the follow

The posiﬁen Is simply reinforced by the f

The interoffice' memorandum dated

" Page4

ollowing contemporanecus dacumentation

27 November 2009 from Mr Plllay to.the

then Commrssroner of SARS (enne): ed marked "A";

The Legel end Pehcy Division merr
_ marked "B"), L

' The mem'erendum dafe'd 12 'Augtist

orandum dated 17 Merch 2009 {(annaxed

2010 and approved by the anrster on 18 :

| October 2010 referred to ln count 1 [annexed marked "C")

o The ebeve correspendence not en!y refer =ncee t_he refeven_t Ieglele_ﬁ‘on. but also: o

sete eut eegent reaeone for, Mr Pilley‘s circumstancee' -erid Ll

- cltes the fact that over. 3000 government emp!eyees haVe taken eerly_

- retrrement wrth fulf benefrts -

it s plain from the legislation that thé r%

Minlster's approval at afl ‘SARS:and. the,
early retirement penalty: But to the extent
clearly in line not on'ry with'a raft of legisla

The allegation tfiat the NPA could ever prc
relation ta the payment of the penalty s pr

trrement of Mr Pmey did not requrre the:
gevernment would be Habie to pay any
that the Minieter gave hrs.epprovel, it was
fon but also ample precedent;

ve fraud or theft in those circumstances In

eposterous,

ing:

The charge is inchoate and incemprehens ble.

- It Is initlally alleged that SARS was not authorised to employ Mr Pillay as Daputy

Commissioner for a period of four years from 1 Apiil 2014 to 31 December 2018.
Tha alleged Issus is thus authority. There is nothing in law or fact, however, which

states that SARS was not empewered to
this perlod.

Under the relevant legisfation, SARS s,

ire Mr Pillay as Deputy Commissioner for

n fact, empowered to employ its Deputy
1S Act empowers SARS fo "datermine its

Commissionar. Section 5(1)(a) of the SA
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ovlkn 'steff establishment, appoint emy !oyeee and determme their terms and

- conditions of employment in accordance Mth section 18" :

7.4 In respact ot eenlo'r'menagement SARS employeee,' the. Minlster of Finance Is
_ stetutonly charged with approving the terms and conditions of their emplayment
, (under sectlan 18(3) ofthe SARS Adt). R ‘ o

P

?.5: o _'l'het is preclsely what happened in this case,.. SARS. appornted Mr-Pillay and- the -
- Minlster\ of Ftnanoe approved his terms and oondltlons The employment agreement

S Is etteohed marked hpy,

: 76 S ' Thus the elleged representetlon (lf lt occurrecl at ell) ls correot ln law and is.in no.
| way unlawful : o A
7.7 There is also no basls. for the- e‘lleged Jrejudloe Mr Plllay, with a praven track :

: record end yeers of exemplary servlee to SARS would ba renderlng eerwoes as the
Deputy Commleeloner for the amounts which would be pald fo hlm under the . .

’ employment egreement In any event Mr Pillays employment wlth SARS could be
cancelled onone. month's wrrtten notrce - accordmgly, rf SARS aever felt aggrieved or
preludiced by Mr Plllays employment this could have been remed:ed on one

: 'month's notice..

' 7.8 The fraudulent lntentlon Is allegedly grounded in the fact that the Minister of Finance
knew- that SARS was under no. obllgattort to enter Into a rlew employment
agreement, But the alleged misrepresentation is that the Minister of Finance stated
that SARS was empowered (not obliged) to hire Mr Pillay, and'so this intention is .
irrelevant to the alleged fraudulent conduct. '

7.9 Ultimately, the charge of fraud is nonsensjcal, Is bad in fact and law, and cannot be

sustained.

8.  In respect of both charges, sven if It fs essurlned {contrary to the drspoertlve analysls
above) that the conduct of the Minister of Finanice was not strictly In accordance with the
law, there Is no basls for imputing a fraudulent or furtive Intenilon fo him and none has

heen suggested.

9. Indeed, in previous correspondence from the Directorata for Priority Crime lnvest;getlon, it /ﬁ[/ %

hae navar haan aflaand thek Blaindae A it



WEBBER WENTZEL |
inallance with 3 Linklaters . ' ' .
‘ ' ‘ Paged

allegaticns were breaches of the Prevention iand Combating of Corrupt Activities Act,
2004 Publle Finance Management Act, 199¢ ancj National Sjrategic intelligence Act,

: 1994

10. In llgh’c of the abcve, piease ccnﬂrm m writrn; and by no later. than 16: 00, 21 Ottober _
N 2016 that the charges agamst Minister Gcrdha 1 wul be wﬁhdrawn

i

11. . Shculd you. refuse or. fail, to thhdraw the charges as set fcrth abcveh then, for the,\...‘

o purposes of assassmg thelr pcsiticn and the breaches of ycur ccnatatutlona! and statutory -

: obligations, our clients requnre ycu fo furmsh ths fol!owmg mfcrmation and reasons by no -
later than 16 00 21 October2016 : o c

1 the record cf dec:srcn m respect of the. eclsmn to issue. the’ summons and prefer -
- the charges agamst Mlnlster Gcrdhan ("tl;e Decismns") e '
1.2 _' full wrltten reasons and substantlating dc ,ument's-,' which suppcrt the Decislons; :
11.3 ‘wﬂhcut dercgatmg frcm the above, all reasc'ns exp]eining,Why, despite the factua!

: f‘matnx in relation to the charges: being II-;QWn (and being in*the public realm) for
many vears, the Decrsions were taken now; : S

11.4 without dercgating frcm t_he‘ above, _the eVide_nce (alternatively a'summary therecf)
proving: R - |
11.4.1 _ the unfawful intention required succelsefufly fo prcse'cL_qte the charges;
11.4.2 that Minister Gordhan. made any| misrepresentation as. required for the- -
purposes of establishing fraud and|that such misrepresentation induced the

persons cited in counts 1 and 4 of thg charge sheet to act to their prejudice;

11.4.3 the act of appreprlaﬂcn (or conireptatio) attributed to Minister Gordhan in
respect of the alternative charge of theit.

11.5 whether any other instances of State o ployses taking early retirement with full
pension (withcut any penalty payment being paid by the employee) are / have been
Investigated and are being considered for criminal prosecution on the basis of fraud

or theft;
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118 whether any other- instances of State amployeas being hirad 'after.teki.ng early
-retiremant -are / have. been investigated and are belng:iconsidered for criminal
prosecution an the basis of fraud; ' ‘ '

M7 - a Irst of su cases Whlch heve been or are betng crtminelly proseouted or are being

: consldered far criminal prosecution, which relate to State. emptoyees teklng eerly
retlrement wtth full pensron (end no penal y payment by suoh employee), end

1.8 a list of el! cases whrch hevs beer or are bemg crlmlnaily prosecuted or.are being*‘.
considered for onminel prosecutfon whi h_relete_ to State e_mployees tak!ng early :

: _‘retlrement and bemg rehrred

12 Shoufd you not uncondrtionelty wrthdrew the cherges agamst the Mrnrster ar. furn!sh the L
lnformstlon sought wﬂhm the trme penods set forth ebove, our cllents will assume that no
' reasons for the Decls!ons end no doouments other than the documents annexed to thls-

letter; exist i m support of the oherges

1'3.'5 -Our chents may then wrthout further noﬂce =eek: to‘ exercise their rights In law on'an

urgent basis,

- Diract fax: +27 11 530 6887
Emall: viad.movshovich@wsbberwantzel.com
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OFFICE OF 'THE NATIOMNAL DIRECTOR

GF PUBLIC PROSECUTIONS

Victeria & Griffiths Mxenge Buiiding,

123 Westlake Avenue, Weavind Park Silverton,
Pretoria, 00|

Private Bag X752, Pretaria, 0001

Contact number: 012 845 6758
Ernail: ndpp@npa.govize
whww.npa.goviza

Your ref: V Movshovich/ P Dela/ D Cron/ D Rafferty 1T Dyo 3012807

Our ref; Summons No 574/16
CAS Brooklyn 427/06/2015

Webber Wentzel _ |
P O Box 81771 o ‘ - B _ 3 ' C
MARSHALLTOWN

2107

Dear Sir

Email: vlad.movshovich@webberwentzel.com

| THE STATE VERSUS OUPA MAGASHULA, VISVANATHAN (IVAN) PILLAY
AND PRAVIN GORDHAN | | o

1. Your letter dated 14 Oc\tober201 8, the content of which is noted, refers.

2. As you are aware, the decision to prosecute Minister .Pravin Gordhan was
made by the Acting Special Director of Public: Prosecutions and Head:
Priority Crimes Litigation Unit, Dr Torie Pretorius SC, in consuitation with the
Director of Public Prosecutions, North Gauteng, Adv Sibongile Mzinyathi in
terms of section 24(3) of the National Prosecuting Authority Act, 32 of 1998

(‘the NPA Act’).

3. Section 179(5)(d) of the Constitution, which is replicated in s22(2)(c) of the
NPA Act, empowers the National Director, if requested to do so, to review &
decision to prosecute or not to prosecute, after consulting the relevant
Director and after taking representations, within a period specified by the
National Director, of*the accused persons, the complainant and any other
person or parly whom the National Director considers relevant.

"4 Earlier today Messrs Oupa Magashula and Visvanathan (lvan) Pillay, through
their legal representatives, made representations to me in which they

4

tuetica in aur society so that people can live in freedom and security //




requested me to review the decision by the Actiﬁg :Special Director of Public
Prosecutions.

5. | am presently considering the aforementioned represen‘ta'tions.

6. In giving effect to the provisions of section 179(5)(d) of the Constitution and
section 22(2)(c) of the NPA Act, | have further invited Minister Gordhan
through his lawyers, to make representations to me by no later than 17h00 on

18 October 2016,

7.1 will consider all these representations.

* Yours sincerely

ADV SK ABRAHAMS
NATIONAL DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC PROSECUTIONS,

DATE: 1—7 — {D - '2_0..('6 ?

Report to the Minlster of J&GS In terms of section 33(2)(a} of the NPA Act, ra the BARS matter: 3 Octaber 2016
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Shaun Abrahams
Mational Director of Public Prosecutions

National Prosecuting Authority
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" 90 Rlvenia Road, Sa.ndtarl

Johannesburg, 2196

PO Box 61771, Marshalltown
Johannaesburg, 2107, Sauth Afrlca

Docex 26 Johannesburg

T +2711 530 5000 .
F+2711 530 51_1_1

www.webberwentzel.com

URGENT

Victorla and Griffiths Mxenge Euildlng {Corner Westlake & Hartlay)

123 Waestlake Avenue
Weavind Park, Silverton,
Pretoria -

0184

By email: skabrahams@npa.gov.za: hzwart@npa.qov.za

Your ref_afenca ' Qur rei’arénéa S ‘ . Date — _
' Summons No §74/18 V Movshovich /P Dela/ D Cron / . 18 October 2016 -~

CAS: Brooklyn : D Rafferty /W Trmm IT Dya g :

427/06/20186 - 3012607 )

Dear Slrs .

Summcns in cnmmal case agamst -inter alios, the Honourable Minister of anance Mr
Pravin' Gordhan, MP (“Min. Gordhan") Summons 574/16; CAS: Brooklyn 4271052015

("the Summons")

1. We refer to your Ietter dated 17 October 2016 ("your letter")

We note that Min. G'ordhan has publicised his intention not to make répresentations on
the basis that he belleves you are capable neither of being independent nor of objectively
considering his representations concerning the charges put to him in the Summons ("the

2,

Charges"),

3. There Is much to be said for Min. Gordhan's position. The conduct of the National

Prosecuting  Authority, inciUding yours, has not bsen characterised by anything
approximating the necessafy abjectivity or due care. From the circumstances, it appears
that you may well have been the person who fook the declsion to Institute the Summons.
In any event, It was you who announced and specifically justified, with much fanfare, the
Charges belng brought against Min. Gordhan last week. There is no basls fo suppose
that you are capable of exercising, or may be entrusted o exsrcise, an independent

discration In this matter.

Senfor Partner; JCEls Managlng Partrert S1Hutton Partners: RB Aficd NG Alp 0A Amgofo-Antl RL Appelbaum AE Bennatt DHL Booysen
AR Bowley EG Srandt JLBrink Sdrowae MS Burcer AI Carnm T Cassim RS Coetha KL Collier KM Calman KE Coster ¥ Couzyn CR Davidow
H Davies PM Dava LdeBruyn JHBdelange Owde Villlers BEC Dlckinson ™A Dlemont DA Ringley G Diver  HIdu Preez  CP du Tolt
5K Edmundson AE Esterhuizen MIR Evans AA Felekls GA Flchardt 18 Forman CP Gawl KL Gawith MM Glbson 5) Glimour H Goelam €1 Gouws
PO Grealy A Harley 1M Harvay MH Hathorn JS Hennfng KR Hillls XNC Hiatshwayo S Hockey CM Holfeld PM Holloway HF Human AV Ismall KA Jarvis
ME Jarvls M Jonker S Joosta LA Wahn M Kenpedy A Keyser PH Klngston 2ok 1 lamb 1 Marals 5pcCafary MC Melntosh 5] Mckenzie
M Melaran S1 Meltzer 5M Methula CS Mayar AT Mills JA Mliner D Mifo NP Mngomezuly S Mogale JMoolman VM Movshovich M Mishall Sp Nalcker
RA Meison BP Ngoepe A Mgubo ZN Mtshona MB Nzimande L Odendaal GIP Clivier N Palge AMT Pardlnl AS Parry S Patel GR Penfold SE Phajane
MA PhIfips S Rajatt D Ramjettan GIRapson M)A Rabh DC Rudman M Sader W Scheitz KE Shepherd OMISimaan A7 Slmpson N Slngh P Singh

MP Spaléing L Steln PS Steln MW Straeull U Swalpa 2 Swanepoet A Thaker A Toefy PZ Vanda SE van der Meulen A van Mlekerk JE Veeran
N Vantar A Verclald MG Varefoid TA Varsfeid N3 Visanle 1 Watsnn K1 Willams K Wilsnn 3H Wilson M Yrdaken  chiaf Grarating DEffeass GA Ravd



WEBBER YWENTZEL ,
In aStance witk 3 L3 nk'laTe s
_ - Page 2

We point out that section 179 of the Constitution and sectlon 22(2)(c) of the National
Prosecuting Aetherity Act, 1998 7("the Act") contemplate representations by "any other
person or party whom the National Director considers 1o be relevant." Without in any way
acknowiedgmg that  you have not disabled yourself from making an unbfased and
legitimate declsion and without prefudice to any review grounds to be pursued by our
clients, our clients have made aubmissrens to you in our letter dated 14 October 2016 as

to why the Ghargea are Insupportable and must be wlthdrawn (“our 14 Qctaber Ietter")

" We accordingly assume that they will be - consrdered by you aiongside the other

representatlone, which In paragraph 7 of your letter you indlcate you will be conelder:ng o

l
Should we not recelve your decrsron to wlthdraw the Charges by 16h00 on Frrday,

21 October 2016 our clients. may, wlthout further notrce, seek o exercise thelr rights in -

law on an urgent basis. We also remind you of the need to furnish our chents wrth the
mformation set forth in alr 14 October Ietter, should the Charges not be wrthdrawn For

 ease of reference, we relterate that the rnforma’rron sought Is. the folrowrng

8.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.4.1

5.4.2

54.3

55

~ the record of decrsron in respect of the decisien to issue the summons and prefer
the c:harges agalnst Mrmster Gordhan ("the Decisrons % ‘

full wr!tten reasons, and substantlatrng documents whlch eupport the Decisrons,

without derogating fram the above, all re_asons exp[aining why, despite the factual
mairix in relatlon to the charges belng known (and being in the public realm) for

many years, the Decisions wera taken now;

without derogating from the above, the evidence (alternatively a summary thereof)

proving:

the unlawful intention required succassfully to prosecute the charges;

that Minister Gordhan made any misrepresentation as requlred for the .

purposes of establishing fraud and that such misrepresentation induced the
persons citad in counts 1 and 4 of the charge sheet to act to thelr prejudlce;'

the act of apprapriation (or contrectatio) attributed to Minister Gordhan in

respect of the alternative charge of theft.

whether any other instances of State employees taking early retirement with full
penslon (without any penaity payment being paid by the employee) are / have been

/
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* investigated and are being considered for criminal prosecution on the basis of fraud

or theft;

5.6 whether any other instances of State employees being hired after taking early
retirement are / have been inve_stigated en_c! are being considered for criminal

prosecution on the basis of fraud;

5.7 a list of all cases which have been or are bemg crimmeny prosecuted or are being
cunstdered for cnmmel prosecutlon. which relate to State employeee taklng early
retirement with full pensmn (end no penalty peyrnent by such employee), ‘and

58 a list of alf cases which have been or ara being criminai!y praechted or are being
; considered for criminal prosecutlon, whlch relate to State emp!oyees taking eer!y

: reﬂrement end belng rahlred.

-Yotjrs faj hfully i

WEBEER WENTZEL
V Movshovich
Diract tel; +27 11 530 5867

Direct fax; +27 11 530 6867 -
Email: vlad.movshovich@webberwantzel.com
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MEMBER OF THE JOHANNESBURG BAR

MEMORANDUM
DATE: 18 OCTOBER 2016
TO: MR S ABRAHAMS

NATIONAL DIRECTOR OF PUBL!C PROSECUTIONS

RE: STATE v OUPA MAGASHULA, [VAN PILLAY, PRAVIN GORDHAN

1. We appreciate the opportunity afforded to us to make representations on behalf
of Accused No. 2, Mr Ivan Pillay (“Pillay™), in accordance with the prcjvisions of

section 179_ of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa.

2. The purpose of this note is to Crisply record the grounds whereupon we
respectfully submit, Pillay did not have any intention to commit the offences in
respect of which he now stands ar.raigned. In essence, Pillay was guided by
the opinion of Vlok Symington (“Symington”), a respected legally trained official
of SARS at the material time which advised that Pillay’s contemplated early
retirement from the GEPF, his application to the Minister of Finance to waive
early retirement penalty and his request to be appointed on confract after his
early retirement from the GEPF were technically possible under the rules of the

GEPF read together with the employment policies of SARS.

3. A copy of Symington’s opinion dated 17 March 2009 was furnished to you.

4. We also drew your attention to the provisions of section 16(4) read together
with 16(6)(a) and (b) of the Public Service Act which contemplated that under
the apprppriate circumstances, Pillay would not be penalised in terms of

pension fund benefits should he take early retirement. We accept that the

4 Protea Place, Sandton | [T] 011 535 1800 | [F] 011 535 1920 | [C] 0833083094/ 1cassin @ aw,.co, 24
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circumstances itself is a value judgment, but hardly, with respect, a matter, on
the facts of this case, where it can be suggested that the Accused would not

satisfy the test of a reasonably possibly true version (Rex v Difford 1937 AD
370).

5. We also addressed you on some length on public policy considerations as to

why, in the exercise of the discretion vested in you in law, that you take a

decision not to prosecute this case.

Regards |

NAZEER CASSIM SC
AFZAL MOSAM

Electronic transmission and therefore unsigned

Iinstructed by: Mr A Patel
Cliffe Dekker Hofmeyr Inc
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ADY ®JJ DE JA

Advokaat vart die Haoggeregshof van Suid-Afrika / Advocate of the High Court of South-Africa
Lid van die Pretoria Vereniging van Advokata / Member of the Pratoria Soclety of Advocates

Hooggeragshof Kamers, Kamer 920 - High Court Chambers, Room 820
' 220 Vermelllen Street

Vermaulenstraat 220 . :
Pretoria, 0002 : Preforfa, 0002
Pretoria'\lerening van Advokate ' Pretoria Soclety of Advocates
Privaatsak X480, Pretorfa, 0001 ’ Private Bag X480, Pretoria, 0001

' Tel: (012) 303 7701

Tel (012)303-7701

Faks: (012) 303-7940 . - : : Fax: (012) 303-7940

Sel: 083 264 5373 Cell; 083 264 E373
; Emaft: chambers337@absamall.co.za

Epes: chambers937@asamail.co.za

 [BatumiDate: |18 Oclober 2016
UverwfMourref: | = :

Adv Shaun Abrahams _ _
The National Director of Public Prosecutions

m RE THE STATE v GEORGE [OUPA) MAGASHULA & 2 OTHERS

Our consultation at your chambers on 17 October 2016 refers. My learned attorney, Mr
Michael Tilney, instructed me to afford you, as we had undertaken yesterday, with a
short résumé of our views on the facts and the law in respect of the charges (ald against

our client, Mr Oupa Magashula (Accused No 1).-

it Is obvious that we cannot speak on behalf of the other accused, however, the actions
taken by the three accused which forms the basis of the charges proffered against them
are interwoven and/or all the charges are based on the actions taken by the three

accusad in securing Mr lvan Pillay's early retirement and reappointment on contract as

Deputy Commissioner of SARS.

As was indicated to you by Mr Tilney and myself we foreses almost no factual dispute.

It is a question of law whethar the facts on which your good offices rely can ever sustain
any criminal charge of whatsoever nature. The legal basis on which we rely can tht7be

L

shortly summarised as follows:



Not a single act performesd by either of the accused can ever be defined as
untawful. When functionaries and/or a Minister acts strictly within their
empowering statute(s) and merely execute a discretion which they are
empowered to do in terms of the laws of the Repubho of South Africa it is
unthinkable that unlawfulness can ever come into play. Not even to mention

any mference of criminal intent.

.- At all material times and specifically In. terms of Section 16(2A)(a) an officer. -
such as Mr Pllfay had the right to retrre from the public eervrce on the date
on which he ettamed the ege of 55 years ar at any date efter that date

This should, - however be reed with Sectuon 16(6)( ) whroh speorf‘ oally
prowdes that retirement before the age of 80 years f.e. older then 55 but
youngerthan 80 requlres the permission of the Exeoutrve Authorrty In terms
of the defi nrtrons sef out in Secﬂon A, that is the Mrnreter of his or her
depertment ie m casu Aocused No 3 and permrssron may be given if
sufficient reasons exist for retirement, This is purely a discretional function
which the Minister has and w.hioh fe‘fl-e clearly within his sole discretion. You
mentioned that you doubted whether personal circumstances of an official
constitutes sufficient reason rfor. grentin'g such permission. Thera is
absofﬂtely ho provision in the act or in any other act that creates a numerus

clausus of reasons or that restricts the Minlster's discretion in this regard.

Section 16(6)(b) creates a deeming provision with reference to subsection
16(4). In terms of this deeming provision the moment that the Minister
accedes to the request In terms of subsection 16(8)(a), the employee shall
be entifled to such pension as he or she would have been entitled to if he or
she retired from the public service in terms of subsection 4. That means at
the age of 60. The provision is couched in peremptory terms and the
Minister's discretion actually does not go beyond the permission that he
gives for early retirement. [t thus follows that any shortfall or "penaity”
should of necessity ha paid by the State. This happens every day and
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according to our information thousands of employees of various

departments went on early retirement in terms of this section.

5. Our submissions set out supra are further strengthened by the provisions of
Section 17(4) of the Government Employees' Pension Fund Law 1996, as
well as Rule 20 of the Rulés promulgéted .in terms of that Act, Fubthermore, |

_ the deemment Employée's Pension Fund Members' Guide states clearly

that;

"‘!_/Vhe're the émployéf_ .Qra'm‘ed permission for your. éérly ratirement -
~ your benetits will not be scaled down, However, your employer will

pay an additional fiability,"

As for the facfs, youhave.acces_'s to all the documentation pertaihi_ng to same and it
clearly appears that the written and transparent probedure that was: followed is not -
tainted by any illegality and cannot warrant the slightest 'fnference of'criminal intent.

it is true that Mr Magashufa'promoted and supparted Mr Pillay's réquest for early
- retirement. He was afforded a membrandum from the Legal and Policy Division (Mr
Viok Syming_ton) and he followed all procedures to the letter, He sent a memorandum
~on 12 August 2010 to Accused No.3 whb approved. With all due respect, any
reasonable employer would under the cirou'm'stances have approvad, HoWever, even
if you doubt the correctness of the Minister's exercise of his discretion, that is still a far

cry from any criminal charge, let alone fraud, theft or otherwise.

We are not gaing to deal with the separate charges, If alf the actions referred to suprg
were lawful and untainted with any criminal intent it is unnecessary to analyse any

further.

In the light of the foregoing, we humbly submit that neither Mr Magashula, Mr Piltay
nor Minister Gordhan did anything untoward. let alone committing a crime,

It is unnecessary to deal with the reappointment of Mr Pillay. This happens daily in
various different government departments. No Hew.pension: benefits were- afforded-in




the contract eventually concluded, Mr Pillay had a track record, did not get his new
appointment for free, and had to render services for it. His contract could have been

terminated with one month's notice, if ever it was requ1red by SARS,

We hope that the foregoing may assist you in taking your final decision in this regard,

PJJ DE JAGER SC

Instructed by_:_ Mlchael Tllney ,
Tl[ney lncorporated Attorneys
JOHANNESBURG
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T -Dear'Comm{ss'foner,.

. : Eackgmund
P ‘Mr Ivan Pﬂiay requestad me. to conslder certaln elements that form‘part of his declsion fo
‘ apply for early reﬂrement from the Govemment Employees Pans:on Fund (the GEPF)

Thase, elementa are:. . ‘ .
| 1 His apphcaﬂon for earfy reﬂrement from the GEPF;

2 His apphcation o the Mlnlsterof Flnanca ta waive the early retirement penalty; and -

HIS request to be appcfnted on contract aft or his early réﬂrement from the GEPF.

The technical position
Approached Individually, all three elements are te shnically possible under the rules of the
GEPF read together with the employment policlesiof SARS, Mr Pillay has reached the
required age for early retirement, he Is entitled to éqtiest the Minister to “walve" the eatly
retirement penalty, and no technicality preverits SARS from appolnting him on a contract

after his retirement from the GEPF,

Financial risk

A

| am not a registered financlal advisor and my views in this document Is therefors not
intended o be financlal gdvice and should not be gonstruad as such.




Mr Pillay opted for the early retirement pepkege ic
and'a once-off gratully. Because of the curvent gl
adversity to risk his choice In favour of a pension

However, the ﬂnehciél soundness of his decision

be paid in the form of a monthly peneien

obal financial turmoff and his personal
anid gratuity splitis prudent.

[0 eppfy for early reﬂrement is dependent

on whether the Minlster epprevee the SARS peyment of the benefit penel‘ty to tha. GEPF as

- well as whether SARS eonﬁrecte with him for ape
is eo because of the relatively young age at whach
" life expec’tency if the Minister deee not approve [
with hlm after, his retlrement the ﬂnenmei nek of h
: my edvlce then would be for h;m to rewew hus apy

) wlthdraw 1

Summery .
g Pllfey e epp!iceﬂon for eerly reﬂrement ehould j
' fer the Mmleter to eppreve the benefit penelty pay

‘ poet reiarement centract employment at SARS, i
| the financlal ks in the' centext of hls clrcumstenc
Minlster is Unable to eppreve hls request reletlng
 to-contract with him after retirement, then his dec
probiably altogether be withdrawn,

Kind regards

Viok Symington

lod of peet—reﬂrement employment This'
hie will be retlring we-e-we his projected
k3 request or i SARS does not contract‘
He decielon w:” increeee eubetenﬂeliy ahd -
llcetxen for eerly reilrement end to posebly e

he coneidered together with his application
ment by SARS as-well ee his request for

his apphcaﬂon Is approved asd package _
es are probably minimal. However, If the

40 the penalty or if SARS Is not In a position

slon to-apply for early retirement should *
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MEDIA ANNOUNCEMENT

By
ADV SHAUN K ABRAHAMS
NATIONAL DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC PROSECUTIONS

'I'IhOO 31 October 2016: VICTORIA AND GRIFFITHS MXENGE
BUILDING, PRETORIA :

Good morning!
| would fike to acknowledge the preséhcﬁe of:
Dr S|lc:|s Rcmou’re SC, a Depu’ry Na’rlonol Dlrec’for of Public Prosecuilons,

Adyv . Thoko Mo;okwenl, an Achng Depuiy National Director of Public
Prosecu‘rlons, ; S _

Adv Sibongile Mzinycﬁhi_, the Director of Public Prosecutions, North Gauteng;

- Dr Torie Pretorius SC, the Acting Specidl Dfréc’ror of Public Prosecutions and
Head: Priority Crimes Litigation Unit;

Ms Bulelwo Mdkeke, the Head of Communico’rions;
Ady Luvuyo MkaQ, rhy Spokesperso'n;

Members of the media;

Ladies and Gentlemen;

This morning’s announcement relates to the review of the decision to

prosecute Mr Oupa Magashula, Mr Ivan Pillay and Minisier' Pravin Gordhan

A:  INTRODUCTION

1. On 11 October 2016 | announced the decision of the Acting Special
Director of Public Prosecufions and Head: Priority Crimes Litigation Unit

{'PCLU"} made in consultation with the Director of Public Prosecutions:

1 i



North Gauteng, that Mr Pillay, Mr Magashula and Minister Gordhan

must be prosecuted and arraigned on various charges.

At the outset of that brie-fing | alluded to the provisions of
section 179(5){d} of the Constitution, which empowers me as the
National Director, when requested, to review a decision to prosecufe

or hot to prosecute:

(i) after consulting the relevant Director; and,
{ii} after taking representations, within a period as specified by
“me, from the accused persons, the compidinant and any

other person or party whom | consider relevant.

When | made the . cnnouncement Iex’rended an invitation to
Mr Magashula, Mr Pillay and Minister Gordhan ‘ro make represen’fahons

to me as the Nd’nonol Dlrec’ror

This is in line with the provisions of section 179(5)(d) of the Constitution,
read with section 22(2}(c} of the National Prosecuting Authority Act 32
1998 (‘the NPA Act’), to review a decision fo prosecute and to

decide whether to continue or discontinue a prosecution.

The receipt of representations and requests to review decisions is a
daily occurrence. The NPA receives representations from accused
persons and/or their legal representatives in respect of matters in both
the lower and High Courts, which are submitied to the Control
Prosecutors, Senior Public Prosecutors, Chief Prosecutors, The DPP
Offices and/or to Special DPPs. This serves as checks and balances in
the criminal justice system. So too do my consfitutionally enshrined

powers of review.



10.

12.

Since my appointment in June 2015 | have reviewed numerous cases.
In giving effect to my constitutionally entrenched review powers | have
overruled the original decisions of Directors of Public Prosecutions
and/or Special Directors to prosecute or to discontinue prosecuﬁdns in
numerous instances. | have also agreed with the original decisions of
Directors of Public Prosecutions and/or Special Directors in many

instances,

I believe that there is a general public misconcepfion as to my role as
the National Director and not a full appreciation of the structure of the

National Prosscuting Authority.

Whilst | have the power fo institute a prosecution, | would only do so in
very rare instances. This matter was certainly not one of those rare

instances.

Thus, if | made a decision to prosecute, it would not be Corhpefem‘ for
me to review my own decision in terms of the Constitution or the NPA

Act,

| am vested with and retain the power to review a decision to
prosecute after complying with the provisions of the Constitution and

the NPA Act as dlready mentioned.
Hence my invitation to make representations if they wished to do so.
I'have always been mindful of the constitutionally entrenched rights

that everyone is equal before the laow and everyone has the right fo

equal protection and benefit of the law.

THE DECISION TO PROSECUTE




13.

14.

- Before | speak on the Review and prior to informing you of my decision,

I deem it relevant to first speak of the inifial decision to prosecute.

The decision by' the Head of the PCLU to prosecute Mr Mc:gdshula;
Mr Pillay and Minister Gordhan on, infer alia, charges of fraud are

premised on the following brief set of facts:

14.1  Mr Magashula was employed at SARS from 2006 to 2009 as the
Head of Human Resources and Corporate Services and as the

Commissioner from 2009 to 12 July 2013,

14.2  Mr Pillay joined SARS in 1999. He was the General Manager of the
Enforcement & ° Risk Unit -un’ril_ his -appointment as. Depu’ry.
Commissioner ih-'2009, in which cqpadty he served unfil his
res]griq’rionrwith effect from 31 December. 2010. He continued to
serve as fhe. Depu’fy-CommissEOner of SARS on contract unﬁl the
Te_rmihoﬁon thereof in 2015. He also served as the Acting
COmh'\issioner of SARS from 12 July 2013 until the qppoin’rmehf of
Mr Tom Moyane in 2015, '

143 Minister Gordhan served as the Commissioner of SARS from
November 1999 to May 2009 and as the Minister of Finance from
May 2009 to May.2014 and again from 15 December 2015 to
date. From May 2014 fo December 2015 Minister Gordhan served
as the Cabinet Minister responsible for Co-operafive

Governance and Traditional Affairs.

December 2008 Memorandum
14.4  Mr Pillay first applied to go on early retirement in December 2008,

when a vastly experienced Human Resource Specialist in the

employ of SARS was requested to prepare a memorandum for

the early retirement of Mr Pillay.



14.5

14.6

147

14.8

14.9

The memorondum was for the attention of the Commissioner,
{who was Mr Gordhan at the time), to recommend to the then
Minister o consider approving the early retirement of Mr Pillay in
terms of the provisions of Section 16{é}{a) and (b} of the Public

Service Act.

At that stage, the reasons advanced by Mr Pillay to retire early

were 1o the effect that he wished to pursue other interests.

This memorandum was never approved. Instead, the self -same
Specialist recetved a revised version of the memorandum in
October 2009 from the office of the Commissioner, (who was
now: Mr Mcgczshuld), which co-n.’rcnined different reasons as to
those advanced by Mr Pillay in the original memorandum for the

Minister fo approve his ecrly retirement.

The revised memorandum now odvonced that Mr Pillay wished
to refire early to enable him o provide for his children’s

education.

The self-same Specialist raised - concerns to
Mr Mogoshulo via e-mails dated 8 and 9 October 2009 to the
effect that:

(i) In the event the Minister approves Mr Pillay's application
on the grounds of personal interests it may create a
precedent in terms of which other employees may submit

similar requests for early retirement;

(i) Further, that should Mr Pillay’s application be approved, it
could technically be construed that SARS -contributed
dpproximately R340000 towards the education of
Mr Pillay’s children;



(i)  That approving Mr Pillay's request may put both he and
the Minister of Finance in a fight spot, especidally if Mr Piillay

is reappointed in the very same position; and

(iv)] That the argument could be advanced that Mr Pillay was
able to continue with his present functions as his refirement
and reappointment was purely fo assist him to provide for

his children's education.

14.10 He further confirmed that whilst at SARS, he dealt with two other
opplicoﬂo_ns for early retirement with full benefits. Neither of the
two were approved as insufficient reasohs existed for the Minister

1o have approved T‘hose czpplicaﬁons;

1411 He is largely corroborc:’red by his supervisor, a Remuneration cmd
Employee Services Execuhve He along with hIS supervisor further
advised Mr Magashula against continuing w:Th Mr Pillay’s early
refirement as it was for personal reasons and did not advance

SARS’ business interests.

14.12 Another SARS official, a Remuneration and Benefits Executive
. made a statement to the Hawks in which he, inter alia, states
that after diligently perusing SARS policies he expressed the view

that there is no framework that governs SARS’' payment of
penalties imposed by the GEPF in respect of SARS officials and

that issues relating to the retirement of SARS officials’ retiring early

and the penaity imposed by the GEPF Law are governed by that

faw.

14.13 During 2009 Mr Pillay successfully purchased pensionable service
for the period 28 February 1980 to 27 April 1994, to enhance his



refirement benefits, through the Government Employees Pension
Fund ('GEPF’).

August 2010 Memorandum
14.14 In August 2010, Mr Pillay, who was 56 years old at the time,

submitted separate internal memoranda fo Mr Magashula, and

to Minister Gordhan, in which he, infer alia: .
(i) Informed them of his decision to retire early;

(ii). Explained that the décision fo refire early is . largely
informed by his deteriorating medical condifion and family
responsibilities, which he had suffered as a result of his
dedication 1o his job af SARS;

lii) Requested to be reappointed in SARS in a different

capacity on contract after having queh early retirement;

(iv)  Further requested Mr Magashula to recommend to the
Minisfer Gordhan, to approve his early refirement ‘subject
to the provisions' of section 16{6}{d} of the Public Service
Act, in terms of which the Minister approves that the
pénoh‘y imposed’ on his pension benefits as envisaged by
Rule 14.3.3(b) of the Government Employment Pension
Fund (GEPF) Rules, ‘be paid by SARS to the GEPF' on his
behalf. - |

14.15 Itis clear that regard was had to sections 16(6){a) and {b) of the

said Act, which read as follows:

“(6){a) An executive authority may, at the request of an
employee, allow him or her to refire from the public

service before reaching the age of 60 yegrs,

7 I



notwithstanding the absence of any reason for
dismissal in terms of section 17(2), if sufficient reason

exists for the retirement.

(b) If an employee is allowed to so réﬁre, he or she shal,
notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained
in subsection (4), be deemed to have retired in terms
of that subsection, and he or she shall be entitled to
such pension as he or she wo_UId have been e_nﬁﬂed
fo if he or she had refired from the public service in

terms of that subsection.”
14,16 Itis evident from the aforementioned subs_ecﬁons:

(i)  That an executive authority is vested wﬁh the discretion to
allow an employee to retire early subje'c’r to, inter afia, the
request from the employee and where sufficient reasons

exist for such a retirement:

(i)  That should the above criteria be met, an employee will
be enfitled to such pension as he or she would have been
entitled to where the retirement is in terms of the relevant

subsection, and in reference to the early refirement age.

14.17 The aforementioned subsection does not waive the requirements
of the Government Employees Pension Law of 1994 (‘the GEPL')
and its Rules, nor does it vest the executive with the discretion to
wave the requirements of the Government Employees Pension

Law and its Rules.

14.18 The Government Employees Pension Law provides for the

payment of pensions and other benefits to persons in, the



employment of Government, certain bodies and insfitutions, and

to the dependents and nominees of such persons.

14.19 The Government Employees Pension Law further provides for
Rules which are binding on Government, The Government
Employment Pension Fund ('GEPF'), its members, pensioners and
thelr beneficiaries or any person who has a claim against the
GEPF.

14.20 Section 2 of the South African Revenue Services Act 34 of 1997
(‘fhe SARS Act’) e_é’robiishes SARS as an organ of state within the
public -administration, but as an institution outside of the public

service.

1421 Section 19 of the SARS Act however reads as follows:

“{1)  Subject to the Government Embiovees’ 'Pensi.on Law, 1996}

Proclamation No. 21 é_f 1996}, a_person_appointed by SARS gs an

employee —

becomes a member of'fhe Government Employees’ Pension Fund

mentioned in section 2 of the Government Employees’ Pension Law,

1996; and
is entitled to pension and refirement benefits as if that person were in

service in a post classified in a division of the public service...” [My

emphasis]

14.22 Hence, the GEPL and ifs Rules are applicable to persons

appointed as SARS employees.



14,23 Mr Pillay was a SARS employee during the period in question,

hence the GEPL and its Rules were applicable to his application

for retirement.

14.24 Rule 14.3.1 reads as follows:

“If o member retires —

(al ..

{b}before his or her pension-refirement date in terms of
‘the law governing his or her terms and condmons of
service;

(c] ..

(o‘}before his or her pensron reﬁremenf date, but not a

- date prior to the member. attaining the age of 55
years: Prowded that such @ member has the ngh}L fo
refire on that date interms of the provisions of any act
which regu!c:fes his or her terms and conditions of
employment; ‘ '

(e) ...

Such member shall be em‘:ﬂed fo the beneﬂfs indicated in
rule 14.3.2 or 14.3.3, as the case may be.”

14.25 Rule 14.3.2 is only applicable to members with less than 10 years'

pensionoble se'rvice and finds no application to Mr Pillay’s matter

as Mr Pillay had in excess of 10 years pensionoble service,

14.26 Rule

14.3.3 applies to members with 10 years or more

pensionable service, as in Mr Pillay's instance and, infer dfia,

reads that:

“fa)

a member who refires on account of d reason mentioned

in rule 14.3.1{a), (b} or (c] and who has at least 10 years'

pensionable service to his or her credit, shall be paid the

benefits referred to in rule 14.2.1 or 14.2.2: Provided that

rules 14.2.3(a) and 14.2.2 shall apply to members referred

fo in those rules, where applicable; /
10



14.27

(b) d member who retires on account of a reason mentioned

in rules 14.3.1 (d] or {e) and who has at legst 10 years

pensionable service to his or her credit, shall be baid the

benefils referred to in rule {a) above: Provided, that such

benefits shall be reduced by one third of one per cent for

each complete monih between the member's aclual date

of retirement and his or her pension-retirement date.” [my

emphasis]

The récding'of Rule T4.3.3(b) is unambiguously clear.ond concise
in that a person in .Mr Pillay's position would be subjected to
reduction of pehsionqble benefits by one third t_)f one percent f'or.
each cbmple’red month between his or her actual date of
refrement and the date of his or her penéion_able-dc}fe of

refirement. In effeéf_, this Rule creates what is commonly referred

toasa penalty payable by the employee.

14.28°

12 AUGUST 2010 ME_M_C__)RANM |

In a memorandum don‘ed 12 August 2010, titled EARLY
RETIREMENT OF DEPUTY COMMISSIONER IVAN PILLAY WITH FULL
RETIREMENT BENEFITS, Mr Magashula  requested  Minister

Gordhan's approval for:

(i) The early refirement of Mr Pillay with full benefits with
effect from 1 September 2010, i.e. whereby SARS pays the
penalty to the GEPF ‘as contemplated in Rule 14.3.3(b) of
the Government Employees Pension Law Act 69 of 1996,
read with section 19 of the SARS Act and section 16{2A)
(a) of the Public Service Act 103 of 1994';

11



(i) To retain Mr Pillay as Deputy Commissioner of SARS on d

three year contract with effect from 1 September 2010;

{iiy  Informs Minister Gordhan that Mr Pillay has decided to

take early refirement ‘for personal reasons';

{iv) Moﬁvufes that ‘rh'e GEPF had Gpproved in excess of 3000
requests for early re’riremen.f from various govermnment
departments for staff members to retire before the age of
60 with full benefits and that the former Minister of
Finance, (in reference fo Mr Trevor Monuel), and Minister
Gordhan himself had approved at least five (5) such
requests over the pd.s’r two years; (v] Informs Minis"rer
Gordhan"rhaf. advice was sought from the Acting Director-
General of the Depariment of Public Service and
Administration (*DPSA'}), who confirmed that there is no
restriction on the appointment to the bublic service or the
sarhe depdrfmenf of a person who has refired on an
Empl'oyee' Inifiated Séverence Package ('EISP'}; (vi)
Advises Minister Gordhan that the financial implications to
SARS would be 'an amount of R1 141 178.11, which SARS
will be liable to pay to the GEPF in terms of the provisions
of section .17(4) of the GEPF Law, 1994.’

14.29 Section 16{2A}{a) of the Public Service Act 103 of 1994 ('the PS
Act’) provides that: '

“... an_officer. other than a member of the service or an
educator or @ member of the State Security Agency, shall have

the right to retire from the public service on the date on which

he or she attains the age of 55 years, or on any date after that."

12 é
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14.30 In terms of Section 17{4} of the GEPF Law, 199é:

“If any action taken by the employer or if _any legislation

adopted by_ Parlioment places any additional financial

obligation on the Fund, the employer or the Government or the
employer and the Government, as the case may be shall pay to
the Fund an amount which is required to meet such obligation.”

[My emphasis]

| 1431 It 'is evident that Section 17{4) = only pldces a .ﬁnonrcial
encumbrance on Thé embloyer or Government in circumstances
where the employer has taken action or where legislation, s
adopted by Parliament, places ahv _fu'rth'er financial obligations

on the GEPF. [My emphasis]

1432 It would with respect amount to an absurdity where an
employee applies to be released from his her responsibili’fieé to
‘enjoy early refirement where an executive oU’rhoriTy exercises his
or her discretion to perrhif such an erhployee to be released prior
to his/ner actual date of retirement c:hd the emplroyer or

government has to carry the bil {without any criteria having

been applied).

14.33 In practice this would mean that all officials who retire early, at

their request, would benefit financially in the absence of the

employer taking any action.

14.34 The words 'where the employer has taken action', it is submitted
required some act which would be to the benefit of the
department concerned either by way of fransformation

initiatives or restructuring. It certainly cannot be the mere

: £



authorization by an executive authority of a request by an

employee to take early refrement,

14.35 The Minister of the Deparfment of Public Service and
Administration  (‘DPSA') issued «a ‘Determination on the
Infroduction of an Employee-initiated Severance Package for
the Public Service' in terms of the provisions of section 3(3}(c) of
the Public Service Act, with effect from 1 January 2006 as pér

DPSA circular 1/1 6/21 dated 16 Jdnuary 2006,

1436 In terms of_i’fs_ scope, the Determination is applicable to dll

employees appointed in terms of the 'Public Service Act.

14.37 Thé pUIPose of the Determination is to .dllow employees affected
by transformation and res’rruc’ruring' who wish to exit the public
service, to apply for an Employee-initiated Severance chkdge

{(*EISP"). .
14.38 In terms of ’rhé Determination:

1) It is only applicable to employees who are affected by
transformation and restructuring who may apply voluntarily
to the executive authority {or delegate) of his or her

department to be discharged from the Public Service;

(i}  The application is subject to the approval of the executive

authority;

(ii} The application must be made on an application form
marked Annexure A, tilted: 'Process Form: Application for

Employee-initiated Severance Package' which is available

from the DPSA website,
/ﬁ/ Q

14



14.39 In consideration of the dapplication the execuﬁve must as ad

minimum fake the following info account:

(i) The impact of the employee's exit from the department on

its service delivery capabilifies;

(ii) The émployee’s competence and suitability for contfinued

employment;

(i} The manner in which the employee’s exit will support the

1rdnsformc1’rion and restructuring of the department;
(iv) The specific reasons for the employee’s request;

(v}  The ability of the depdr’rmeht to finance the costs relcﬁed
to the paym_enf of the severance package (e.g. refunding

the GEPF, severance poy, leave pay, etc);

(vi) The impact of the granting bf the severance package on

the morale of other employees;

(vii) Whéfher the employee occupies a post on the
department’s establishment or whether the employee is

held additional fo the establishment;

(viii)  (viii) That the following benefits are payable to employees
who are members of the GEPF who have atfained the age
of 55 years and who have in access of 10 vears’ service: A
gratuity and annuity determined in terms of the formula
that applies to the member; Without scaling down of
pension benefits in terms of Rile 14.3.3(b) and without an

addition to pensionable service in terms of Rule 14.2.4(b).
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14.40 In-an affidavit by the then Acling Director General {'DG') of the
Department of Public Service and Administration {'DPSA’), he,

inter alia, states the following:

i} He advised Mr.'Mogcsshub in relation to the Employee
Initiated Severance Package (‘EISP'Jand the applicable

criteria as previously outlined;

i) That in respecf of Mr Magashula's enquiry'whe‘rh_er
employees exiting the public service on an EISP can be re-
employed into the public service, he advised, generally,

~inter alia, that there was no restriction on the re-

employment of such empleyees;

iij  That he further explained that in the event that the
employee conbemed left on a \/o!unfar\/ Severance
Package (‘VSP'), the employee concerned would only be
permitted to be lreoppoin’red if the relevant department
was unable to recruit suitable candidates, and that the
reappointment of- such former employee would only be.on

a fixed term confract limited to a maximum period of three

yedars;

iv)  That he, in addition, advised that such fixed term could be

further extended for a period of not more than three years.

14.41 Itis clear from the above that the reasons advanced by Mr Pillay

do not fall within the qualifying criteria of EISP.

14.42 Whilst the memorandum dated 12 August 2010 is not signed by

the erstwhile Deputy Minister of Finance, Mr Nhlanhla Nene
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14.43

14.44

14.45

14.46

14.47

{('Mr Nene'), Minister Gordhan's approval is only obtained on

18 October 2010.

As a resulf, Mr Pillay's early refirement, with full benefils, as
approved by Mr Gordhan, was only implemented with effect

from 31 December 2010.

In this regard, Mr Pillay also enfered into a five (5) year
employment coniract with SARS as the Deputy Commissioner of
SARS, with effect from 1 January 2011 fo 31 December 2015,
instead of a three (3) year contract as opproved by Minister

Gordhan, ond instead of in a different capacity.

In czddiﬁon, a new employment contract .wosen’rered into
between Mr Pillay and Mr Gordhan, with effeéf from 1 April 2014
to 31 December 2018, whereby Mr Pillay would serve as a
Deputy Commissioner for SARS for derfher period of four (4)
years. This is 9 months prior to the initial contract béing due fo
expire dnd a month before Minister Gordhan was appointed as
the Minister of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs.
There was no supporting documentation submitted in the
ordinary course for Minister Gordhan to apply his mind to the

approval of the renewal of the contract.

This was done contrary to advice from a Remuneration and
Employee Services Executive, which was disregarded, including
advice on the issue of the renewal of a confract between
Minister Gordhan and Mr Pillay in 2014 when there was still a valid

contract still in existence.

In their Warning Statements to the Hawks, both Mr Pillay and

Mr Magashula elected to remain silent.
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15.

16.

17.

18.

14.48 Minister Gordhan did not subject himself to the taking of a

warning statement but did provide his version to the Hawks,
through his lawyers, and in which Minister Gordhan stated that
he Gpproved Mr Pillay’s early refirement with full benefits on the

strength of the recommendation by Mr Magashula.

14.49 Minister Gordhan is further recorded to have approved Mr Pillay's
early refirement with full benefits, being mindful that Mr PFillay
wanted to gain access to his pension fund to finance the
education of his children; and that he believed it to be entirely

- above board; .cmd becoUse he thought it appropriate to
recognise the invaluable work - Mr Pillay had done in the

fransformation of SARS since 1995.

REVIEW ‘ _ - _ . _
[ now would like to address the review in terms of section 179(5){d) Qf

the Constitution.

On Friday, 14 October 2016, Freedom Under Law ('FUL’) and the Helen
Suzman Foundation (”rhe HSF'}, submitfed a communication to me
through their fawyers in wh'ic:h they requested me to withdraw the
charges against Minister Gordhan uncondifionally -on or before a
specified date, failing which they would exercise their right fo seek
urgent recourse to reyiéw and set aside the decision to prosecute

Minister Gordhan.

On Monday 17 October and Tuesday 18 October 2016, both
Mr Magashula and Mr Pillay requested me to review the decision fo
prosecute them by way of representations to me in terms of

section 179(5) of the Constitution through their legal representatives.

The gist of Mr Magashula’s representation was the following:
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19.

(i) He supported the application of Mr Pillay and placed much
reliance on the advice of Mr Symington.

(iy That he had regard to the  provisions of
sections 16(2A){a), 16(6)(a) and {b} and 16{4) of the Public
Service Act, Section 17(4) of the GEPF Law and Ruie 20 of the
Rules to the GEPF law.

(i} That he lacked the requisite criminal intent as he genuinely
helieved that the aforementioned empowering provisions
permitted =~ the authorising  of the application by
Mr Pi!loy: '

(iv) That Minister Gordhcm acted within the scope of the execuhve
discretion extended to him by virtue of the position he holds
and the law.

(v}  That |n the event Minister had exercised his discretion wrongly,
it does not omoun’r to criminal intent. :

{vi) Tho’r There was an  e-mail communicdﬁon between
Mr Magoshula and the DG, which confirms the engogemen’r
between them in relation to Mr Pillay.

The gist of Mr Pillay’s represen?cmons is much the same as that
advanced by Mr Magashula. Mr Pillay also produced a memorandum
from a Mr Viok Symington.

20.Minister Gordhan chose not to make representations to me. In a

21.

communication dated 18 October 2014, through his lawyers, he aligned
himself with the submissions made to me by FUL and the HSF,

| am aware of media reports which attribute to Minister Gordhan as his
reasons for not making representations, his belief that he could not
expect to receive a fair hearing. If these media statements are frue, then
it is indeed distressing that Minister Gordhan had this perception, which
was unfounded. In a letter dated 5 September 2016 from the Head:
PCLU, addressed to the legal representative of Minister Gordhan, the
latter was, inter alia, informed:
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(i) That the decision will be made by the Head: PCLU in
consultation with the DPP: Pretoria.

(i}  Of the provisions of section 179(5){d) of the Constitution.

(i}  That it will be premd’rure to invoke reviewing provisions of
section 179(5)({d) of the Constitution prior to a decision having
been made to prosecute or not.

(ivi That it would be advisable for him to 'Incorporo’re his further
commen’rs, views and version in & warning statement.

22, Mr Pi“O\/ and Mr Magashula were c:ccorded a fair and dignified hearing

and there is no reason why Minister Gordhon would not have received
’rhe same.

23.1 clso extended an invitation to the Commissioner of 'SARS, ‘as the

24,

25.

26.

27.

complainant, and to the Head of the Hawks as the investigating
authority to submit represen’ro’nons to me. Both parties elected not to
make any further submissions.

I fur’rher ob’rcﬂned the views of the prosecuting team and the Acting
Special Director.

Section 17(4) of the GEPF Rules dnd the relevant legal prescripts has
been addressed above. | have however noted the omission of FUL and

the HSF to comment on Rule 14.3.3.(b} of the Rules to the GEPF Law.

Rule 20 of the Rules fo the GEPF, in so far as it is relevant, obligates the
employer and/or Government o pay an annuity and/or a gratuity
and/or .bo‘rh. It does not waive the penalty to be paid by the employee
or the scaling down of benefits requirement provided for in

Rule 14.3.3.b. of the Rules to the GEPF Law.

FUL and the HSF also, intfer alia, place reliance on a memorandum from
a SARS Legal and Policy Division employee, Mr Vlok Symington, dated
17 March 2009.
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28.

29.

30.

31.

This document only came to the attention of the prosecutors for the first
time by way of the submissions by FUL and the HSF and is advice to the
Commissioner of SARS as a result of Mr Pillay having requested him to
consider: (i) His application for early retirement from the GEPF;{ii} His
application to the Minister of Finance to waive early refrement penaliy;
and (i} His request to be reappointed on confract after his early

retirement from the GEPF.
Mr Symington, infer alia, advised as follows:

(i} Approached in.dividuoliy, all three requests are ‘technically
possible under the Rules of the GEPF, read with SARS'

employmén’r policies;

{ii) Pillay is entitted to request the Minister fo waive the early

refirement penalty;

{iii) No technicality brevenTs SARS from appointing Mr Pillay on

con’rrac_’r after his retirement;

(iv) That Mr Pillay’s: decision to apply for early refirement is
dependent on whether ’_rhe_ Minister approves that SARS pays the
early refirement penalty to the GEPF and that SARS re-employs

him on a contract basis after his retirement;

[v)  Should the Minister decide not to approve Mr Pillay’s request and
SARS does not contract Mr Pillay after his retirement that his -

decision to apply for early retirement be withdrawn aftogether.

It is clear from the above that if Mr Pillay’s requests could not be
met, he would withdraw his application to refire early alfogether.

As a result of the representations by Mr Magashula and Mr Pillay
and the submissions by FUL and fhe HSF | directed further
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investigations 1o be conducted, which | deemed necessary and
relevant to assist me in reaching a decision in the matter.

311 I, inter alia, required the following:

31.1.1 Confirmation from Mr Symington that he is the author
of the document submitted by FUL, the HSF and
Mr Pillay.

31.1.2 [Mr Symington, who is now employed in the Legal
Counsel Division at SARS, submitted an affidavit
dated 20 October 2016 in which he amplified his
views when he advised the Commissioner in 2009].

31.1.3 An affidavit from SARS clarifying why Mr Pillay's early
- refirement was processed differently fo that of others
where early ,re’firém'enf had been refused by the
Minister. [a SARS Remuneration and Employee
Services Executive submitted .a further affidavit
dated 25 October 2014 in which she expressed the
view that SARS had suffered actual prejudice by the
early refirement of Mr Pillay as a result of SARS paying
the GEPF penalty which should have been paid by
Mr Pillay and Mr Pillay’s salary, albeit on contract,
from the date of his retirement uniil he reached the
age of sixty (60)].

31.1.4An affidavit from the GEPF in which it, inter alia,
explains the anomaly between what is contained on
page 34 of its Member's Manual and the provisions
of Rule 14.3.3(b) of the GEPF Law Rules; clarification
around the circumstances under which an employer
and/or executive authority may exercise a discretion
‘to waive the penalty imposed on the employee by
Rule 14.3.3(b); and the information around the
alleged 3000 approvals for early retirement with full
benefits from various government departments. [Two
affidavits were obtained from the Chief Executive
Officer of the Government Pensions Administration
Agency ['GEPFAA’), The affidavits were unhelpful 1o -
say the least. In this regard, The information aroun
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the 3000 approvals with full benefits could not be
supplied. He did however confirm that action faken
by an employer places an additional financial
obligation on the Fund, which needs to be made
good by the employer; The GEPAA processes various
exits from the Fund with full benefits, where the
employer is liable for the additional liability; There s
no coniradiction between on page 34 of the
Members Guide where approval has been granted
by an Executive Authority for early retirement with full
benefits]. The affidavits falled to explain Rule

14.3.3(b).

31.1.5E-mail communications between the Acting DDG of

(i

(iii}

(iv)

the DPSA and Mr Magashula as alleged by
Mr Magashula. [In an email communication dated
23 July 2010, Mr Magashula refers to a discussion the
previous day. =~ between Mr Gordhan,
Mr Govender and himself regarding the early

retirement of the Deputy Commissioner of SARS, in

reference to Mr Pillay. Mr Magashula asks the
following questions in the mail which were raised

during their discussion:

 Whether there is a pfécedén’r for authorising early

retirement and re-engaging . the same person on d

" short contract completely different from permanent

employment, with a scaled down responsibility,
salary and other conditions of employment?

Should same be authorised, what would the impact
of Cabinet's decision fo recognise NSF service at
100% on the retirement benefits of the Deputy
Commissioner?

To indicate how long he expects the process to take
and who can do the estimates to assess the impact
of the decision on the Deputy Commissioner’s
refirement which is anficipated to happen in d
month's time?

Whether he has any stafistics of how many of early
refirement cases without re-engagement have been

processed fo date? /
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The Acting DDG responded to the aforementioned e-mail on
3 August 2010 in the following terms:

()

(iii)

fiv)

(v)

(vil)

Employee Initiated Severance Packages {‘EISP’) are
granted to employees that are generally in excess of
the organization as a result of a reshructuring
exercise. It includes changing the content of the job
or the abolishment of the post.

There is no restriction in the appointment to the
public service or to the same department on d
person. who has left on an EISP. Any new
appoinfment will be to a new post with a new set of
conditions.

- That he did not have figures on how many pérsons

were reemployed but is aware of a few that were.

That Cabinet memo 8/2009 recognised full NSF
service as pensionable service in terms of the GEPF
rul_es for the Department of Defence personnel.

That DPSA, in conjunction with the Department of
Defence and the GEPF, were presently preparing a
Cabinet memorandum to. extend this decision to
cover dll public service employees and 1o approve
the funding associated with the recognition of this
period as pensionable service.

That in light of this' matter from SARS, there is a need
to include other employers outside the public service
that are contributing to the GEPF, that the intention is
to geft this memorandum to Cabinet before the end
of August 2010 and that once a decision had been
taken, it will be incumbent upon the GEPF fo put
sysfems in place fo give effect thereto.

That in the event that the Deputy Commissioner s
granted an EISP, his package will be calculated into
his current conftribution into the GEPF and amended
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once the NSF decision has been obtained and
implemented.

32.1t is evident that Minister Gordhan and Mr Magashula were both
uncertain as to whether Mr Pillay requested early refirement with full
benefits and his immediate reemployment into SARS could be approved.
This much is clear from the engagement with both Mr Symington and the
DDG DPSA. In this regard Minister Gordhan in hindsight should have
consulted his Deputy Minister of Finance, Mr Nhlanhla Nene who could
have provided crucial guidance and clarity. "

33.The adwce of Symmgion appears 1o hove Iargely influenced Mr Pillay
and Mr Mdgoshula

34.] foresee great difﬁctu in proving the requisi’re animus.

35. In order to sustain a conviction, it is necessory to prove who’r is known as
-~ animus, ndmely, knowledge of unlawfulness and m’renhon to act

unlawfully.

36.l1n S v Barketts Transport (Pty) Ltd and Another 1986 (1) 706 (C), the '
Second Appellant had acquired shares in the First Appellant, which:
possessed o permit, authorising it to convey upholstering materials,
carpets, floor mats, curtains, cushion and other soft furnishings. The
appellants had been  convicted in the Magisfroie’s Court for
contravening section 31{1){b) of the Road Transportation Act, 74 of 1977
in that they had unlawfully conveyed 302 cartons of yarn, destined for
various factories in the Cape Peninsula.  Six months before the
commission of the offence the Second Appellant had obtained an
opinion from his legal advisors to the effect that the conveyance of the
yarn fell within the definifion of conveyance of upholstering materials
and as such was authorised by the permit. The Court found that where
an accused places reliance on legal advice or counsel's opinion taken
as a precautionary measure in order to obviate a finding of culpa, the
opinion should relate to a single fransaction or act about to be entered
infto or about to be caried out and not to a course of conduct
extending over a considerable fime in future. That said, the Court held
that the appellants had not acted with the requisite degree of
circumspection and lacked the requisite mens rea.
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37.In $ v Claasens 1992 (2) SACR 434 (T), the Court noted that it largely
depends on the specific circumstances of each case whether or not d
client should place a question mark over the legal advice having been
obtained.  In this matter the appellant was convicted in a Regional Court
on 16 counis of contravening section 2(10} of the Usury Act and
sentenced. In an appedl dgoins‘r the conviction, it appeared that the
appellant, a financial consultant and broker, had been unaware of the
provisions of section 2({10). It appeared further that he had consuited his
attorney and an advocate and had discussed his business with them. He
had also had his client mandate form checked by them when he had
started his business. He had however never instructed his afforney to
investigate the provisions of the Usury Act. The appellant had been
informed by his attorney that there could be no legal problems in the
way he conducted his business. He had never been informed by any of
the lawyers he had c_ohsul’red that he was contravening the Act. The
Court ultimately held that the appellant had not.exceeded the bounds
of reasonableniess and that he had not been negligent under: the
circumstances. -

38.As a result and in the absence of any other evidence to the contrary, |
am satisfied that Mr Magashula, Mr Pillay and Minister Gordhan did not
have the requisite infention to act unlawfully. '

39.1 am of the view that this matter could easily have been clarified had
there been proper engcgemen’r and cooperation between the Hawks
and Mr Magashula, Mr Pillay and Minister Gordhan.

40.In the circumstances | have decided fo overrule the decision to
prosecute Mr Magashula, Mr Pillay and Minister Gordhan on the charges
fisted in the summonses. ‘

41.As such, I'have directed the summonses o be withdrawn with immediate
effect and there would thus no longer be any need for Mr Magashula,
Mr Pillay and Minister Gordhan to appear in court in respect of the
charges listed in the aforementioned summonses.

Thank you
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Admission of Advocates Act. Counsel for GCB was quizzed as to why the agreement
and expenditure thereof if any should not be referred fo the Audit-General to investigate
possible contraventions of Departmental Financial I'nstruotion (DF!) and the provisions of
Public Finance Management Act. To this enquiry, the court was assured by Adv. Burger
SC on behalf GCB that no cent of public funds was speht or is intended to be spent or
recouped by GCB for having instituted the present proceedings based on the alleged
agreement with the NPA. Consequently, the intended referral to the Audit-General will
not be made. | now turn to deal with the complaints raised as the basis for the present

proceedings.

- BOOYSEN CASE AND COMPLAINTS AGAINST JIBA IN CONNECTION THERETO

[41] “...Court should discourage preliminary litigation that appears to have no purpose

“other than to circumvent the application of seotlon 35(5) of the Constitution. Allowmg
such Iltlgatron will often place prosecutor between a rock and a hard place They must,
on the one hand, re5|st prehmlnary challenges to mvestrgatlons and to the: institution. of
prooeedlngs against accused persons; on the other hand, they are simultaneously
obliged to ensure that prompt commencement of trrals. Generally disallowing such
litigation would ensture that 'the trial court deciding the pertinent issues is best placed to
do, and wouid ensure that trials start sooner rather than later. Theré can be no absolute
rule in this regard; however. The courts’ doors should never be completely closed to
litigants... But in ordinary course of events, and where the purpose of the litigation
appears merely to be avoidance of the applicatiorl of section 35(5) or the delay of
criminal proceedings, all courts should_n'ot entertain it. _The trial court would then step in
and consider together the pertinent interest of all concerned. |If that approach is
generally followed the state would be sufficiently constrained from acting unlawfully by
the application of section 35(5) and by the possibility of civil and criminal liability',

[42] The office of the National Director of Public Prosecutions is closely related to the
functions of the judiciary broadly to achieve justice and is located at the core of
delivering criminal justice'. Courts are not overly eager to limit or interfere with the
legitimaté exercise of prosecuting authority. However, a prosecuting authority’s

'® Thint {Pty) Ltd v National Director of Public Prosecution & Others 2009 {1) SA 1 CC para 64,
* Democratic Alliance V President of the Republic of South Africa & Others 2013(1) SA 248 (CC) at [26]
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discretion is not immune from the scrutiny of a court which can intervene where such

discretion is improperly exercised™,

[43] Couris have on fare occasions expressed their disapproval of the fact that a
prosecution was instituted'®. Courts do not interfere with the prosecuting authority’s

bona fide exercise of its discretion because prosecuting authority has the power to

decide to prosecute and, once the accused is on trial, he or she will have the fullest
opportunity to put his defence to the court, cross-examine prosecution witnesses and to
reply on his right not to be convicted unless the prosecution can prove his guiit beyond
reasonable based on admissible evidence and prevented in terms of a regular
procedurezo. Courts cah intervene where mala fide is alleged, or where it_ is alleged that

the prosecuting authority never applied its mind to the matter or acted from ulterior

motive ', (My emphasis).

'[44] The bomplaint_sagainst Jiba, in her _capac_ity as the' then Actin_g National Director
of Public Prosecutions in Bodysen case, arose frb_m the exercise of her statutory power
‘to authorise the charging of Major-General Booysen (Booysen) with contrav_éntion of
section 2(1) (e) and (f) of the Prevention of Organised Crimes Act no.121 of 1998
(“POCA"). A person shall only be charged with committing an offence conterhp!ated in
subsection (1) of section 2 POCA if prosecut_ion'threreof is authorised in writing by the
National Director®®. Any 'person who whilst managing or employed by or associated with
any enterprise, cpnducts or participates in the conduct, directly or indirect!y, of such
enterprise’s affairs through a patterrn of racketeering activity, nﬁanages the operation or
activities of an enterprise and who knows or ought reasonably to have known that any
person, whilst employed by or associated with that enterprise, conducts or participiated
in the conduct, directly or indirectly, of such ente}'prise affairs through a pattern of

racketeering activities shall be guilty of an offence®,

[45] On 18 August 2012 Jiba, Acting as a National Director of Public Prosecutions,
issued written authorisation to have Booysen charged with contraventions of section
2(1) (e) and (f) referred to in paragraph 44 above. Booysen successfully challenged the

" Minister of Police & Another V Du Plessis 2014 (1) SACR 217 (SCA) at [31]

S v F 1989 (1) SA 460 (ZH), S v Bester 1971 (4) SA 281(T)

» Commentary an the Criminal Procedure Act by Du Tiot, De Jager, Paizes, Skeen and Van Der Merwe at 1-29.
2 Mitchell V Attorney-General, Natal 1992 (2) SACR 68 (N}

2 saction 2(4) of POCA

% paragraph (e} and (f) of the section 2(1) of POCA.
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authorisation in Kwa-Zulu Natal Division before Govern J. In his replying affidavit,
before Govern J, Booysen stated that Jiba was: ‘mendacious” when she asserts in paragraph
21 of the énswering affidavit that she considered the statements fogether with the other information
in the ‘docket’ before making the impugned decisions. She' could not have considered the
statements referred to in her answering affidavit. She is invited to explain how she could have faket

into account information on oath that obfectively did not exist af the time of taking the decision”.,

[46] What is quoted' above is the gist of the complaint against Jiba in the handling of
Booysen case. In its founding papers, GCB articulates the conduct complained of as

follows:

“On the evidence of her conduct in ‘the Booysen matter as (with respect, correctly) described
by Govern J in this judgment, Jiba signally failed to comply with the NPA’s Code of Conduct.
More pertinent to this application, the statements made by Jibé under oath is seeking to justify
her decision to issue the POCA authorisations, were evidently untruthful. As such her conduct

indicates that she is not a fit and proper person to practice as an advocate.”

[47] These averments seem to be based on the ffnding by Govern J which inter alia,

included:

‘I30]  This leaves the four annexures to the answering affidavit mentioned above. These

are the -only documents n_dt contained in the dockets. [Jiba] says that they are all
statements made under oath. [Jiba] says in addition that they implicate Mr Booysen

in one or more of the offences in question”.

[48] «. Then in paragraphs 31 énd 34 of his judgment, Govefn J made adverse remarks

against Jiba as follows:

‘31]  The submissions of Mr Booysen in his replying affidavit can be summarised as
folfows: fwo of the annexures are sworn statements made under the name of one
Colonel Alyer. They are annexures NJ2 and NJ4 respectively. Mr Booysen
described fhese statements which concern ‘office politics and submit that they in no
way implicate him in any of the offences with which he has been charged. The
second of these in addition to not implicating him in any of the offences in question,
was deposed fo on 31 August 2012, some two weeks affer the first impugned
decision was taken. The documents referred to as a statement by Mr Danikas

annexure NJ3 is not a sworn statement. It is nof even signed by anyone. It is not
dated. Even if it could be attributed to the named person and even if it was sworn
statement as claimed by the NDPP, the contents do not cover the period clearly in the
indictment except for one event which does not relate to Mr Booysen. ..

U
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{34]  Mr Booyen was c)'early within his rights fo deal with in reply with the inaccurate
" assertions by the NDPP in her answéring affidavit and to issue the challenge and
invitation in question. He had not seen the statements until they were anne_xed to the

answering affidavit. As regards the inaccuracies, the NDPP is after all an officer of

the court, she must be taken to know how important it is to ensure that her affidavit is
entirely accurate. [f is shown to be inaccurate and thus misleading to the court, she
must _also_know that it js important to explain_and if appropriate correct any
inaccuracies. Despite this, the invitation of Mr Booysen was not taken by the NDPP
by way of a request or a,bpﬁcaﬁon fo deliver further affidavit. In response tor Mr

Booysen's assertion mendacily on her part, there is deafening silence. In such
circumstances the court is entitled fo draw an inference adverse to the NDPP. The
inference in this case need go no further than that,.on her own version, the NDPP did

not have before her annexures 4 at the time. In addition it is clear that annexure NJ3 _

is not a swom statement. Most sfqniﬁ'canﬂv the inferendé must be drawn that nohe of
" the information on which she says she relied Iinked Mr Booysen to the offence in

question...”

[49]. Before dealing. with information placed before Jiba for written authorisation ih

terms of section 2(1) of POCA, it IS important to reflect whether the invitation by Booysen |

and the adverse remarks by Govern J were based on correct evaluation and
understanding of Jiba's answeri'ng-affida\'fit_. The challenge or invitation by Booysen to
Jiba, was contained in the replying‘ affidavit and at the risk of prolonging this judgment, |

repeat the contents thereof in part:'

- “...She is invited to explain how she could have taken into account information on oath that

chjectively did nof exist at the time of taking the decision."

[50] The invitation was made after having made allegations of ‘mendacity’ in the same
paragraph with reference to paragraph 21 of Jiba's answering affidavit in Booyesen
matter and because of the relevance thereto, paragraphs 16.6, 16.7 and 17 of Jiba's

answering affidavit in that case are repeated hereunder:

"16.6 The_information under oath which was placed before me also indicated that the
applicant knew or ought to have known that his subordinates were killing suspects as

aforesaid instead of arresting them.

16.7  The information further revealed that unlawful activities of killing suspects andior
civilians were, in certain instances motivated by the Applicant's and members of his
Unit's desire to enrich themselves by means of State monetary award andior
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certificates for excellent performance. In this regard, [ annex a copy of an example of
such a monetary award claim document as “NJ1” in which inter alia, the Applicant is
recommended for such an award resulting from the death of suspects.

17. Particular reference is made in_this rec;afd to the 'statemeht made by Colonel
Rajendran Sanjeevi, Mr Aris Danikas and Mr Ndiondlo from which it is apparent that
the applicant is well aware of the information that the Respondents have in their
possession relating to the murder of at least 28 people and the monetary and non-
monetary awards claimed by him (the Applicant) for the instrumental part that he
played in these crimes. Addifionally, Mr Danikas has revealed some of the
information that he has provided to the Respondents and fo the prass and even
posted video footage thereof on You-Tube. [ annex copies of these statements as

NJ2, NJ3, NJ4 and NJ5, respecﬁve!y. !

{51]. Having regard to what is quoted above, it does hot seem the statement: “Jiba
says that they are all statéments madé under dat " is correct. Nowhere in Jiba's
- answering affidavit did she make such-a statement, _neithér did she say any of
annexures, NJ2, NJ3, NJ4, and NJ5. 'Were-under léath. ‘Under oath’ stéteménts or
information were made 'on'ly in paragraphs 16 and 16.6 of the answering affidavit without
suggesting that all of the annexures Vr_e'ferred._to in paragraph .17 of-thé ansWering |
affidavit in Booysen matter wer_e' made under oéth.' Therefore the statement:"The
documents referred to as a statement by Mr Danikas, annexure NJ3, is'not a sworn
statément’, as statéd in -paragrap'h 31 of Govern J's judgment, has to be seen in context
insofar as it was understood that Jiba averred that NJ3.was a sworn- statement. The
truth is, she never said NJ3 was a sworn statement and it could not reasonably have
been so inferred particularly readmg in the context of paragraph 16 7 of her answering

affidavit in Booysen case quoted in paragraph 50 above.

[52] The fact that Jiba did not avail herself to the invitation to deal with the allegation
of being "mendacious”, meaning "not telling the truth”, should also be seen in context.
The allegation was made in the replying affidavit. This too, Govern J was mindful of. For
the purpose of these proceedings, the criticism by Govern J should be seen in the

context of what Jiba now has to say in these proceedings.

[63] When it was discovered that Booysen has raised certain issues in his replying
affidavit, the prosecution team felt that it needed to respond thereto. On 14 August 2013

a meeting of the prosecution team was held. Subsequent to the meeting, a
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memorandum was prepared and forwarded to the defence team ted by Hodes SC, in
terms of which it was expected that supplementary affidavit would be filed to explain the
criticism against Jiba with regards to the annexures. On 19 August 2013 an email by
Adv Mosing of NPA was sent to Adv Chauke Director of Public Prosecutions
Johahnesburg, enquiring what progress had been made with regard to filing of further
affidavit to deal with Booysen's allegations. Subsequently, Jiba was advised by Adv.

Mosing that counsel had indicated that no further actions were necessary.

[64] Based on the explanation above, it is clear that Jiba did not ignore the serious
allegations of “mendacious” made by Booyeen. By seeking to file further affidavit to
explain the annexures after the replying affidavit was filed, is a clear indication that she
was mindful of the need ‘to explain and co'rrect any inaccuracies' created by Boeyeen in
his replying affidavit.  Therefore the statement: ‘Despite this, the invf'tation by Mr
Booysen was nof taken up by the NDPP by way of a request or appficaﬁon fo deliver a
fun‘her afﬁdavit in response' fo Mr Booysen’s ascertain .of mendacity on .her parf there is
a deafenmg silence’, made by Govern J in paragraph 34 of his Judgment ought to be

~ seen'in the context of what is explained in paragraph 53 above.

[55]  Similarly, the.statement that ‘as regards the inaccuracies, the NDPP refem'ng fo
Jfba), is after all an ofﬁeer of the court, she must be taken to know how important it is to
ensure that her affidavit js entirely accurate...’, should be seen in the context of what is
‘stated in paragraph 53, but even most importantly,rin the context of her explanation now

offered inthe present proceedings.

[56] On 17 August 2012 Jiba approved the application for authorisation in terms of
section 2(4) of POCA for contravention by Booysen of section 2(1)(e) and (f) of POCA.
The provisions of section 2(1) (e) and (f) were referred to in paragraph 44 of this
judgment. The information and advice that was placed before Jiba for the purpose of
granting or refusing authorisation was prepared and compiled by Adv. Raymond K
Mthenjwa and Adv. Gladstone Sello Maema, both deputy directors of public
prosecutions, Adv Anthony Mosing, a senior deputy director of public prosecutions and
the head of the special Projects Division, who acted as the liaison between Jiba and the

prosecuting team.

[57] At the time Jiba deposed to the answering affidavit in Booysen’s matter, the facts
and the evidence against Booysen had been presented to her on many occasions and
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she was acquainted with the case against Booysen. In her affidavit during proceedings
before Govern J she referred to annexure NJ5, being the statement of Mr Ndlodio and
Annexure 6 being the statement of Booysen. These annexures apparently did not form
part of the papers before Govern J and Jiba was not aware why that was not done. 1
revert to the essence of annexures NJ5 and NJ6 later when dealing w1th whether Jiba
had information implicating Booysen when she issued the authorisation on 17 August
2012. NJ3 was the statement of Ari Danikas, which was obtained round about 18 April
2012 by General Mabula who led the Hawks invéstigation team against Booyéen._. The
drafted statement of Danikas was handed over to the prosecution team during June
2012 and formed part of the information she considered in authorising the prosecution of
Booysen. Danikas was a police reserwst in. the Durban Orgamsed Crime Un|t based in
Carto Manor and was at that time in Greece. He had securlty concermns and was-
unwilling to come on his own to South Africa.. On or before 11 July 2012 Adv Maema
asked Generél Mabula to leave the statément unsigned $0 that the i'n.formati'on process
outllned in the . mutua! Iegal a55|stance Ieglslatlon that is, sectlons 2 and 3 of .
Internatlonal Cooperat:on in Criminal Matters Act 75 of 1996 be followed to formalise the
' statement, although the witness was wzllmg to have it signed at the South African
embassy.  The prosecution was confid.ént_ that the statement would ultimately be signed
through the proce'ss outlined as contemplated in Act 75 of 1996, but it forrﬁed the basis
of the briefings to be considered by her in iééuing the authorisation. However, the
process of signing the statement could not be finalised since the incumbent (Mr Mxolise
Ntasana) at the time of deposing to the answering affidavit in the preSent proceedings,

had instructed to halt the process.

[58] Whilst the statement in question did not relate to the specific incident covered in
the indictment, it was however intended to corrobotate the evidence in possession of the
prosecution team that Booysen was involved in the various activities giving rise to the
charges against him of similar facts evidence which is admissible in racketeering

prosecutions.

[59] An explanation stated above is offered in these proceedings to set the record
straight. Therefore the statement, ‘the document referred to as a statement by Mr Danikas

annexure NJ3... is not even signed by anyone. It is not dated. Even if it can be atributed to the
named person and even if it was sworn statement as claimed by the NDPP the conlents do not cover

the perfod dealt with in the indictment except for one event which does not relate to Mr Booysern’, as
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stated by Govern J ought to be seen in the context of the explanation given by Jiba in
these proceedings and the fact that Jiba never said annexure NJ3 was a sworn
statement as stated earlier in this judgment. | need to caution. i should not be
understood as seeking to review or upset Govérn J's judgment. At the time, he did not

have Jiba’s responses as this court now has.

[60] Regarding the question how Jiba could have taken into account information on
oath that objectively did not exist at the time the authorisation was made, the

explanation by Jiba in these proceédings is as follows: -

“217.  There were also two statements by Colonel Aiger (reference to as Annexure NJ2 and
NJ4). One was taken on 3 August 2012 settmg out Booysen’s managerial
respons:bmt:es pamc:patlon and interferences in the act:vmes of a section of Durban
'Orgamsed Crime Unit. The statement was obtained before 17 August 2012, being
the date on which the aUthqrities were granted by me. A second statement of Golonel
Aiger was taken on 31 August 2012 following a :cons'ultaﬁon'with the prosecution |
‘team durk'ng sarly July 2012. ' However the content of the statenﬁent was information

already relayed to the prosecution team by Colonel Alger at the consultation.”

[61] Therefore the statement;."ll'he sécond of these in addition to not implicating him in
any of the offences in question, was deposed to on 31 April 2012, some two weeks after
the. first impugned decision was taken’, in paragraph 31 of Govern J's judgment,
inasmuch as GCB seeks to rely on it for the complaint levelled against Jiba, shoul_d be
considered in the light of explanation qudted in paragraph 80 above. | am unabl.e to find
any conduct on the part of Jiba that justifies an application contemplated in section 7 of

the Admission of Advocates Act.

[62] As far as the allegation of lack of information implicating Booysen is concerned,
an understanding of the applicable legislature framework, what was placed before Jiba
and the core function of the prosecuting authority is necessary. The court may hear
evidence, including evidence with regard to hearsay, similar facts or previous convictions
relating to offences contemplated in subsection (2) of séction 2 of the Act

notwithstanding that such evidence might otherwise be inadmissible, provided that such

=
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evidence would not render a trial unfair’*. This should be seen in the context of the

Preamble under POCA which inter alia, reads:

“AND BEARING IN MIND that it is usually very difficult to prove the direct involvement of

organised crime leaders in particular cass, because they do not perform the actual criminal
activities themselves, it is necessary to criminalise the management of and related conduct in

connection with enterprises which are involved in the pattern of racketeering activity.

AND WHEREBY THE SOUTH AFRICAN common law and statutory law fail to deal effectively
with organised crimes ... criminal gang activities, and also fail to keep pace with international

‘measures aimed at dealing effectively with organised crime ... and criminal gang aciivities.

AND WHEREAS pervasive presence of criminal gangs in many _communities is harmiul_to
Wefl-bemg of these commumt;es, it is necessary to cnmmaltse pamcrpaflon inor promotion of

criminal actzwt.ves

[63] Inmy view the proviéiqns of section 2(1) (e) and (f) réferred to in paragraph 44 of
this judgment are meant for the_criminalisation of such activities. The point | am making
is this: Courts for the purpose.of an exercise of its discfetion in terms of section 2(2)
referred to in paragraph [62] of thisjudgment may rely on hearsay evidence, information
and or documentatlon collected by the police and presented to it by the prosecution. If
that is s0, and courts are entitfed to have regard to hearsay evidence during trial, so too
should the National Director of Public Prosecutions (Jiba in Booysen’s case) be entitled
to rely on hearsay and similar facts evidence for the purpose of authorisation as
contemplated in subsection (4) of Section 2 of POCA. Otherwise, pervasive presence of
criminal gangs wall continue to rule with impunity and fear in many of our communities

and resultantly pose harm to the well-being of many commumtles

[64] As | said, one needs to be careful not to be understood as upsetting Govern J's
judgment for having reviewed Jiba's decision to prosecute Booysen. That is not an
issue before this court. The issue however is whether in granting authorisation in terms
of section 2(4), Jiba was mala fide or had ulterior motive, in which event, the
requirements of "fit and proper person” to remain on a roll of Advocates becomes
relevant. For this purpose, further provisions of POCA are necessary to consider, aiso

taking into account offences under section 2(1) (e) and (f).

* see section 2 (2) of POCA
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[65] ‘Pattern of racketeering activity’ means ‘the planned, on-going, continues or
repeated participation or involvement in any offence referred to in Schedule 1 and
included at least two offences referred to in Schedule 1". On the other hand, “enterprise”
‘includes any individual partnership, corporation, association or other juristic person or

legal entity, and any union or group of individuals associated in fact'®.

[66] The essence of the information before Jiba, ceh be summed up as follows: In
addition to what is stated in paragraphs 56, 57 and 60 of this judgment, Booysen was
the head of Carto Manor Orgamsed Crime Unit in the South African Police Services.
Members of the police in his unit and under his command had aflegedly committed
crimes of serious nature including murders against suspects who were sometlmes
framed in the comm:ss:on of offences Booysen knew, approved and or ought to have
known of the commission of these offences.. In reward to the. members unlawful
activities, Booysen motwated for incentive of F'TO 000. 00 for each of the 26 members of
the Carto Manor Crime Unit including Booysen himself. Booysen was also commended
for outstandlng services. rendered in that he 'was part of a team, who through thelr
commitment and dedication, arrested several crime and dangerous suspects for the

murder of a police officer’.

[67] | can_not find any mala fides and or ulterior motive in-the authorisation by Jiba as
contemplated in PO.CA. POCA is like a cry out Ioud for deciaratjon of war again'st
serious, continuous and organised cﬁmes. That needs specialised investigation and
prosecution. Most importantly, POCA requires the freedom and space to be given to the
members of the prosecuting authority in the exercise of their legislative power to
investigate through members-o_f their Investigating Directorate and under the watchful
eye of a special director so appointed to prosecute without fear, favour and prejudice
those implicated in the commission of serious crimes. Anything short of this, or anything
which tends to impede on this constitutional and legislative imperative, for example,
hauling Jiba to the proceedings in terms of Section 7 of the Admission of Advocates Act,
ought to be based on very cogent, serious and exceptional circumstances.

[68] You do not want members of the prosecution authority to unduly watch their
backs for fear of being dismissed or removed from the roll of advocates every time when
they make mistakes in prosecuting and presenting cases in court, or every time when an

72

% See definition under Section 1 of POCA
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'applicatfon fcr authorisation is made in terms of section 2(4) of POCA. An overriding

factor for them for consideration should be to adhere to the rule of law and the

Constitution. [t sufﬁce_s for now to conclude on Booysen matter by stating that no case
has been made for removal or suspension from the rol] of advocates. | now turn to deal
with the other matter and basis of complaints thereto against Jiba.

SPY TAPES CASE

[69] The listening of telephone conversation recorded on tapes between Bulelani
Ngcuka, the then National Dlrector of Public Prosecutions and Mr McCarthy, the then

Director of Publrc F’ersecutlons for Durban and withdrawal on 1 April 2009 of several of

crfmmal charges against Mr Jacob Zuma (currently the F’resmtent of the Repubhc of
South Africa), became to be known in South Afrlca as a “Spy tape case.” [t was a case
instituted by Democratic Alliance Party against the . National Prosecutmg Authcnty in
terms of which the latter's decision to w;thdraw several charges against Mr Zuma was
challenged It is the handhng of that case by Jiba in her capaclty as the then Acting
National Director of Public Prosecutions which forms the basis of the applrcatron and
dispute in these proceedmgs The  case in questlon is also referred to in these

proceedings as a “Spy tapes case.”

[71] On 86 April 2009, the then acting Natio_nal Director of Public Prcsecutions, Adv,
Mokotedi Mpshe, after having listened to the conversation aforesaid recorded on tape
publicly announced the withdrawal of corruptron and other several refated charges

against Mr Zuma.

[72]  During April 2009 and subsequent to the withdrawal of .the charges, the
Democratic Alliance (DA), a registered political party and official opposition in South
African national partiament instituted review proceedings in the North Gadteng High
Court for an order reviewing, correcting and setting aside the decision to discontinue the
prosecution against Mr Zuma and declaring the decision fo be inconsistent with the
Constitution of the Republic of South Africa. DA further required Mr Zuma and NPA to
deliver to the registrar of the High Court, in terms of rule 33(1) of the Uniform Rules, the
record on which the impugned decision was based, which included representations
made by Mr Zuma for the withdrawal of the charges. The prosecuting authority, as the




